
  
 

Jeff Hughes 
Head of Democratic and 
Legal Support Services 

 

 
This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING : EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE 
BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT REVENUES AND 
BENEFITS COMMITTEE 

VENUE : COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD 

DATE : WEDNESDAY 19TH OCTOBER, 2011 

TIME : 5.30 PM 
 
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE: 
 
EAST HERTS COUNCIL: 
  
Councillors: L Haysey, G McAndrew and M Tindale. 
 
Substitutes:   
 
(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting). 
 
STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL: 
 
Councillors: S Batson, Mrs J Lloyd and A Webb. 
 
Substitutes:   
 
(Note:  Substitution arrangements must be notified by the absent Member 
to Democratic Services 24 hours before the meeting). 
 

CONTACT OFFICER: Peter Mannings 
01279 502174 

E-mail: peter.mannings@eastherts.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
 
1. A Member with a personal interest in any business of the Council who 

attends a meeting of the Authority at which the business is considered 
must, with certain specified exemptions (see section 5 below), disclose 
to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest prior to the 
commencement of it being considered or when the interest becomes 
apparent. 

 
2. Members should decide whether or not they have a personal interest in 

any matter under discussion at a meeting.  If a Member decides they 
have a personal interest then they must also consider whether that 
personal interest is also prejudicial. 

 
3. A personal interest is either an interest, as prescribed, that you must 

register under relevant regulations or it is an interest that is not 
registrable but where the well-being or financial position of you, 
members of your family, or people with whom you have a close 
association, is likely to be affected by the business of the Council more 
than it would affect the majority of inhabitants of the ward(s) affected 
by the decision. 

 
4. Members with personal interests, having declared the nature of that 

personal interest, can remain in the meeting, speak and vote on the 
matter unless the personal interest is also a prejudicial interest. 

 
5. An exemption to declaring a personal interest applies when the interest 

arises solely from a Member’s membership of or position of general 
control or management on: 

 

• any other body to which they have been appointed or 
nominated by the authority 

• any other body exercising functions of a public nature 
(e.g. another local authority) 

  
 In these exceptional cases, provided a Member does not have a 

prejudicial interest, they only need to declare their interest if they 
speak.  If a Member does not want to speak to the meeting, they may 
still vote on the matter without making a declaration. 



 

 

6. A personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if all of 
the following conditions are met: 

 

• the matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of 
decisions 

• the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a 
licensing or regulatory matter 

• a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would 
reasonably think your personal interest is so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
7. Exempt categories of decisions are: 
 

• setting council tax 

• any ceremonial honour given to Members 

• an allowance, payment or indemnity for Members 

• statutory sick pay 

• school meals or school transport and travelling expenses: if you 
are a parent or guardian of a child in full-time education or you 
are a parent governor, unless it relates particularly to the school 
your child attends 

• housing; if you hold a tenancy or lease with the Council, as long 
as the matter does not relate to your particular tenancy or 
lease. 

 
8. If you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 

meeting, you must declare that interest and its nature as soon as the 
interest becomes apparent to you. 

 
9. If you have declared a personal and prejudicial interest, you must 

leave the room, unless members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about the matter, 
by statutory right or otherwise.  If that is the case, you can also attend 
the meeting for that purpose.  However, you must immediately leave 
the room once you have finished or when the meeting decides that you 
have finished (if that is earlier).  You cannot remain in the public gallery 
to observe proceedings. 

 



 

 

AGENDA: 
 

1. Appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman  
 

2. Apologies  
 

3. Chairman's Announcements  
 

4. Declarations of Interest  
 

5. Terms of Reference (Pages 5 - 102). 
 

6. Shared Service Implementation (Pages 103 - 112). 
 

7. Performance Reporting (Pages 113 - 124). 
 

8. Work Programme and Budget Arrangements  
 
 



 
  

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL AND EAST HERTS COUNCIL   
 
EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT 
REVENUES AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE - 19 OCTOBER 2011  
 
REPORT BY HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS SHARED SERVICE  
 

5. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  All. 

     
 
Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

• To receive the Terms of Reference for this Committee having 
clarified if necessary any points contained therein. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DECISION: that 

 

(A) The Terms of Reference for the Committee be noted. 

  

(B) The dates and frequency of future meetings be agreed. 

 
1.0 Background 
 
1.1 At the meetings of the Stevenage Borough Council (SBC) and East 

Herts Council (EHC) Executives on 14th June and 15th June 2011 
respectively, decisions were taken to create a single, shared 
Revenues and Benefits Service for the two Councils and to establish 
a joint committee for that shared service. Copies of the Executive 
reports are shown at Essential Reference Paper B. 

 
1.2 Appendix B of those reports set out Terms of Reference for this 

committee, which were agreed by the Council’s Executives. 
 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 The creation of this joint committee accords with the Constitutions of 

both Councils and provides Member oversight and involvement in 
the largest shared service established by the councils thus far. 

 
2.2 The governance of the shared service is strengthened by a Joint 

Management Board which includes the Chief Financial Officers from 
both councils and is underpinned by a formal partnership agreement. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



 
  

2.3 Although the Terms of Reference stipulate that the joint committee 
meetings are to be held in January and October each year, this is 
subject to liaison between the councils in order to fix dates and times 
that are mutually suitable. 

 
2.4 It was originally anticipated that a service plan would be ready for 

consideration in January and that a proposed budget would be ready 
for October each year. However, for administrative reasons those 
documents will not be ready within this timeframe. Members may 
wish to take this into account when deciding on the dates and 
frequency of future meetings. 

 
3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 None. 
 
3.2 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated       

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper ‘A’.   
 

3.3 Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ report to Executive in June 2011, 
‘Shares Revenues and Benefits Service’. 

 
Background Papers 
None. 
 
Contact Member: Councillor M Tindale, Executive Member for   

  Finance. 
 
Contact Officer: Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits Services, 

Extn: 2075.  
 
Report Author: Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits Services, 

Extn: 2075.

Page 6



 
  

                          ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

Promoting prosperity and well-being; providing 
access and opportunities 
Enhance the quality of life, health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities, particularly those 
who are vulnerable. 
 
Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 

Consultation: None 

Legal: None 

Financial: None 

Human 
Resource: 

None 

Risk 
Management: 

None 

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 
  

EAST HERTS COUNCIL 
 
THE EXECUTIVE - 15 JUNE 2011 
 
REPORT BY EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR  
HEALTH, HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SUPPORT 
 
EAST HERTS/STEVENAGE REVENUES AND BENEFITS 
PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS           
 
WARD(S) AFFECTED: All  
 

       
 
Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

• To set out proposals for the creation of a single, shared 
Revenues and Benefits Service with Stevenage Borough 
Council  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR COUNCIL:  that 

 

(A) the view be supported that a shared Revenues and Benefits 
service with Stevenage Borough Council is viable and will 
deliver benefits as described in the business case 
document titled ‘Revenues & Benefits Shared Service for 
East Herts & Stevenage’, at Essential Reference Paper ‘A’ 
and to implement the proposals set out in this document; 
   

(B) a Joint Revenues and Benefits Shared Service Committee 
with Stevenage Borough Council, as detailed at Essential 
Reference Paper ‘B’, be approved; 
 

(C) the creation of a Joint Management Board for a shared 
Revenues and Benefits service be approved; 
 

(D) as the host authority for the shared service, the proposals 
to discharge, on behalf of Stevenage Borough Council the 
administration of Council Tax, National Non-domestic Rates 
and the administration of the Benefits scheme, including 
the investigation and prosecution of Benefit Fraud, in 
accordance with section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972, be approved, with the effective date for this 
arrangement to be agreed by the Chief Finance Officers at 
each Council;  

Page 9



 
  

 

(E) a contingency of £25,000 for unforeseen set up costs, be 
approved, to be met by a supplementary estimate if 
required; 
 

(F) splitting set up costs and savings 50:50 for the first three 
years, be approved; and 
 

(G) the Director of Internal Services be authorised to approve a 
partnership agreement with Stevenage Borough Council, to 
implement these proposals, subject to final confirmation of 
the business case. 
 

 
 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1. Both East Herts Council and Stevenage Borough Council, see 

benefits in joint provision of services. Both have supported the 
Hertfordshire Pathfinder initiative and have recently made a public 
commitment to develop joint working on support services with 
North Herts Council. 

 
1.2. Through professional contact between the Strategic Director 

(Resources) Stevenage Borough Council and the Director of 
Internal services at East Herts Council it became apparent, that 
the Revenues and Benefits services at each authority had the 
potential to be brought together to create a more cost effective 
and resilient, single shared service. 

 
1.3. On 13th July 2010 the Executive approved the creation of an 

Interim Joint Management Team (IJMT) from 1 August 2010, with 
a shared Head of Service, to manage the Revenues and Benefits 
functions for Stevenage Borough Council and East Herts Council.  
Part of the remit for the IJMT was to produce a business case 
around the feasibility of a single, shared Revenues and Benefits 
Service for both councils. 

 
1.4. The business case is persuasive and approval is sought to 

implement the shared service. The business case is shown at 
Essential Reference Paper ‘A’. 

   
 
 
  

Page 10



 
  

2.0 Report 
 
2.1 The business case was developed around three main objectives 

for a Revenues and Benefits service, namely, delivering 
efficiencies, strengthening resilience and consolidating best 
practise to underpin good performance. All of these objectives can 
be achieved with some immediate benefits. 

 
2.2 Proposals in this report for a shared service will place control of 

the implementation entirely in the hands of the partnering 
Councils, unencumbered by lengthy procurement exercises and 
without the need to rely on third parties, with whom relationships 
have not previously existed. 

 
2.3 A strong working relationship has developed between officers at 

all levels across both authorities, as the work of the IJMT has 
been undertaken over a period of several months. That 
relationship has already brought improvements to work practices 
and helped secure ongoing savings.  

 
2.4 The success of the IJMT arrangements led Executive on 12th 

October 2010 to agree that a shared Revenues and Benefits 
service under a joint governance model, was a preferred option, 
subject to the more detailed business case now brought forward.  

 
2.5 The project to establish the business case for a shared Revenues 

and Benefits service started in advance of the review of shared 
support services with Stevenage Borough Council and North 
Herts Council.  However, the objectives for a shared Revenues 
and Benefits Service, around efficiencies, performance and 
resilience, fit well with the aims of the overall strategic direction 
being pursued for support services. 

 
2.6 There are distinct models through which shared services may be 

delivered.  The administrative model, involves the creation of a 
joint committee, delegation of a function to another authority and 
includes arrangements for managing staff engaged in delivering 
those functions.  

 
2.7 The administrative model is the most familiar to Members and 

officers at both authorities.  It is the easiest and least expensive to 
set up and run. It is equitable and keeps control of the service 
close to Members and officers.  It has no VAT or tax implications. 

 

Page 11



 
  

2.8 It is proposed that a joint committee is established for a single 
Revenues and Benefits service, comprising three elected 
Members from Stevenage Borough Council and three from East 
Herts Council.  Draft terms of reference for the committee are 
shown at Essential Reference Paper ‘B’. 

 
2.9 It is proposed that further details of the service provision, 

performance monitoring, conflict resolution and a disengagement 
protocol, be developed and reported to the Joint Committee for 
consideration.  With each Council’s 151 officer being given 
delegated authority to approve a partnership agreement. 

 
3.0 Key Considerations 
 
3.1 Accommodation: There are three options. Locate in Stevenage 

Borough Council’s Daneshill House, locate in East Herts’ 
Wallfields site in Hertford or seek new accommodation. The third 
option can be discounted as unaffordable. Of the two remaining 
options, Wallfields is less expensive than Daneshill House. That, 
combined with the refurbishment of Wallfields, bringing that site 
into a state of readiness for homeworking and flexible working 
much sooner than could be achieved at Daneshill House, 
presents Wallfields at the most suitable site for the shared 
service.    

 
3.2 Technology: For practical reasons it is more effective to co-locate 

ICT provision with the staff.  Having identified Wallfields as the 
better option for the location of office based staff, it follows that 
ICT should be provided to the shared service from that site.  

 
3.3 Human resource considerations: From a management 

perspective, creating a single staff group, in a single structure on 
the same terms and conditions is not only fair and equitable, but 
would strengthen service resilience and provide a sound basis for 
achieving efficiencies.  A new organisation structure is proposed, 
to which staff from both Councils will be appointed.  To achieve 
this it is proposed to transfer Stevenage Borough Council’s 
Revenues and Benefits and Anti-Fraud staff to the employment of 
East Herts Council, applying the principles of the Transfer of 
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (TUPE). 
The proposed date of transfer is 1st August 2011, subject to formal 
consultation with staff and unions.  

 
3.4 Customer interface: Walk-in customer contact for Stevenage 

customers will be maintained at the Stevenage Borough Council’s 

Page 12



 
  

Customer Service Centre in Daneshill House. East Herts 
Council’s walk-in customer service will continue at existing sites in 
Bishop’s Stortford and Hertford. All customers calling by 
telephone will be routed to the shared service. The telephony 
arrangements for Stevenage Borough Council’s customers will be 
subject to a review within the first year of operation. 

 
3.5 Finance: A base budget for a shared service has been 

constructed in order to identify and understand the costs 
associated with the Revenues and Benefits Services at both 
Councils.  This has formed the basis on which the Chief Financial 
Officers at both Councils have agreed, in principle, to share costs 
and savings associated with a joint budget.  As these savings 
require participation of both Councils a 50:50 apportionment is the 
most equitable basis. 

 
3.6 The shared service is projected to make savings of £133,000 in 

2012/13 and thereafter £173,000 each year.  These savings have 
been calculated on a prudent basis and actual savings could 
exceed the figures stated above.  The shared service budget will 
meet pensions costs for current service only.  Each Council will 
separately account for the funding of pensions deficits in respect 
of pooled staff.  

 
3.7 In order to deliver savings outlined in paragraph 3.6, there are set 

up costs in order to resource data links between Hertford and 
Stevenage and to facilitate home working for staff.  The total one-
off set up costs are projected to be £126,000.  Some of the costs 
relates specifically to SBC staff or ICT improvement for EHC. 
These costs have been borne by the relevant Council, all other 
costs have been apportioned on a 50:50 basis, and EHC set up 
costs are £74,000, to be met from existing ICT capital budgets.   
The set up costs do not currently include any potential 
redundancy costs, which may arise on transition to the new 
structure.  To mitigate these risks, short term appointments have 
been used at both Councils when filling recent vacancies. 

 
3.8 The proposed business case to locate the shared service at 

Hertford, means that Stevenage Borough Council retains some 
residual overheads, for example, costs associated with 
accommodation, Human Resources, etc.  These are estimated at 
£382,000.  SBC and EHC officers reviewed these costs and some 
of this relates to capital charges and costs that will remain with the 
Council, regardless of the shared service relocating.  However 
£64,500 has been identified as potential savings in ICT, Customer 

Page 13



 
  

Service Centre and Facilities Management and when released 
(projected to be 2013/14), these will be shared 50:50 between the 
two Councils.  If the sharing of back office services is successful, 
it may be possible to make further savings on these residual 
costs.   

 
3.9 The option to create a shared Revenues and Benefits Service 

based on the key decisions above, will deliver excellent 
performance, strengthen resilience in the service and secure 
sustainable savings.  

 
3.10 Staff and the recognised trades unions have been consulted.  

Staff briefings were held and written material about the proposals 
was provided.  Whilst staff have sought clarification on a range of 
issues, no counter proposals have been received.  Should a 
decision be taken to proceed with the proposals, further 
consultation with staff and unions will be undertaken. 

 
3.11 Unison’s response is detailed at Essential Reference Paper ‘D’.  

The Council’s feedback to this response is detailed at Essential 
Reference Paper ‘E’ (to follow). 

 
4.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
4.1 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper 
‘C’.   

 
 
Background Papers  
None 
 
 
 
Contact Member: Councillor Linda Haysey, Executive Member for 

  Health, Housing and Community Support 
 
Contact Officer: Alan Madin, Director of Internal Services, ext 1401 
 
Report Author: Alan Madin, Director of Internal Services   
 
 
 
  

Page 14



Revenues and Benefits 
Shared Service 

for East Herts and Stevenage

Business Case

Page 15



Revenues and Benefits 

Shared Service for 

East Herts and Stevenage 

Business Case 

19 May 2011 

Author: Su Tarran 

Head of Revenues and Benefits Services

Page 16



-2 -

Contents
Purpose of the Business Case Document 3 
Background 3

Executive Summary 4 

Key Requirements  

Scope 

Exclusions 

5

Current Position 6

Preferred Option - Key decision areas 

Accommodation and Facilities Management 

Technology 

Customer interface 

Change management 

Structure and jobs 

Governance & management arrangements 

6

Anticipated Benefits 11 

Finance 12

Legal Considerations

Procurement 

Governance 

Human resources

14

Equalities 15

Risks 15

Consultation 17

Implementation 17

Conclusion 18

Appendices

Key features of the Revenues and Benefits service 1

Structure chart 2

Draft terms of reference for joint committee 3

Draft budget 4

Draft implementation plan 5

Page 17



-3 -

1. Purpose  

1.1  This document sets out the business case for sharing Housing Benefit and Local Taxation 

services between East Herts Council (EHC) and Stevenage Borough Council (SBC). It 

outlines the key areas considered by the joint project team and sets out a preferred option for 

consideration by the Executives at both Councils. 

1.2  Financial pressures on local Councils will be challenging for the foreseeable future. Both 

Stevenage Borough Council and East Herts Council have commendable track records in 

delivering efficiency savings.  However, the savings challenges ahead, on top of savings 

already achieved, makes further efficiencies of the scale required impossible to deliver, 

without considering an alternative delivery model for the services they provide.  

1.3  Both Councils have already committed to a shared services agenda. Housing Benefits and 

Local Taxation services in the two Councils are now jointly managed. In February 2011 both 

Executives agreed to pursue a business case for sharing support services. Sharing services 

provides an opportunity to drive out efficiencies and achieve greater resilience than would be 

available when delivering smaller scale operations individually in the respective Councils.  

1.4   A successful shared service will create opportunities for future savings by the addition of one 

or more partners and would likely be more attractive to the market, If this option is one which 

the Council’s wish to explore in the future.   

2.  Background 

2.1 The cuts to funding for local government first announced at the end of May 2010 and in the 

budget of June 2010, reinforced the need to reduce costs and improve efficiency across all 

services. SBC changed software systems from Pericles to Capita in November 2009. This 

move makes the shared service proposals possible, as this is the software system used by 

EHC. In addition, EHC has already approved investment in ICT to increase productivity within 

the Revenues and Benefits services, but this will not suffice. There are limits to what can be 

achieved working in isolation and the sharing of services opens opportunities for other 

efficiencies. The coalition government has stressed how partnership working must be used to 

deliver efficiencies. 

2.2 It is consequently imperative that both Councils take a proactive approach in seeking and 

developing this shared service opportunity. 

2.3  In Hertfordshire, examples of outsourcing and large scale multi service mergers have taken 

place. However, this is the first shared service proposal that is specifically about Revenues 

and Benefits.

2.4  The Government’s welfare agenda includes centralising fraud investigation, the launch of the 

Universal Credit, as well as a reform of a local Council Tax benefit. Explicit details of the 

impact of each of these developments are yet to be finalised by central Government, but are 

not considered to negatively impact on the value of the business case. Implementing change 

on one site will be more cost effective than duplicating this on two sites. The Government’s 

proposals do not include local taxation and business rates, and it is considered likely that 

there will be a role for local Councils in the residual Benefits administration. This reinforces the 

need to work in collaboration. 

Page 18



-4 -

3.   Executive Summary 

3.1  This business case proposes that: 

  A single shared service is set up to deliver Housing Benefits, Council Tax, National Non 

Domestic Rates (NNDR) and  Benefit Fraud Investigation services. 

  The shared service is “hosted” by EHC. This means in effect that the service will be 

delivered operationally by officers employed by EHC. Support services, such as, Human 

Resources, Information and Communications Technology and Facilities Management, 

will be provided to the shared service by EHC.  

  The Shared Service will be operationally accountable to a joint officer board, consisting 

of the Chief Financial Officers in the two Councils and to a joint committee of Members 

from each Council. It is envisaged that the joint committee will meet two or three times  

each year. 

  The shared service “hub” (administrative base) will be based in Hertford supported by 

homeworking, flexible working and remote working policies.  

  Local service identity will be retained from the customers’ perspective.   This will include 

the retention of separate SBC and EHC letter headings, with face to face customer 

contact retained through the existing customer services arrangements at each Council in 

Stevenage, Bishop’s Stortford and Hertford. 

  Each Council retains control over discretionary areas of the service, such as 

discretionary rate relief.  

  Staff are managed as part of a single service with harmonised business processes, one 

operational structure and common terms and conditions of service.  

  The savings deliverable through these proposals are summarised below: 

2012/13 £133,000 
2013/14 onwards £173,000 

The financial information relating to the proposal, clearly sets out immediate savings of 

£132,860 in the first year after ‘go live’, followed by ongoing savings of £172,860. These are 

largely achievable from reduced staff costs, with other savings derived from achieving 

economies of scale 

3.2  An indicative implementation timetable, based on the conclusion from this Business Case, is 

summarised below:

 Reports to Executives    June  2011 

! Staff & union consultation  June / July 2011 

! Transfer SBC staff to EHC  August 2011 

! Selection process   September 2011 

! Appointments to new structure October 2011 

! Transition period    Phased 2011 

! ‘Go-live’ with single service  December 2011

Page 19



-5 -

4.  Key Requirements

4.1  Key requirements against which the business case must be tested were developed by the 

Strategic Director (Resources) (SBC) and the Director of Internal Services (EHC), with the 

Head of Service, for the purposes of shaping this Business Case.   

4.2  The requirements reflect both Councils commitment to excellent customer service, whilst 

demonstrating ongoing value for money, and building both flexibility and strength into future 

service delivery. 

4.3  By working together, sharing technology and skills, opportunities arise to place the Councils in 

a strong position for the future.  Key areas of strength are: 

  Robust service, with greater flexibility to meet future demands 

  High and stable performance 

  Efficiencies and cost reductions, with value for money 

  Flexible and adaptable workforce that can meet service demands 

  Motivated workforce that can achieve work life balance by flexible working practices 

  Greater development and career opportunities for staff. 

4.4  Success will create a platform on which to attract additional partners and drive out further 

savings and efficiencies. 

4.5  Economies of scale in the operation of the services will create scope for both excellent 

performance and sustainable efficiencies. 

4.6 Scope 

4.6.1  The scope of this Business Case is summarised in the table below. 

SBC and EHC 

Benefits 

All aspects of the administration of the Benefits scheme. Including assessment, payment and 
the recovery of overpayments.   

Local Taxation 

All aspects of the administration of Council Tax and Business Rates. Including billing, collection 
and recovery of arrears. 

Fraud 

All aspects of the investigation, detection and prevention of benefit fraud. 

4.7 Exclusions 

4.7.1  The Revenues structure at SBC historically includes Cashiers and the Security Team, which 

are excluded from the scope of the Business Case.  Alternative management arrangements 

for both of those services have been put in place.  In making those arrangements, 

opportunities have been taken to consider alternative ways of providing those services, 

which may also deliver savings.  

4.7.2  At EHC the Revenues and Benefits structure includes Sundry Debtors, which falls outside 

the scope of the Business Case.  Alternative management arrangements have been agreed. 

Page 20



-6 -

4.7.3  The scope embraces all activities that are core to the delivery of effective and efficient 

Revenues and Benefits services.  These are the functions upon which the achievement of 

savings, the strengthening of resilience and the stabilising of performance should be 

focused. 

4.7.4  Some activities and processes are conducted in part by Revenues and Benefits and in part 

by separate service areas, examples include financial reconciliation, post opening, post 

dispatch and IT system administration.  As part of the implementation of a shared service, 

these processes will be redesigned to bring clarity and agreement on demarcation between 

service areas.  

4.7.5   Both Councils retain their separate responsibilities for exercising discretions, for example, 

second homes relief and discretionary business rate relief. Receipt of income and payments 

in respect of taxes and benefits, will continue to flow in and from each Council’s bank 

account as now. 

5. Current Position 

5.1  Structurally and in terms of business processes, both EHC and SBC Revenues and Benefits 

services are broadly similar.  The services have several operational features in common, 

significantly being on the same IT system, although there are some differences in the 

geographical size and customer base. 

5.2  Both sites are vulnerable to changes in the demands on their services. The creation of a 

larger single workforce will substantially improve the ability of the services to respond 

effectively to those fluctuations. 

5.3  The comparative similarities create a strong foundation on which to develop a single shared 

service  

5.4  Other features of the two Revenues and Benefits services are set out in Appendix 1.

6. Preferred Option: Key Decision Areas 

6.1  The Revenues and Benefits Joint Working project team identified areas, key to the Business 

Case on which a recommendation to follow a particular direction would need to be agreed by 

the Strategic Director (Resources) (SBC) and the Director of Internal Services (EHC).  

Agreement was facilitated through workshop sessions, supported by working papers which set 

out relevant material for consideration.  Direction on preferred options was given at regular 

Project Sponsor meetings. 

6.2  In order to reach a recommendation for the Executives on each of the key areas, the Directors 

considered timescales for implementation, costs, the readiness of each Council to deliver in 

key areas and the potential impact on both Councils. 

6.3 Customer Interface 

6.3.1  As excellent customer service is core to these functions it is essential to maintain a walk-in 

customer interface in Stevenage, Bishop’s Stortford and Hertford. At the EHC sites, 

Revenues and Benefits customers will be served by dedicated officers from within the 

shared service. At Stevenage the current service provided by the Customer Service Centre 

(CSC) staff will be maintained.    

Page 21



-7 -

6.3.2  For telephone customers, all calls will be resolved by officers working within the shared 

service.   At Stevenage this means that calls will no longer be resolved by the Customer 

Service Centre. 

6.3.3  High priority will be given to the delivery of effective customer interfaces and this will include 

a review of all contact channels. There may be scope to develop the role of the SBC CSC in 

handling Revenues and Benefits calls in the future, but this will be subject to an evaluation 

after the shared service has gone live.  

6.3.4 Initially, customers will experience little or no difference in the ‘look and feel’ of the service 

they receive, whether calling in person, calling by phone or receiving written communication. 

However, after the service has bedded down following go-live, the roll out of customer 

service improvements, such as more self service will be developed. 

6.4     Accommodation and Facilities Management 

6.4.1  The shared service vision features one ‘host’ Council, providing accommodation and 

facilities management, as well as all other support services. The main criteria used to 

consider options for locating a shared service were costs and availability.  

6.4.2  To gain maximum efficiencies from the shared service, it will be necessary to manage the 

shared service from a single location.  The main benefits of doing this over a two site option 

are:

  Management will be reduced 

  Resilience improved 

  Teams become cohesive and more effective 

  Career prospects for staff within the service are improved 

  A more efficient IT solution can be created 

  Office accommodation at one site can be released  

6.4.3 EHC is in the process of refurbishing offices at Wallfields in Hertford, to be completed for 
the relocation of staff from Bishop’s Stortford by July 2011.  This will provide a working 
environment designed around well established working practices such as homeworking and 
flexible working, which will be key to the success of a shared Revenues and Benefits 
Service.  

6.4.4 As the service will comprise a mix of office based staff, homeworkers and outside officers 
(remote workers), the accommodation has been designed specifically to meet the needs of 
the various flexible working patterns followed by those officers. 

6.4.5    In essence, EHC accommodation and working practices associated with use of 
accommodation will be in the best state of readiness to facilitate the implementation of a 
shared service, and is also less expensive.

6.4.6  In the case of SBC staff, these proposals provide the basis to revise current work practices, 
with relevant staff provided with the opportunity, equipment and training, to work from home 
as well as in the office. Individual working arrangements would be agreed between 
management and staff, and so support an efficient cost-effective and productive workforce. 
SBC staff consultation is taking place on applying these policies and practices. 

Page 22



-8 -

6.5 Technology 

6.5.1  A Revenues and Benefits Service cannot be provided without fit for purpose, up-to-date and 
well supported IT systems. If any aspect of the IT is inadequate, it will have a direct impact 
on customer service and business performance levels.  

6.5.2  Currently, both Councils have the same Revenues and Benefits software system, which 
meets the needs of both services. This provides a sound platform on which further IT 
commonality can be built. Having a single IT solution will underpin the ability of the shared 
service to achieve economies of scale, realise efficiencies and deliver future customer 
service improvements. 

6.5.3  Initial timescales and potential costs of moving to a single IT solution have been estimated. 

This has informed the ‘Finance’ section of this document.  

6.5.4  A data link between the EHC and SBC networks will be required wherever the single 

Revenues and Benefits Service is located. This link is needed to exchange data between 

the two sites. Such data will include images of documents that customers have brought into 

the SBC Customer Service Centre, as well as a range of interfaces with the SBC’s financial 

information system.    

6.5.5  In the interest of efficiency and effectiveness, the provision of ICT Services should be co-

located with the shared service ‘hub’. Given that the EHC Wallfields site is in an advanced 

state of readiness to support the preferred option for a shared service ‘hub’, it follows that 

the ICT needs of the shared service should be provided from there.  

6.6    Change Management 

6.6.1  The law is unclear on whether or not the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 

Employment) Regulations, known as TUPE would apply to SBC Revenues and Benefits 

staff in the event that their work is transferred to EHC. However, having due regard to 

statutory guidance relating to this question, a view has been taken by Solicitors and Heads 

of HR at both Councils, that in transferring SBC staff to EHC the principles of TUPE should 

be applied. 

6.6.2  This means that in moving SBC staff to become employees of EHC, protection will be 

afforded to their terms and conditions of employment through the transfer of employment.  

6.6.3  The approach proposed for EHC staff is based around following the EHC procedures for a 

re-structure. 

6.6.4  A recruitment and selection process will be run for both staff groups simultaneously, 

ensuring every member of staff is treated equitably, regardless of their original employer.  

6.6.5  Some staff may become at risk of redundancy through this process. However over the last 

year as vacancies have arisen, these have been filled by a combination of fixed term 

contracts, and other temporary solutions, where possible.  This forward planning will reduce 

the number of staff that may be put at risk. 

 6.6.6 In line with good practice, staff consultation has already started on some elements of this 

Business Case, the feedback from which is included in covering reports to Executives. That 

consultation has included regular project sponsor meetings at Stevenage with ‘Change 

Champions’ from the Revenues, Benefits and Anti-Fraud sections. Staff and unions at both 

Councils have been provided with the same consultation documents, including a proposed 

joint recruitment and selection policy, flexible and home-working policies and an outline staff 

structure chart. In addition, staff briefings have taken place and one–to-one meetings 

Page 23



-9 -

offered. Questions and answers from both staff groups have been published on both 

intranets. 

6.6.7 Arrangements were put in place for staff to feedback on the consultation through a variety of 

means, including face to face with their manager and an HR professional, in writing or by 

email. SBC staff have had the opportunity to complete a questionnaire  in regard to the new 

working patterns proposed as EHC have been flexibly working since 2009.  The 

questionnaire will be used to identify additional concerns and issues the project team have 

to address.

6.6.8  Two periods of consultation on proposals have been scheduled. Firstly, a 30 day period 

ending on the 9th May 2011, for staff and unions to give their initial feedback. A second 30 

day period will be set aside for staff and union consultation, should the Executives agree the 

recommendations in June 2011.   

6.6.9  An evaluation of the feedback from staff has identified concerns in general regarding the 

details of the transfer and selection process. These concerns will be addressed through the 

change management process. 

6.6.10 The summary timetable for staff is as follows: 

• Staff & union consultation  08/04/11 to 08/05/11 

• Reports to Executives   June 2011 

• Staff & union consultation  June / July 2011 

• Transfer SBC staff to EHC  August 2011  

• Selection process    September 2011 

• Appointments to new structure October 2011 

• Transition period   Phased 2011 

• ‘Go-live’ with single service December 2011 

6.6.11  Consultation has started with recognised unions at both EHC and SBC. Individual and joint    

union meetings have been held. Consultation will continue throughout the process. 

6.6.12 Change management is instrumental to the success of a Revenue and Benefits shared 

service, on which an overall implementation plan will be dependent. Given the importance of 

this specialist area, dedicated support from HR Officers at both Councils are regarded as 

essential.  

6.7 Structure & Jobs 

6.7.1  Currently, each Council has a small to medium sized Revenues and Benefits Service, with 

some duplication in management and other functions. A single service allows efficiencies to 

be taken from a streamlined structure and from ancillary costs, such as those for staff 

training and IT licences.   

6.7.2  A new single structure will provide stronger resilience in service delivery at lower cost, than 

either Council could achieve if the services remained separate.   

Page 24



-10 -

6.7.3  The structure supports the core functions of Revenues and Benefits processing and Fraud 

investigation, underpinned by specialist support teams to ensure IT integrity and compliance 

with local and statutory activities. See Appendix 2.

6.7.4  The operational model has been designed to ensure that good quality service is maintained, 

with capacity to improve in areas where it is needed.  The management structure is 

streamlined, enabling significant savings to be delivered. 

6.7.5  An option to operate the shared service from a single ‘hub’, with one ‘host’ Council is 

accompanied by a desire to move staff from both Councils to common terms and conditions 

of employment. This would remove the risk of equal pay claims arising and avoid the 

unsatisfactory possibility of having staff from different organisations doing the same job, but 

on different job grades.  

6.7.6  Whilst it would be possible to introduce common terms and conditions for both staff groups 

without having a single employer, this would create unacceptable anomalies and new risks 

for both organisations. 

6.7.7  New jobs descriptions have been designed so that staff at all levels are transferable across 

that level, if necessary, whilst retaining specific professional areas of expertise for their 

routine key area of activity. This builds in flexibility for moving staff across work areas, in 

response to changing work demands. 

6.7.8  Key specialist functions are: 

 Systems Administration and service support is essential to a Revenues and Benefits 

service, which is entirely dependent on the effective operation of IT systems. 

 Outside Officers (remote workers) roles, which include rating inspections and welfare 

visits, are assimilated in order to give resilience and avoid duplication across a large 

geographical area. 

 Customer Support Officers provide administrative support to the whole service. They 

carry out a range of activities to support the work of the professional officers, as well as 

being the front line customer interface on the phone and face to face at  EHC sites.  

 Fraud staff are specialist, trained officers who focus on anti-fraud work. These posts sit 

in a section alongside officers conducting Control and reconciliation activities necessary 

for the entire service. The recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit is also dealt with in this 

area. Those staff also ensure that statutory returns are sent on time and that audit 

recommendations are complied with. Internal training is co-ordinated by this section.  

6.7.9  The take up of home and flexible working are key characteristics of this model, as 

efficiencies can be achieved through reduced sickness levels, increased staff retention and 

improved productivity.  This is a new opportunity for SBC staff to take advantage of more 

flexible working patterns which may improve work life balance.  

6.8 Governance & Management Arrangements 

6.8.1  Control of the service needs to be kept close to Members and Officers at both Councils, with 

the authority to take policy decisions retained by both Executives. 

6.8.2  Initially, a range of options for governance and management arrangements were 

considered. These include establishing a separate company limited by shares or  limited by 

guarantee, a limited liability partnership or a joint committee and a joint management board. 

Page 25



-11 -

There is a desire shared by both Councils to keep governance arrangements simple to 

maintain, affordable and which fits well with a local government ethos. 

6.8.3  The option which most closely meets the criteria is a joint committee and a joint 

management board. This option provides access to the service and control of the service for 

Officers and Members not offered by other governance options. Draft terms of reference are 

given at Appendix 3.

6.8.4  Whilst the business of a joint committee would be focused on issues such as budgets and 

service plans, responsibilities for operational management would rest with a joint 

management board. This would comprise of the Chief Finance Officers from each Council, 

the Head of the shared service, with specialist support from other Officers as required.  

6.8.5  The option to create a shared Revenues and Benefits service with Stevenage Borough 

Council under a joint governance model has already been approved by EHC Executive on 

12th October 2010, subject to this business case.  

6.8.6  In the event that either Council wishes to disengage from a shared service arrangement, the 

decision may be taken quickly and easily by a decision of either Executive.  The 

implementation of such a decision would need careful planning and resourcing between 

both Councils. 

6.8.7  Subject to the acceptance of this business case, a separate written agreement reflecting all 

the appropriate aspects will be drawn up. 

7. Anticipated Benefits 

7.1   The proposed model for a shared Revenues and Benefits service provides the opportunity 

to realise benefits which link directly to the project objectives around efficiencies, 

performance and resilience. 

7.2   The financial information relating to the proposal, clearly sets out immediate savings of 

£132,860 in the first year after ‘go live’, followed by ongoing savings of £172,860. These are 

largely achievable from reduced staff costs, with other savings derived from achieving 

economies of scale. 

7.3       Savings have already been achieved as part of the Interim Joint Management Team 

arrangements, giving total savings of more than £200,000. 

7.4   As business processes are assimilated, redesigned and streamlined, there is the potential to 

drive out further sustainable savings.  

7.5   Shared staff skills and knowledge, coupled with a robust staff structure, designed around 

core business activities of paying benefits and collecting taxes, will enable the stabilisation 

of performance across the whole business. Once performance has been stabilised, 

challenging targets will be set, to bring all performance measures into the ‘excellent’ 

category.  

7.6   In bringing together the resources and expertise of two services, levels of strength in 

resilience will be achieved, which could not be matched if the two services remain separate. 

The size of the shared service combined with the professional expertise should  strengthen 

confidence for both Councils in the capability of the service to face the vagaries of the 

service  as well as future service challenges, whether they come from legislative changes, 

customer demand or efficiency targets. 

Page 26



-12 -

7.7   Once the shared service has ‘bedded in’ customers from Stevenage and the East Herts 

district will enjoy a reliable level of service delivery at reduced costs. Once the shared 

service has been established, good practices in customer service from each Council will be 

rolled out across both customer groups.  

8. Finance 

8.1 A collaborative approach was taken to the construction of a comparable base budget for 

the Revenues and Benefits services of both Councils, as a foundation for agreeing how 

costs and savings will be shared and accounted for. The agreed form and content of the 

base budgets serves as the platform on which future years budgets for a single Revenues 

and Benefits Service will be managed. 

8.2   The financial assumptions made in creating a base budget have been made using    

information contained in the 2011/12 revenue budgets, for each Council’s Council Tax, 

Business Rates, Benefits and Anti- Fraud services. 

8.3    The base budget was constructed across the headings detailed below. 

8.3.1  Shared service operation 

Indicative operating costs, salaries and ongoing costs associated with the set up of the 

shared service.  

8.3.2  Shared service specific costs 

Costs which are either, paid by one Council but directly recharged to the other Council, or 

are local to one Council and therefore not part of the shared service. 

8.3.3  Set up costs 

Details of one off set up costs, known at the time of producing this report, are included in 

this section. 

8.3.4  Diminishing overheads 

Details of support service costs retained by the non-host Council and the proportions likely 

to be released into the savings model over a three year period. 

8.3.5  Retained costs & income 

Costs retained by each Council that do not form part of the shared service budget. These 

reflect the core payment of Benefits and receipt of subsidy.  Costs for local service delivery 

choices, including the walk in service at each site. Capital recharges, depreciation etc. 

8.4.  It is the shared service operation budget, affected by the diminishing overheads budgets 

release of savings, which produce the indicative savings that could be generated by the 

creation of a shared service. 

8.5 Appendix 4 details the above analysis, and demonstrates savings over a three year period. 

8.6 The model indicates potential savings compared with the indicative base budget as follows:

Year Saving 

2012/13 £132 860 

2013/14 £172 860 

2014/15 £172 860 

Page 27



-13 -

8.7    Following implementation of a joint management team, savings have already been secured by 

each Council (see below).  These are in addition to those forecasted for the shared service.

(SBC)  Head of Service post £50,000 in 2010/11 and 

£37,500 in 2011/12 

(EHC) Interim Joint 

management team income 

£20,000 in 2010/11 and 

£32,900 in 2011/12 

8.8    Costs & savings sharing model

Consideration was given to various models of sharing costs and savings, reflecting differences 

in the size of each Councils tax base, Benefits caseload etc. It became apparent however that 

these models would not adequately reflect the need for an extended period of transition, as 

one Council had retained support costs to discharge. 

8.9  It was also recognised that neither Council could achieve these savings in isolation. 

Accordingly, it is proposed that set up costs and savings are shared 50:50 for the first three 

full years of the shared service.  A subsequent review will be carried out to identify if this is a 

sustainable model beyond that date. 

8.10 During this first three year period, key changes proposed by central Government, such as the 

implementation of universal credit and the creation of a national anti-fraud service will impact 

on the single Benefits and Revenues Service. That impact is not fully understood at this stage, 

but as more information about the Government’s proposal become available, it may be 

necessary to review budget sharing arrangements.   

8.11 Other Finance Decisions 

8.11.1 Ad hoc funding

It is not uncommon for the Department of Work and Pensions and the Department of 

Communities and Local Government to require activities and changes in processes to be 

administered at short notice. The pattern has been for ad hoc funding to be awarded to 

Councils, to reflect the additional costs associated with these tasks. In most cases the 

funding is to reflect charges from software suppliers who carry out system upgrades.  It is 

proposed therefore that all ad hoc funding will be added to the shared service budget to 

enable the required activities to be carried out. 

8.11.2 Contingency fund

It is proposed that each Council commits to the availability of an additional £25,000 to cover 

any unanticipated costs associated with the setting up and bedding down of the shared 

service. 

8.11.3 Pension back funding

It is proposed that only current pension commitments are reflected in the shared service 

budget model. 

8.11.4 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

It is proposed that savings from the shared service will meet existing commitments in the 

Council’s respective medium term financial strategies and will not count as additional 

income streams, unless they exceed those strategy commitments. 

8.11.5 Future savings

Page 28



-14 -

It is anticipated that future savings may be released from the service once processes and 

procedures have been reviewed and redesigned.   

Any Council wishing to join the shared service will be assessed on the potential overall 

impact on the shared service and the ability to release improved savings for all parties. 

8.11.6 Financial management

Both Councils will continue to receive income streams directly from customers and 

Government agencies, ensuring cash flows are maintained. Payments between Councils 

are proposed to be made monthly. 

   Both Councils will retain separate financial records for reporting and audit purposes. 

9. Legal Considerations  

9.1   With a proposal to share a service such as Revenues and Benefits between two Councils, 

without creating a separate legal entity such as a company, there is power available to 

facilitate this. In general, the law permits a local Council, or its Executive, to arrange for 

another Council, or its Executive to discharge a function on its behalf, and for that other 

Council, or its Executive to do it. 

9.2   In pursuing this option, attention will need to be given to matters of administrative detail, 

such as: 

  the application of standing orders 

  financial regulations 

  regulation of investigatory powers 

  the relationship of the Chief Finance Officers 

  complaints and ombudsman issues 

9.3   Details aside, the three main areas of concern to be addressed first, are Procurement, 

Governance and Human Resources.  

9.4 Procurement  

9.4.1 Following recent decisions of the European Court of Justice and the UK Supreme Court 

Officers consider that the proposal set out in this report amounts to an administrative 

arrangement between two public bodies which SBC may enter into without advertising and 

tendering a contract under the European Procurement Regime. 

9.5 Governance  

9.5.1  Legislation allows for the delegation of decision taking powers between district Councils. In 

delegating responsibility to EHC for administering the Benefits scheme and the collection of 

Local Taxes, SBC will retain as Executive decisions, all policy matters relating to those 

services. 

9.6 Human Resources 

9.6.1  The proposed approach to transferring staff follows statutory guidance and provides 

protection to staff terms and conditions of employment, about which the law is otherwise 

unclear. This puts the Councils on a reasonably sure footing in an area that has not been 

tested in the courts. The proposal to move to a new structure fairly quickly after the staff 

transfer should mitigate against any issues associated with equal pay. 

Page 29



-15 -

9.7 Data Protection 

           9.71 With EHC taking the lead and being the main service provider and employer, SBC’s Data 

Protection registration may need updating to reflect transfer of data to EHC.  

9.72      SBC will also need a Data Sharing Agreement between the two participating Councils. 

10. Equalities 
10.1 As service providers, both SBC and EHC are committed to equal opportunities and fair 

access to services for everyone, no matter what their race, ethnic or national origin, religious 
belief, disability, age, sex, sexuality, marital status or income. 

10.2    Equalities impact assessments (EAI) have been conducted for EHC and SBC. The work 
force is predominately female and there are Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) issues that 
will need to be addressed.  There is a possibility of an unequal impact if appropriate policies 
and procedures are not carried through and implemented correctly; for example the 
recruitment and selection procedure and flexible working policy.  These issues will be 
addressed during the consultation and TUPE transfer process. DDA issues will need to be 
addressed under the Equalities Act.    

At this stage, no discernable equalities impact on staff have been identified. 

10.3   Equalities impact assessments have been completed by both EHC and SBC  from the 
customers perspective. Those assessments identified no equalities implications at this 
stage. However a further review will be undertaken as part of the implementation process 
should approval be given. 

10.4  The completion of equality impact assessments help ensure that proposals arising from this 

business case will be developed in a fair, transparent and accountable way.

11. Risks 

11.1  There are risks in implementing a shared service, which are summarised in the table below, 

together with suitable mitigation. An appropriate entry will be made in both Councils 

strategic risk registers, should a decision be taken to proceed with implementation. 

Risk Mitigation 

Failing to gain or maintain 
support from the top. 

Support from Senior Officers and 
/or Members is not as strong as 
required. This presents difficulties 
in securing commitment to the 
vision and for obtaining resources 
needed to implement changes. 

The business case must be 
convincing. Through consultation 
and engagement with those at the 
top, understand their concerns 
and address them  

Availability of appropriate 
resources 

Appropriate resources which are 
essential for implementation, such 
as specialist IT, Accounting or HR 
staff are not available. 

The project sponsor is responsible 
for ensuring that adequate 
resources are made available to 
the project, in a timely manner. 

Lack of experience in 
partnership working 

Poor cross-organisational and 
inter-departmental collaboration, 
with entrenched local interests 
and little commitment to work in 
partnership. 

Develop a comprehensive 
communications plan. Create 
opportunities for Officers to meet 
and explore common ground, 
focusing on areas of mutual 
interests. Make key information 
available about governance and 

Page 30



-16 -

management arrangements.  

Staff turnover increases and/or 
morale reduces in critical areas. 

Staff turnover and/or morale is 
impacted by uncertainties about 
the future. This could lead to 
shortage of knowledge and 
experience needed for managing 
transition to a single service.   

Ensure timely and appropriate 
communication with staff about 
the change. Be clear about how 
jobs will be affected by moving to 
a single service, focusing on 
potential incentives and benefits in 
new working arrangements. 

Redesign of business 
processes is poor or 
incomplete. 

Service delivery will be inefficient 
and unacceptable error levels 
likely to arise. Resources would 
need to be diverted to repair the 
situation. 

Ensure that a prioritised plan for 
process re-design is agreed, 
resourced adequately by systems 
and business analysts. 

Technology is inadequate. Technology requirements are 
poorly or incompletely understood. 
This leads to extra time and 
resource requirements in order to 
achieve satisfactory service 
delivery. 

Involve professional business and 
systems analysts, together with 
staff, users and suppliers, with a 
clear brief on business needs and 
quality standards.  

Negative messages pass into 
circulation about the shared 
service. 

Negative messages may circulate, 
through the grapevine or from 
newspaper reports. 

Create an effective 
communications plan, to help 
ensure that media relations and 
stakeholder relationships are 
professionally managed.  

Time and energy are diverted 
into repairing labour relations. 

Management time is spent 
repairing labour relations, at the 
expense of delivering future 
improvements and efficiencies. 

Lead from the top, supported by 
HR professionals, to engage with 
staff representatives, trades 
unions. Recognise and deal with 
staff concerns in advance of 
change and explain benefits that it 
may bring them. 

Slippage. Unexpected events or poor 
estimates of the anticipated 
duration of activities will delay ‘go-
live’, compromising the 
achievement of savings and 
adding costs.   

Apply rigour to the production and 
review or implementation plans, 
especially the IT implementation 
plan. Take account of the views of 
specialist IT Officers and reach 
agreement on projected 
timescales. 

11.2  Should implementation proceed, risks associated with that phase will be recorded in an 
implementation risk register and regulated either through project management protocols or 
through the shared service management structure, as appropriate.   

11.3  The greatest risk on timescale and cost lies in IT implementation. A robust and realistic 

contingency plan should be developed.  

12. Consultation 

12.1 Details of the approach being taken to staff and union consultation are given in the 
‘Change Management’ section above.  

12.2 At the time of writing this document the main concerns raised by staff are the details of the 
transfer and selection process. These are being addressed through the consultation 
process. A question and answer document has been produced, which lists all the questions 
raised by staff and unions and the responses given.  

12.3    In summary the concerns raised by the EHC unions are; the selection process, generic job 
descriptions/grades, and career paths/opportunities for staff. These again are being 

Page 31



-17 -

addressed throughout the consultation process and consideration is being given to the 
points raised.  There has been no formal feedback from Unions at SBC. 

13. Implementation 

13.1 Key dependencies exist between setting up the technology (core ICT systems configuration, 

document image data migration, telephony and network links), satisfactory movement of staff 

to the new working arrangements and readiness of accommodation for the ‘hub’. In simple 

terms, the staff cannot move until all statutory HR requirements have been satisfied and the 

accommodation is ready, with the ICT in place.  

13.2 Once those three key building blocks have been put in place (technology, staff and 

accommodation) the next major implementation phase can start. This will involve the redesign 

of business processes in order to deliver future savings and customer benefits and to ensure 

that one common set of operational procedures are being followed. 

13.3 Successful implementation will be dependent on dedicated specialist support in four areas: 

13.3.1 Technology 

An ICT specialist with a sound knowledge of the systems, network and interface 

arrangements between both Councils is needed to project manage the implementation of 

new ICT and telephony arrangements. This is an area of key risk around slippage and 

requires dedicated support.   

13.3.2 Change management 

Professional HR support, with specialist skills and knowledge in managing staff through 

unsettling times of change is essential. This support cuts across both Councils in addressing 

concerns and issues both before and after the proposed transfer of employment. It is 

important to address workforce needs in a timely and effective manner, to help maintain 

staff  morale and reduce the impact on service performance 

13.3.3 Business re-design 

Following ‘go-live’, a comprehensive review and re-design of the business processes across 

the whole of the single service will be scoped, planned and undertaken. The ‘back office’ 

processes within the Benefits and Local Taxation services are varied and complex, with 

many inter-dependencies both within and outwith the service.  Specialist business and 

system analyst resources will be needed to complete this work. 

13.3.4 Project management 

Given the scale, variety and complexity of the phases of work that will need to be completed 

in order to achieve the vision, sound project management principles need to be applied to 

the implementation of a single, shared service. A dedicated project manager will co-ordinate 

the delivery of an overall project plan, whilst allowing the new management team to focus on 

operational matters. 

     An outline implementation plan is shown at Appendix 5.

13.4  In addition to a detailed overall project implementation plan, a comprehensive stakeholder 

communication plan will be used to help manage relationships with the various stakeholders 

in the service. 

Page 32



-18 -

14. Conclusion 

14.1 Closer working between the two Councils has already demonstrated the capacity to make 

significant savings. Further savings and efficiencies will be achieved through the creation of 
a shared service which enables streamlining of both structures and processes.

14.2  The shared service option poses risks, but these can be confidently managed. 

14.3  There will be a significant strengthening of service resilience after go-live. The changes to 

business processes will ensure delivery of performance improvement is achieved and 

savings will be released. 

14.4  Overall, the business case must be measured on the extent to which the objectives are 

likely to be met, within acceptable timescales. The levels of anticipated savings, combined 

with early delivery, are such that the business case is regarded as persuasive. 

14.5  Recommendations by way of proposals to create a single shared Revenues and Benefits 

Service are the subject of separate reports to the Executives of EHC and SBC.     

Page 33



Key features of the Revenues and Benefits Services Appendix 1

Customer base EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Population of the district / 
borough 

138,114 81,074 

Geographical size of the 
district/borough 

184 sq miles 10 sq miles 

Local Taxation EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Tax base for 2010/11 57,790.60 28,570.81 

Tax Collectable debit 2010/11 £85.9 million £41.6 million 

NNDR (Business rates) 
properties 2010/11 

4096 2004 

NNDR (Business rates) 
collectable debit 2010/11 

£40 million £44 million 

The combined Revenues and Benefits services collect in excess of £200 million of local taxes and 

pay out more than £70 million of benefits each year.  These services are delivered to every 

household and business in the Councils’ districts. 

Benefit service EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Claimants at  01/02/11 7,514 8,700 

Claims at  01/02/11 12,720 14,988 

Housing & Council Tax Benefit 
paid 2010/11 

 £34.7 million £39.7 million 

The main difference between the nature of benefit caseloads arises from the different decisions 

taken around each Council’s housing stock.  In the case of EHC, the stock was transferred to two 

registered social landlords, and subsequently tenants claim rent allowance.  In the case of SBC, the 

stock remains the property of the Council, with tenants claiming rent rebate.  

Managing this difference is a simply issue of ensuring that cross-training of staff is completed at the 

earliest opportunity. 

Benefits service growth 
in caseload 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2008/09 9.20% 5.81% 

2009/10 9.38% 4.06% 

2010/11 2.42% 4.08% 

Both services have experienced significant caseload growth since mid 2008/09, as a result of 

current economic conditions.  This growth impacts on the performance of processing and assessing 

new claims.  It has also created on-going pressures associated with maintaining larger caseloads.  

Page 34



Maintaining good performance levels in this environment has been challenging.  A need to create 

additional capacity within the EHC service was addressed by investing in new IT solutions, 

including customer self service and mobile working modules.  These innovations are being rolled-

out during 2011/12. 

The economic downturn has meant added difficulties in collecting both Council Tax and Business 

Rates.  Changes to the rules for charging rates on empty business premises has added a further 

challenge, which has impacted negatively on collection rates. 

With an increase in Council Tax and Business Rates arrears, so follows an increase in action to 

recover those arrears.  This inevitably means hearings in the magistrate’s courts with the attendant 

costs of summonses and bailiff action.  This has inevitably increased the overall cost of collecting 

local taxes. 

The tables below set out comparisons of key performance measures between the two Revenues 

and Benefits Services. This clearly shows significant variations, which will be addressed as a 

priority through the shared service.  

Performance

Benefits service 
performance (days) 

New claims

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 21.58 days 30.26 days 

2008/9 22.18 days 23.22 days 

2009/10 27.96 days 28.13 days 

2010/11 27.83 days 21.64 days 

Changes in 
circumstances

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 3.29 days 15.05 days 

2008/9 1.72 days 9.11 days 

2009/10 5.72 days 10.63 days 

2010/11 6.02 days 10.06 days 

 Tax

In-year collection 
rates

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 98.4% 96.8% 

2008/9 98.6% 96.5% 

2009/10 98.6% 97.5% 

2010/11 98.5% 96.2% 

Page 35



NNDR (Business 
rates) in year 

collection rates 
EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 99.4% 99.5% 

2008/9 97.6% 97.9% 

2009/10 97.5% 96.4% 

2010/11 96.64% 95.8% 

EHC Fraud SBC Anti-Fraud 

Fraud /  
Anti- Fraud 

performance 

Sanctions secured Sanctions secured 

2007/8 98 39 

2008/9 101 37 

2009/10 116 36 

2010/11 123 48 

Service operation 

The following tables summarise the current management and operating arrangements at each 

Council. Where differences exist, they will be rationalised to improve efficiency and effectiveness.  

Customer
contact

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Walk-in Walk in customers are seen by specialist, 
generically trained Revenues & Benefits 
staff. 

Walk in customers are predominantly seen 
by the Customer Service Centre staff. 

All Benefits calls are dealt with by Benefit 
Officers within the service. 

Benefit calls are predominantly dealt with by 
Benefits Officers within the service, with a 
small proportion of calls resolved by the 
Customer Service Centre. 

Telephony 

Council Tax calls are predominantly dealt 
with by Council Tax staff, but the customer 
service team/switchboard are trained to 
resolve some low level enquiries. 

Council Tax calls are predominantly dealt 
with by the Revenues service. 

EHC Fraud SBC Anti-Fraud 

Fraud /

Anti-Fraud 

A specialist team within the Benefits service 
carry out all Benefit fraud related activities. 

They comprise one manager, one 
investigator and an admin support officer 

The legal work associated with prosecution 
cases is handled by an external legal 
company 

The Anti-Fraud team are a team within the 
internal Audit service. They comprise a 
manager shared with Hertsmere, and two 
investigators. 

The legal work associated with prosecutions 
is handled by SBC’s legal division. 

Page 36



Other significant areas are compared in the following tables. These will be rationalised or 
assimilated into a single service. 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Software 
solutions 

EHC have been using the current software 
platform for over 10 years. 

The systems administration role for both 
Revenues & Benefits is well developed 
within the service. 

SBC converted to the Capita platform in 
November 2009. 

The systems administration role has yet to be 
clarified at SBC and is partially managed with 
the IT service 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Working 
models

EHC has a flexible, remote, mobile and 
home working model. This means that a 
large number of staff work from home, use 
condensed hours, with flexible working 
patterns. 

SBC does not have policies for home 
working, flexible working or remote working. 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Administrative 
interface 

EHC has a corporate post handling service The post handling functions are partly 
handled within the service. 

Page 37



H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

 &
 B

 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

1
F

T
E

 

M
a

n
a
g
e
r-

 
re

v
e
n
u
e

s
 

1
F

T
E

 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

B
e
n
e

fi
ts

 
1
F

T
E

 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 &

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

1
F

T
E

 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
&

 F
ra

u
d

1
F

T
E

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a
n
a
g
e

r 
1

F
T

E
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a
n
a
g
e

r 
1

F
T

E
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a

n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t

 M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

1
F

T
E

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a

n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a

n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a
n
a
g
e

r 

1
F

T
E

B
e
n
e

fi
ts

 
8
F

T
E

 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
8
F

T
E

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

&
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 
1

S
y
s
te

m
s
  

2
 F

T
E

 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

1
1
F

T
E

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

1
F

T
E

T
ra

in
in

g
, 

A
p
p
e

a
l,
 s

ta
ts

 
&

 s
u
b
s
id

y
, 

R
e
tu

rn
s
 a

n
d
 

lia
is

o
n
, 

ta
k
e
 

u
p
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
, 

Q
A

 &
 P

M
, 

F
 

a
d
j,
 H

/W
 

lia
is

o
n
  

3
F

T
E

O
v
er

p
ay

m
en

ts
 

2
F

T
E

O
v
er

p
a
y
m

en
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

ss
is

ta
n
t

1
.5

F
T

E
 

In
v

es
ti

g
at

o
rs

 

2
 F

T
E

 

In
te

lli
g
e
n

c
e
 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
1
F

T
E

 

A
d
m

in
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
1
F

T
E

 

R
e

v
e
n
u

e
s
 

7
 F

T
E

 

R
e
v
e

n
u
e
s
 

7
F

T
E

 

O
u
ts

id
e 

o
ff

ic
er

s 

4
.5

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 

Page 38



             Appendix 3 

JOINT STEVENAGE AND EAST HERTS REVENUES & BENEFITS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Purpose

This is a joint committee of Stevenage Borough and East Hertfordshire District , under the 

provisions of section 10 of the Local Government Act 1972 and all regulations made thereunder. 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: 

1. To approve the annual Service Plan for the Share Revenues and Benefits Service  
2. To receive explanations of variances in service performance against the agreed Service 

Plan 
3. To approve the budget of the Shared Service and where so delegated determine requested  

virements within that budget. 
4. To give initial consideration to future development of the Shared Service and any changes  

in legislation that may effect service delivery and make recommendations thereon to the 
Executive or Officers  

5. Where it is considered appropriate, report to the Executives of the  Constituent Councils. 

The Joint Committee shall comprise three named elected Members from both authorities with full 

voting rights. The Members appointed shall serve on the committee until successors in office are 

appointed. 

The Joint Committee shall at its first meeting each year, elect one of its Members to be Chair and 

one of its Members to be Vice-Chair. With the chair from one Council and the Vice Chair from the 

other.  These positions to be rotated annually. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall unless they resign or 

cease to be Members of the Joint Committee, continue in office until their successors have been 

appointed.  

Quorum

The quorum of a meeting of the Joint Committee will be three elected members, with at least one 

from each Council. If at any part during a meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting will adjourn 

immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chair. 

Voting

Matters will be decided by the Joint Committee by a simple majority of those Members voting and 

present in the room at the time the question was put. The Chair shall take the votes by a show of 

hands.  If there are equal votes for and against, the Chair may exercise a second or casting vote. 

There will be no restriction on how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote, save that if no 

second or casting vote is made, the proposal will automatically fail. 

Administration 

The Access to Information Rules (as set out in the Constitutions of the Constituent Councils) to 
apply to all meetings. 

Each constituent Council act as host to the meetings in alternate years, with the relevant host 
Council convening those meetings, distributing the agenda, clerking the meetings and producing 
the minutes. 

Meetings to be held in January (service planning for coming year) and October for budgets and 
mid year service plan review. Constituent Councils to liaise to confirm mutually suitable 
times/dates. 

Review 

The constituent Councils will review the Joint Committee’s terms of reference annually. 

Page 39



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 

4

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

D
ra

ft
 B

u
d

g
e
t

S
B

C
E

H
C

T
o

ta
l 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

2
0
1
1
/1

2
Y

e
a
r 

0
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
a

s
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
a
s
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
a
s
e

b
u

d
g

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

3
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 &

 
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 &

 
B

e
n

e
fi

ts

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 
T

o
ta

l 
B

a
s
e
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 d
ir

e
c

t:
 

£
1
,1

4
8
,1

9
4

 
£
1
,2

1
0
,2

9
7

£
2
,3

5
8
,4

9
1

£
2
,3

5
8
,4

9
1

£
2
,2

2
1
,2

5
8

(£
1
3
7
,2

3
3
) 

£
2
,2

2
1
,2

5
8

£
2
,2

2
1
,2

5
8

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 i
n

d
ir

e
c
t:

 
£
7
,9

4
0
 

£
6
,8

8
0

£
1
4
,8

2
0

£
1
4
,8

2
0

£
1
5
,7

6
0

£
9
4
0

£
1
5
,7

6
0

£
1
5
,7

6
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 R
e
la

te
d

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
: 

£
6
,2

6
0
 

£
3
3
,0

2
0

£
3
9
,2

8
0

£
3
9
,2

8
0

£
3
9
,2

7
0

(£
1

0
)

£
3
9
,2

7
0

£
3
9
,2

7
0

S
u

p
p

li
e
s
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

£
1
6
8
,9

1
8
 

£
4
8
6
,4

5
0

£
6
5
5
,3

6
8

£
6
5
5
,3

6
8

£
6
3
0
,5

1
7

(£
2
4
,8

5
1
)

£
5
9
0
,5

1
7

£
5
9
0
,5

1
7

R
e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
: 

£
2
8
,9

9
1
 

£
5
8
2
,4

3
8

£
6
1
1
,4

2
9

£
6
1
1
,4

2
9

£
5
9
4
,6

8
8

(£
1
6
,7

4
1
)

£
5
9
4
,6

8
8

£
5
9
4
,6

8
8

S
e
t 

u
p

 C
o

s
ts

 O
n

-G
o

in
g

: 
£
0
 

£
0

£
0

£
1
5
,0

1
1

£
4
5
,0

3
4

£
4
5
,0

3
4

£
4
5
,0

3
4

£
4
5
,0

3
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
o

ta
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
h

a
ri

n
g

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 
£
1
,3

6
0
,3

0
2

 
£
2
,3

1
9
,0

8
5

£
3
,6

7
9
,3

8
7

£
3
,6

9
4
,3

9
8

£
3
,5

4
6
,5

2
7

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
) 

£
3
,5

0
6
,5

2
7

£
3
,5

0
6
,5

2
7

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

a
v

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 S
h

a
re

d
: 

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
)

(£
1
7
2
,8

6
0
)

(£
1
7
2
,8

6
0
)

E
a

s
t 

H
e

rt
s

. 
(£

6
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

S
te

v
e

n
a

g
e

(£
6
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

: 

T
o

ta
l 

£
2
3
,2

0
0
 

£
6
8
,4

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
0
 

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

S
e
t 

u
p

 C
o

s
ts

 -
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

T
o

ta
l 

£
5
2
,4

8
1
 

£
7
3
,6

8
5

£
1
2
6
,1

6
6

£
1
2
6
,1

6
6

£
0

£
0
 

£
0

£
0

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

T
o

ta
l 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
£
1
,4

3
5
,9

8
3

 
£
2
,4

6
1
,2

3
0

£
3
,8

9
7
,2

1
3

£
3
,9

1
2
,2

2
4

£
3
,6

3
8
,1

8
7

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
)

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

S
te

v
e
n

a
g

e
 D

im
in

is
h

in
g

 O
v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 C
o

s
ts

 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

 &
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
a
t 

S
B

C
) 

£
4
4
,5

0
0
 

£
0

£
4
4
,5

0
0

  
  

 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
P

ri
n
ti
n
g
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
s
 

£
1
2
,2

7
9
 

£
0

£
1
2
,2

7
9

  
  

  
  

I 
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
-e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
£
1
1
4
,9

3
4
 

£
0

£
1
1
4
,9

3
4

  
  

  
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

£
1
0
,6

5
0
 

£
0

£
1
0
,6

5
0

  
  

 
 

M
e
d
ia

 &
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

£
3
,3

8
0
 

£
0

£
3
,3

8
0

  
  

 
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

c
re

d
it
o
rs

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 d

e
b
to

rs
) 

£
1
1
,1

0
0
 

£
0

£
1
1
,1

0
0

  
  

 
 

P
o
s
t 

R
o
o
m

 R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
  

£
2
0
,1

0
8
 

£
0

£
2
0
,1

0
8

  
  

  
  

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

C
S

C
)-

c
a

lls
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
£
8
3
,4

2
4
 

£
0

£
8
3
,4

2
4

  
  

 
 

D
e
s
k
 T

o
p
 P

u
b
lis

h
in

g
 (

G
ra

p
h
ic

 D
e
s
ig

n
) 

£
1
,2

8
0
 

£
0

£
1
,2

8
0

  
  

 
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 A

p
p
o
rt

io
n
e
d
 

£
7
4
,5

6
0
 

£
0

£
7
4
,5

6
0

  
  

 
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
7
2
0
 

£
0

£
7
2
0

  
  

 
 

M
is

c
 &

 T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
5
,3

3
0
 

£
0

£
5
,3

3
0

  
  

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
im

in
is

h
in

g
 O

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 
£
3
8
2
,2

6
6
 

£
0

£
3
8
2
,2

6
6

  
  

  
  

  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 40



R
e

ta
in

e
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
ta

in
e
d

 
£
4
1
,0

7
9
,2

4
2
 

£
3
6
,8

6
6
,0

7
7

£
7
7
,9

4
5
,3

1
9

£
0

£
0

£
0
 

£
0

£
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 

£
4
2
,8

9
7
,4

9
1

£
3

9
,3

2
7

,3
0

7
£

8
2

,2
2

4
,7

9
8

£
3
,9

1
2
,2

2
4

£
3
,6

3
8
,1

8
7

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
)

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

  
  

  
  

 
 

R
e
ta

in
e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 

(£
4
1
,7

9
8
,6

1
0
)

(£
3
7
,8

5
0
,2

0
0
)

(£
7
9
,6

4
8
,8

1
0
)

  
  

  
  

 
 

R
E

T
A

IN
E

D
 B

U
D

G
E

T
S

 
(£

7
1
9
,3

6
8
)

(£
9
8
4
,1

2
3
)

(£
1
,7

0
3
,4

9
1
)

  
  

  

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
T

A
IN

E
D

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 

£
1
,0

9
8
,8

8
1

 
£
1
,4

7
7
,1

0
7

£
2
,5

7
5
,9

8
8

 
 

 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
o

 D
a

te
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
a
v
in

g
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

 
 

 
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
£
7
0
,4

0
0
 

£
1
4
6
,2

8
0

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 S
te

v
e
n

a
g

e
 D

im
in

is
h

in
g

 
O

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 C
o

s
ts

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Y

e
a
r 

0
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 Y

e
a
r 

1
2
0
1
2
/1

3
s
a
v
in

g
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 Y

e
a
r 

2
2
0
1
3
/1

4
S

a
v
in

g
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 Y

e
a
r 

3
2
0
1
4
/1

5
S

a
v
in

g

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

 &
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
a
t 

S
B

C
) 

£
4
4
,5

0
0
 

£
4
4
,5

0
0

£
0

£
4
4
,5

0
0

£
0

£
4
4
,5

0
0
 

£
0

In
te

rn
a
l 
P

ri
n
ti
n
g
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
s
 

£
1

2
,2

7
9
 

£
1
2
,2

7
9

£
0

£
1
2
,2

7
9

£
0

£
1
2
,2

7
9
 

£
0

 

I 
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
-e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
£
1
1
4
,9

3
4
 

£
1
0
9
,9

3
4

(£
5
,0

0
0
)

£
9
4
,9

3
4

(£
1
5
,0

0
0
)

£
9
4
,9

3
4
 

£
0

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

£
1
0
,6

5
0

 
£
1
0
,6

5
0

£
0

£
1
0
,6

5
0

£
0

£
1
0
,6

5
0
 

£
0

M
e
d
ia

 &
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

£
3
,3

8
0
 

£
3
,3

8
0

£
0

£
3
,3

8
0

£
0

£
3
,3

8
0
 

£
0

F
in

a
n
c
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

c
re

d
it
o
rs

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 d

e
b
to

rs
) 

£
1
1
,1

0
0
 

£
1
1
,1

0
0

£
0

£
1
1
,1

0
0

£
0

£
1
1
,1

0
0
 

£
0

P
o
s
t 

R
o
o
m

 R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
  

£
2
0
,1

0
8
 

£
1
7
,6

0
8

(£
2
,5

0
0
)

£
1
5
,6

0
8

(£
2
,0

0
0
)

£
1
5
,6

0
8
 

£
0

 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

C
S

C
)-

c
a

lls
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
£
8
3
,4

2
4
 

£
8
3
,4

2
4

£
0

£
4
3
,4

2
4

(£
4
0
,0

0
0
)

£
4
3
,4

2
4
 

£
0

D
e
s
k
 T

o
p
 P

u
b
lis

h
in

g
 (

G
ra

p
h
ic

 D
e
s
ig

n
) 

£
1
,2

8
0
 

£
1
,2

8
0

£
0

£
1
,2

8
0

£
0

£
1
,2

8
0
 

£
0

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 A

p
p
o
rt

io
n
e
d
 

£
7
4
,5

6
0
 

£
7
4
,5

6
0

£
0

£
7
4
,5

6
0

£
0

£
7
4
,5

6
0
 

£
0

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
7
2
0
 

£
7
2
0

£
0

£
7
2
0

£
0

£
7
2
0
 

£
0

M
is

c
 &

 T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
5
,3

3
0
 

£
5
,3

3
0

£
0

£
5
,3

3
0

£
0

£
5
,3

3
0
 

£
0

  
  

 
 

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
im

in
is

h
in

g
 O

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 
£
3
8
2
,2

6
6
 

£
3
7
4
,7

6
5

(£
7
,5

0
0
)

£
3
1
7
,7

6
5

(£
5
7
,0

0
0
)

£
3
1
7
,7

6
5
 

£
0

 

Page 41



�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	



�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�

�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
���
��
	


��

��
�
�

�



��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�

�
	
��
�



��
��
�




�
�
�


��
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
���
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
	
�
��
�
�	
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
� 
�
��
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
"
�
�
�
��
��
#
�
�
��

$
�
��
�
�!
�
�
�
�

�
��


�
�

�
	


��


�
�
��
	
��
	
��
��


�

�
��
�
�


�


�

�
��
��
��
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
"
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��


�	
��
�
��
	


��


�
�


�
�
�
�

�"
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

%
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
���
�


��
�

�
��
��
�


�


�
�
��


��
�

�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
"
�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
"

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

�
��
�
�


�


�
��
	
�	
�


�
�

 
	
�


�
���
�


�
�!
�
�
��
"
�
��
�
�

 
	
�


�
���
�
��
��
��
��
�


�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�"
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

&�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
	
�
��

'����������

#(����
���

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
))
)

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

&�

�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

#
(
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�#
�
��
��
$
%
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

!
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
	
��	
�
�



��

!
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
'�
�
�
�
��
�	


�

�
�
	
�
�
��


�
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��

��
�
�
�
�
��
�
"

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�

�


�
�


��
�
�	


�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
�	


�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	


�
�

�
�


�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�

�


�
�


��
�
�	


�

*

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

+
�
�
�
�,
�+
�
�"
�

-
.
/
/

 
	


�
�
��
�
��
	



%
�
�
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

�
�
 
��
��
��
��
��


�
��
�

+
�
�
�
�-
.
/
/

(
�
�
	
��
�
��
	
��
�
 
��


�

!
"
 
�!
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

0
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

)
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
	
��
���
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

#
�
�
	
�

��
�


��
��
	
�



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

�
�
��
�
��
	


��
�	
�
�
�
�
��
	
��



�
�
��
	
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

'
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�

%
�
�

��
,�
1
�
"

-
.
/
/

*

��
��
��
�
	


�
�
��
�
��
	



�
�
�


	�
��
�
�
��
�

�

��
�
�
�

�
��


�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
	�
	

�
�

�
�
�
	

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
�
"
��
	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
	
�

��
�
�

�	
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

1
�
�
�
�
�
�&
!
*
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�

�
��
�
�



��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��

�
	
�
�
�


��
�
��
	


�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

��
�


�
��
��
��
	
�
�
�
	
��
�



�

�
��
�




�
�
�


��
��
�
	
�
�
�
�


��

�
�


�


�
�
�


��
��


��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�

��
��
	


��


�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
2
�0
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

-
.
/
/

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�	


�

�
	
��

�
�
�
�


�
	�
�
�	


�
�



��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�

%
�
�

��
-
.
/
-
�2

�%
�
�

��
-
.
/
3

+
	
��
��
	
��
�
��
	


��
�
�

�


�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

%
�
�
�
�
�

(
�4

5&6#�

���������
�

Page 42



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 

 

JOINT STEVENAGE AND EAST HERTS REVENUES & 
BENEFITS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Purpose 
This is a joint committee of Stevenage Borough and East 
Hertfordshire District, under the provisions of section 10 of the 
Local Government Act 1972 and all regulations made thereunder. 
 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: 
 
1.  To approve the annual Service Plan for the Share Revenues 

and Benefits  Service  
2.  To receive explanations of variances in service performance 

against the agreed Service Plan 
3.  To approve the budget of the Shared Service and where so 

delegated determine  requested virements within that budget. 
4.  To give initial consideration to future development of the 

Shared Service and any changes in legislation that may effect 
service delivery and make recommendations thereon to the 
Executive or Officers  

5.  Where it is considered appropriate, report to the Executives 
of the Constituent Councils. 

 
The Joint Committee shall comprise three named elected Members 
from both authorities with full voting rights.  The Members 
appointed shall serve on the committee until successors in office 
are appointed. 
 
The Joint Committee shall at its first meeting each year, elect one 
of its Members to be Chair and one of its Members to be Vice-
Chair.  With the chair from one Council and the Vice Chair from the 
other.  These positions to be rotated annually.  The Chair and Vice-
Chair shall unless they resign or cease to be Members of the Joint 
Committee, continue in office until their successors have been 
appointed.  
 
Quorum 
The quorum of a meeting of the Joint Committee will be three 
elected members, with at least one from each Council.  If at any 
part during a meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting will 
adjourn immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a 
time and date fixed by the Chair. 
 
Voting 
Matters will be decided by the Joint Committee by a simple majority 
of those Members voting and present in the room at the time the 

Page 43



question was put.  The Chair shall take the votes by a show of 
hands.  If there are equal votes for and against, the Chair may 
exercise a second or casting vote.  There will be no restriction on 
how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote, save that if no 
second or casting vote is made, the proposal will automatically fail. 
 
Administration 
The Access to Information Rules (as set out in the Constitutions of 
the Constituent Councils) to apply to all meetings. 
 
Each constituent Council act as host to the meetings in alternate 
years, with the relevant host Council convening those meetings, 
distributing the agenda, clerking the meetings and producing the 
minutes. 
 
Meetings to be held in January (service planning for coming year) 
and October for budgets and mid year service plan review.  
Constituent Councils to liaise to confirm mutually suitable 
times/dates. 
 
Review 
The constituent Councils will review the Joint Committee’s terms of 
reference annually. 
 
 

Page 44



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘C’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives  

 
Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 
 

Consultation:  

Legal: See report 
 

Financial: See report.   

Staffing 
Implications 

The proposed transfer of SBC staff to EHC on 1st August 
2011, will follow TUPE principles. This means that staff 
terms and conditions of employment will be protected in 
the transfer. Shortly after the transfer, a proposed single 
structure will be implemented, subject to consultation 
with staff and unions. A recruitment and selection 
process will be undertaken to appoint to that structure. 
 
At this stage it is uncertain whether any staff will actually 
be placed at risk of redundancy as a result of the transfer 
and restructure. The flexible working policies at EHC will 
provide opportunity for staff transferring from Stevenage, 
to vary their hours or days of work. There may also be 
some ‘natural’ loss of staff from both authorities during 
the implementation period. 
 
Approximately 40 members of SBC’s workforce will be 
subject to the proposed transfer, all of whom currently 
work in Daneshill House.  
 

Human 
Resource: 

Once the proposed staff transfer takes place, East Herts 
Council becomes wholly responsible towards the 
transferring staff. 
  
It is a legal requirement that Stevenage Borough Council 
indemnify EHC against any claims that may arise from 
the transferring staff group, where the cause of the claim 
predates the transfer. 
 

Page 45



Risk 
Management: 

Significant risks, together with mitigation are set out in a 
table on pages 15 and 16 of the appended business 
case. Additional risks have been identified, as part of the 
detailed implementation plan. Those risks can be 
managed through the council’s project management 
protocols and the corporate risk management framework. 
 

Equality Equality impact assessments for East Herts Council have 
been completed.  The work force is predominately female 
and there are DDA issues that will need to be 
addressed.  There is a possibility of an unequal impact if 
appropriate policies and procedures are not carried 
through and implemented correctly; for example the 
recruitment and selection procedure and flexible working 
policy.  These issues will be addressed during the 
consultation and TUPE transfer. 
  

Service 
Delivery 
Implications 

As far as the customer experience of receiving services 
from Revenues and Benefits is concerned, it is intended 
that customers will encounter no perceptible difference 
following the creation of a joint service. The shared 
service will retain local identities for Stevenage and East 
Herts residents. 
 
After the proposed shared service is implemented, 
proposals will be developed to bring innovation and 
improvements to service delivery, such as on-line 
customer ‘self service’. 
  
The proposed changes to Revenues and Benefits are 
unprecedented at either EHC or SBC and will present 
new challenges for staff and mangers through what at 
times will be a difficult experience.  Not least amongst 
those challenges will be managing the risk that workforce 
issues impact negatively on service performance. 
Through close operational and project management, 
every effort will be made to protect service performance 
levels during the period of change. 
 

Other corporate 
implications 

The report has been guided by the work of the Pathfinder 
task and finish group, chaired by Cllr Ranger. 

 

Page 46



 1

UNISON RESPONSE TO DRAFT BUSINESS CASE OF REVENUES & BENEFITS 
SHARED SERVICE 

 
UNISON is grateful for the opportunity to respond to the above, despite the struggle to 
consult with staff and complete the report, within the one week timescale. 
 
UNISON has consistently stated that they support shared service partnerships between 
councils, where a business case identifies financial benefits and where service delivery is 
maintained or improved.  This is a viable and preferential alternative to privatisation and a 
positive way of finding efficiency savings. It can, when successful be a way of 
safeguarding both jobs and public service delivery.  
 
The business case for the proposed Revenues and Benefits shared service is well 
presented and comprehensive and it is clear that a lot of time and hard work has gone into 
this draft. 
 
UNISON’s main concerns about any shared partnership arrangement will largely be staff 
related but the viability and sustainability of the partnership is crucial and the union would 
also be looking for evidence of benefits to users of the service and to improvements in 
service delivery. Despite the economies of scale argument ‘bigger’ is not necessarily 
‘better’ as demonstrated by the banking industry which closed branches down in order to 
centralise and set up call centres. Most people will have experienced on-going frustrations 
in trying to get a banking query resolved quickly and efficiently.  Watford and Three Rivers 
shared service arrangement has also proved to be unsuccessful in respect of Revenues 
and Benefits, with a publicly reported deterioration in standard of service. 
 
UNISON will respond to the points in the draft business case report in the same order as 
they are raised and would point out that the comments incorporate the feedback received 
from staff in Revenues and Benefits. 
 
5. Current Position 
 
UNISON welcomes Stevenage as a Revenues and Benefits partner and is pleased that 
party politics are playing no part in the choice of partner. As outlined in appendix 1, there 
are many similarities as well as differences between the two councils and from the staff 
perspective a greater diversity in groups of council tax payers and benefits claimants will 
add to the variety of daily contact and experience and help both sets of staff to acquire 
additional skills and knowledge. 
 
Staff will of course require training in order to become familiar with two sets of policy rules 
and procedures. 
 
6. Accommodation and Facilities Management 
 
UNISON does have some concerns about the feasibility of fitting all staff into Wallfields 
since despite the statement in 6.4.4, the accommodation was not originally designed to fit 
in additional Stevenage employees. No one knows at this stage how many Stevenage 
employees are likely to opt for home working and without home working, there simply will 
not be enough space.  On the other hand, it does provide staff with the opportunity for 
more flexible working arrangements and staff at East Herts who have opted for home 
working on the whole thoroughly enjoy the experience. One of the main concerns however 
is the lack of IT resources to support and maintain home and remote workers. The 
reference in 2.1 to the investment of £215,000 in additional Capita software in Revenues 
and Benefits has unfortunately not yet been successfully implemented and therefore has 

Page 47



 2

not yet achieved savings or benefits of any significance.  Moreover, the Council is 
intending to delete posts in IT and reduce resources. Home and remote working requires 
support and maintenance on an on-going basis and a reduction in IT resources could have 
disastrous consequences. 
 
The above could also negate the benefits of managing a shared service from a single 
location listed in 6.4.2, since it would be difficult to create a more efficient IT solution. The 
reference to teams becoming more cohesive and effective is also open to debate, since 
teams will in future be divided between Bishop’s Stortford, Hertford and home. Managers 
will tell you how the simple task of communication to staff becomes extremely challenging 
in these circumstances and how the team spirit and shared knowledge and experience can 
evaporate over time. 
  
6.5 Technology 
 
As mentioned above, getting to grips with the technology is one of the greatest concerns of 
UNISON. This section gives only a very superficial account of the complexities of the IT 
implications and requirements to support the service. There is nothing about design of the 
server/database/citrix architecture required to serve both authorities. The economy of 
scales is not clear especially if there are two databases. Suppliers gear prices to size of 
application like population/claimants/virtual databases/council budgets. A shared service 
will increase the population and other measurable factors. The position of EDM documents 
and the linkage to account transactions appears to be glossed over but failure to provide a 
similar service to that used by East Herts would have significant customer service dis-
benefits.  
 
6.6 Change Management/TUPE 
 
UNISON has always been of the view that TUPE should apply in shared services where 
employees transfer from one employer to another. Inevitably the impact of the changes will 
be far greater for Stevenage employees, since they will not only be changing their 
employer, they will be changing location, changing their working practices and potentially 
changing their terms and conditions. For them it will be like changing to a new job.  For 
East Herts employees, there will be less dramatic changes but many employees will be 
changing roles and of course most will be relocating to Hertford shortly. For many this will 
lengthen their working day and increase their daily commute. For all employees, there is 
the threat of redundancy hanging over them. It is not going to be an easy time for anyone 
and the anxiety and uncertainty of their future job prospects should not be underestimated. 
 
In relation to TUPE it must be emphasised that the purpose of the regulations are there to 
protect employees and therefore the aim to harmonise terms and conditions must not 
override TUPE principles. It is accepted in law that TUPE is a valid defence for justifying 
why employees are on different terms and conditions. In the Employers Organisation guide 
to the TUPE regulations 2006, it states: 
“The revised Regulations make it clear that a transferee must never vary 
the contract of employment where the sole or principal reason is either 
the transfer itself or for a reason that is connected to the transfer that 
is not an economical, technical or organisational (ETO) reason entailing 
changes in the workforce. 
Any attempt to vary a contract of employment in these circumstances 
will be rendered void by the Regulations.” 
 
“The DTI guidance emphasises that the courts have interpreted that a 
proposal to vary terms and conditions to achieve harmonisation will be 

Page 48



 3

seen as being by reason of the transfer itself. Therefore, an employer 
cannot rely on an ETO reason that would potentially validate the 
variation.” 
 
There is however nothing to stop an employer from offering new terms and conditions to 
transferred employees if these are more attractive. For this particular proposed shared 
service this may well be the case but for other future shared service proposals, this may 
not apply and it is important that East Herts as an employer does not lose sight of the 
above principle.   
 
It does not appear that any thought has been given to the TUPE implications for services 
that support Revenues and Benefits in Stevenage. It stands to reason that if they are 
losing a whole service area with in their case 37 full time equivalent (FTE) posts, that this 
may have a knock on effect on support services such as HR, ICT, Customer Services and 
Accountancy and that there may be other staff which should be included on the TUPE 
transfer list. 
 
Finally, an employer has to be careful when making redundancies at a time of a TUPE 
transfer. The above guide states: 
 
“Although the revised Regulations do not introduce any significant 
changes on transfer-related dismissals it does provide some much 
needed clarity of the effect of the Regulations in these areas. 
Where, either before or after a transfer, an employee of the transferor 
or transferee is dismissed, the dismissal is automatically unfair if 
• the reason is the transfer itself or 
• the reason is connected with the transfer that is not an ETO reason 
entailing changes in the workforce. 
Where there is an ETO reason entailing changes in the workforce, then 
the dismissal is not automatically unfair but is subject to the normal 
requirements on unfair dismissal.” 
 
The question is therefore whether or not the reason for the redundancies is the transfer 
itself or an ETO reason connected with the transfer and UNISON will be seeking legal 
advice on this point. 
 
6.7 Structure and Jobs 
 
UNISON agrees that for a proposed partnership arrangement such as this a single 
structure is preferable. There are a number of structures which could be considered and 
UNISON would like to propose a slightly different one, for the following reason.  
 
The proposed structure does not appear to have the balance between Revenues and 
Benefits quite right. Compared with the existing structure, Revenues will be losing 6.64 
FTE staff and Benefits will be gaining 3.75 FTE staff. The third section in the new 
structure is split between Revenues and Benefits, however, the fourth section in the new 
structure headed Control and Fraud is almost exclusively Benefits and all the related job 
descriptions refer to Benefits tasks. 
 
This seems a strange proposal in light of the Government’s intention to create a universal 
credit in 2012 which will put at risk many Benefits jobs. It also means that Revenues staff 
will be struggling to cope with their workload. Despite the generic nature of the job 
descriptions, in reality it does not mean that Benefits staff will have the knowledge and 
experience to undertake Revenues work and vice versa. Of the proposed sections, one 

Page 49



 4

and a half are Revenues and two and a half Benefits and this places a disproportionate 
risk of redundancy on Revenues staff.  It will also not help in improving collection rates for 
both councils at a time when the government is cutting funds and both councils will need to 
maximise their income. 
 
An alternative to this would be to have three sections and split the fourth section between 
the other three. This would not only create a better balance between Revenues and 
Benefits but would create more resilience in terms of enabling some Benefits staff to gain 
more experience in Revenues work, ready for the Government changes. This would be 
similar to the current structure but with additional jobs to cope with the extra workload. It 
would also mean that any redundancies that ensue will not be Revenues staff exclusively. 
 
6.7.7 Job Descriptions 
 
UNISON is in favour of generic job descriptions where jobs are identical. However, in the 
proposed new structure, jobs have been evaluated and allocated grades on the basis of a 
generic job description where jobs are in some cases quite unique. The Job Evaluation 
panel would have had no option but to give every job with the same job description the 
same grade but UNISON believes this will have distorted the results. 
 
A good example of this is the Assistant Manager post in the Systems and Support Section. 
This post has responsibility for two employees and the main part of the job description 
applying to the post is headed ‘Systems and Support’. On the other hand the Assistant 
Manager for Benefits has responsibility for 8 employees and the main part of the job 
description applying to the posts is headed ’Benefits’. In other words the two posts are 
entirely different and UNISON believes they should have had separate job descriptions 
and been evaluated separately. This principle applies to the many other posts.  
 
A knock on effect of the distortion of the job evaluation results is that far from improving 
the career prospects of employees, it provides limited opportunities, particularly for 
Revenues staff, since there is a large void between the grade 5 Revenues/Assessment 
Officers and the grade 9 Assistant Managers. There are a limited number of grade 7 posts 
for Benefits staff but none for Revenues Officers. Many employees have raised concerns 
along these lines. 
 
7. Anticipated Benefits 
 
All the benefits listed under this section are those everyone would hope would be achieved 
but do not appear to be backed up with any hard evidence. UNISON would disagree with 
the statement ‘The financial information clearly sets out immediate savings of £132,860 in 
the first year’ in 7.2. The information is far from clear.  
 
8. Finance 
 
Despite the explanations in paragraphs 8.3.1 to 8.3.5, it is not clear what all the savings 
represent and whether they are one-off or annual and which are attributable to the full 
shared service package or consequent on the current very limited mutual arrangements.  
 
The draft appendix 4 detailing the analysis has already changed once since it was sent to 
staff. The salary figure has reduced by £120,637, the Supplies and Services figure has 
reduced by £24,950 but the Recharges figure has increased by £145,579. Hence the 
overall figure has scarcely changed. It is not clear whether this was just an error previously 
or whether the method of calculation for each figure has changed. The figures are largely 
meaningless to a lay person and require an explanation of how they are arrived at, 

Page 50



 5

particularly the recharge figures. Why is it that East Herts recharge figures are twenty 
times higher than Stevenage recharge figures?  Logic would tell you that the recharge 
figures would increase for East Herts as they take over Stevenage costs and that the 
majority of Stevenage recharge costs would disappear. How are the recharge figure made 
up and will there be a genuine saving to Stevenage or will their recharge costs simply be 
redistributed to other service areas?  Should not the Stevenage diminishing overheads be 
listed separately from their retained costs? 
 
There are many other points which arise, such as the 50:50 split which is advantageous to 
East Herts for costs but not for savings. Savings will be the difficult issue whereas costs 
become obvious as the implementation goes on. Many savings only materialize after 3 
years. There is also uncertainty from national initiatives that could have an impact on the 
economics of the shared service. 
 
Other questions are: 

• Is the contingency fund of £25,000 sufficient?  This is a low figure for unanticipated 
costs.  

• The pension back funding needs further explanation, especially in terms of any 
financial impact outside shared service budgets. 

• What is the on-going partnership specific expenditure of £91,600 and does this not 
reduce the saving of £132,860 to £81,200 split between the two authorities? 

• Is it not purely speculative to say that future savings may be released from the 
service once processes and procedures have been reviewed and redesigned? Why 
not start by reviewing these before incurring the costs of reorganisation and thereby 
gain early access to savings? 

 
10.  Equalities 
 
UNISON is disappointed not to have seen a completed Equalities Impact Assessments 
before responding to the draft business case. There will clearly be many equality issues 
arising from the proposed shared service arrangement for employees currently based in 
Stevenage and an action plan needs to be drawn up addressing any inequalities. Child 
care issues are likely to be a problem both for staff currently based in Bishop’s Stortford 
and for those in Stevenage. Home working is not always a viable alternative.  
 
11. Risks 
 
None of the risks indentified are adequately mitigated. For example just defining 
responsibility for resources does not assure they will be provided. Staff morale is not dealt 
with just by communication – listening and flexibility is as important. Why not have a 
survey to measure staff perceptions of the shared service prospects?  
 
With reference to 11.3, before an IT contingency plan is developed, a comprehensive IT 
development and implementation plan is needed. Talk of redundancies in IT is simply 
bizarre and will be counter productive. Retention of IT staff should be a priority. 
 
12. Consultation 
 
The consultation process is fine as long as it is genuine. This means listening and 
responding to the feedback from the consultation exercise.  
 
 
 

Page 51



 6

13. Implementation 
 
UNISON looks forward to seeing the more detailed implementation plan and 
comprehensive stakeholder plan referred to in 13.4. It would also be useful to know who is 
leading the project both from the IT and telephony side and who will be the dedicated 
overall project manager. It would be hoped that this role will be advertised at least 
internally. 
 
Conclusions and recommendations by UNISON 
 
UNISON would like to recommend that an independent review of the financial case is 
carried out before a final decision to proceed with the shared service arrangement is 
made. It is not clear from the information provided that there will be any large saving and 
there is a possibility that the set up costs could exceed the savings at least in the short 
term. 
 
There are clearly benefits from shared service arrangements and UNISON would want to 
ensure that these are not only financial but also lead to an improved service to users, a 
reduction in the time taken to process benefit claims and to improved collection rates for 
council tax and business rates.  
 
UNISON wants no compulsory redundancies and hopes that as with the impending Senior 
Management Review, this will be avoided if necessary by the full use of voluntary 
redundancies. Legal advice should be sought with regard to TUPE issues and 
redundancies. 
 
UNISON would like further discussions about the structure and job descriptions with a view 
to improving career paths and to ensuring a fairer allocation of staff between Revenues 
and Benefits  
 
Managing change well is essential in order to retain a skilled and experienced Revenues 
and Benefits workforce.  This means listening to staff as well as imparting information to 
them. 
 
Finally, the retention of specialist IT skills is crucial if this project is going to succeed and 
UNISON  hopes that the Council will reconsider  the decision to axe jobs in an area where 
employees are struggling to meet current demands and do not have any spare capacity  to 
devote to this or any other project.  The use of Stevenage IT specialists will help during the 
implementation phase but this will not be sufficient for on-going support and maintenance. 
 
 
 
Jane Sharp – UNISON Branch Service Conditions Officer                           22 May 2011 
   

Page 52



ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘E’ 
 
Revenue and Benefits Shared Service for East Herts and 
Stevenage 
Business case 
 
 
CMT would like to thank Unison for their comments on the 
Business case for Revenue and Benefits Shared Services.  It was 
agreed at CMT on 31 May 2011 that the Business case be 
presented to Executive on 15 June 2011. 
 
CMT note Unison support for shared services partnerships 
between Councils.  
 
CMT will respond to the points raised in the Unison paper in the 
order raised. 
 
 
Section 6: Accommodation  – The model for the Business case 
is built around a home working and flexible working model, which 
is currently working well for EHC staff.  The model has flexibility to 
be revised should this way of working not be achieved.   
 
Savings have been made in the MTFP against the investment in 
Capita kit. 
 
 
6.5 Technology – Economies of scale materialise through the 
maintenance of one instead of two separate systems at different 
locations. There is also a saving from migrating a Unix platform to 
a Windows platform, as IT officers have greater Windows 
knowledge than Unix. Because of this R&B will be able to reduce 
the remote support charge from Capita.   
 
The plan includes migrating SBC’s EDM onto the system used by 
EHC, so again there are savings in maintaining only one instead of 
two systems. This will also make it easier for R&B staff as they will 
only have to use one system. 
 
 
6.6 TUPE – There is no indication that any non R&B staff fall into 
this category. 

Page 53



6.7 Structure and Jobs 
 
The structure has been designed to ensure that the Revenues, 
Benefits and Fraud functions are supported in focussing on their 
key functions, with the  ancillary tasks and specialism provided 
with greater resilience.  The Customer support team and outside 
officers are generic across both Benefits and Revenues.  The 
Fraud service is a discrete function. 
 
There is no indication that Revenues staff are more at risk of 
redundancy than any other post.  
 
 
6.7.7 Job Descriptions 
One of the key objectives for the new shared service is greater 
resilience and this is more easily achieved by staff who have a 
flexible approach to their roles and responsibilities. It also creates 
greater opportunity to gain experience and enrichment.  Grades 
are not based on the number of staff one has responsibility for, 
and there has to be a balance between many contributory factors. 
 
Grade 7 posts are accessible for all staff. Training, Statistics, 
statutory returns, quality assurance etc are just some of the 
functions that cross all service areas. 
 
 
7 & 8  Anticipated Benefits & Finance 
 
Unison raise a number of points regarding recharge figures, which 
have previously been explained to Unison.   
 
Changes to Stevenage's diminishing overheads are listed 
separately from their retained costs. 
 
The contingency fund of £25,000 from each Council is considered 
sufficient at this time. 
 
Pension back funding will be dealt with as part of the agreement 
between each LA. 
 
The ongoing partnership expenditure of £91k is not an extra cost 
which reduces savings. It is as explained previously to Unison, 
costs which the partnership will incur but will be recharge to each 

Page 54



Council specifically, rather than shared. This includes for example 
summons costs, costs associated with prosecution of fraud cases 
etc. 
 
 
10. Equalities 
 
The EHC EIA has been sent to Unison. The SBC EIA 
accompanies their Exec report. 
 
 
Conclusions and recommendations by Unison 
 
Points raised by Unison will be considered and discussed as part 
of the Formal consultation with Unison and staff. 
 
The ICT resource needed by EHC will be considered by senior 
management as part of the review of internal services. 
 
6 June 2011 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Part I – Release 
to Press 

Meeting: Executive Agenda Item: 

Portfolio Area: Resources 4
Date: 14 June 2011 

SHARED REVENUES AND BENEFITS SERVICE 

KEY DECISION

Author –    S Tarran    Ext. 2765 
Lead Officer –  S Crudgington  Ext. 2185 
Contact Officer –  S Crudgington  Ext. 2185 

1. PURPOSE 

 To set out proposals for the creation of a single, shared Revenues and Benefits 
 Service with East Hertfordshire Council (EHC).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 That Executive support the view that a shared Revenues and Benefits service with 
EHC  is viable and will deliver benefits as described in the business case document 
titled ‘Revenues & Benefits Shared Service for East Herts & Stevenage’, shown at 
Appendix  A and agree to implement the proposals set out in this document. 

2.2  That a Joint Revenues and Benefits Shared Service Committee be established with 
EHC Council. 

2.3  That Executive approve the creation of a Joint Management Board for a shared 
Revenues and Benefits service. 

2.4  That it be approved that EHC discharge the functions of the administration of 
Council Tax, National Non-domestic Rates and the administration of the Benefits 
scheme, including the investigation and prosecution of Benefit Fraud, on behalf of 
Stevenage Borough Council.  This being in accordance with section 101 of the 
Local Government Act 1972.  The effective date for this arrangement to be agreed 
by the Chief Finance Officers at each Council. 

2.5  That it be noted that a sum of £25,000 has been provided for within the Council’s 
medium term financial strategy for unforeseen set-up costs, to be met by a 
supplementary estimate if required. 

2.6  That approval be given to splitting set-up costs and savings 50:50 between the two 
Councils for the first three years. 

Page 57



- 2 - 

2.7  That the Strategic Director (Resources) be authorised to approve a partnership 
agreement with EHC, to implement these proposals, subject to final confirmation of 
the business case.  

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1  Stevenage Borough Council has successfully worked in partnership to deliver key 
services with other public sector organisations for a number of years. The 
development of the shared services agenda (supported by both Governments in 
recent years) is a natural extension to this approach to service delivery. 

3.2 The Leader of the Council with the support of Executive has previously tasked the 
Chief Executive to investigate all opportunities to share services (particularly in the 
support services area) with other public sector organisations to reduce cost, 
increase resilience, and where possible improve performance. 

3.3 As a result the Chief Executive and Strategic Director (Resources) met with a 
number of Chief Executive’s in Hertfordshire to gauge interest and to understand 
willingness in working together to deliver services. East Hertfordshire Council 
(EHC) was identified as a key strategic partner, and there was early agreement to 
complete a business case for the provision of a Revenues and Benefits Shared 
Service.

3.4 The establishment of shared services is generally accepted as more complex to 
deliver, as opposed to internal service re-design or outsourcing, however if 
delivered, a public run shared service has the potential to : 

  Release financial resources within each Council 

  Provide greater resilience, with a broader base of staff and ICT systems 

  Provide greater opportunities for staff within a shared operation in the 
medium term 

  Deliver performance improvements using the best practices and systems of 
both Councils 

  Provide the opportunity to achieve further efficiency gains and improve 
services, for example, by extending the partnership into related areas. 

3.5 The business case is persuasive and approval is sought to implement the shared 
 service.    The business case is shown at Appendix A. 

4. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED COURSE OF ACTION AND OTHER OPTIONS 

4.1 The business case was developed around three main objectives for a   Revenues 
 and Benefits service, namely, delivering efficiencies, strengthening resilience and 
 consolidating best practise to underpin good performance. All of these objectives 
 can be achieved with  immediate benefits.  

4.2  Proposals in this report for a shared service will place control of the implementation 
 entirely in the hands of the partnering Councils, unencumbered by lengthy 
 procurement exercises and without the need to rely on third parties, with whom 
 relationships have not previously existed.  

4.3  A strong working relationship has developed between officers at all levels across
  both authorities, as the work of the Interim Joint Management Team (IJMT) has
  been undertaken over a period of several months. That relationship has already  
  brought improvements to work practices and helped secure ongoing savings. 

Page 58



- 3 - 

4.4  The project to establish the business case for a shared Revenues and Benefits  
  service started in advance of the review of shared support services with East Herts 
  Council and North Herts Council, agreed by Executive in 8 February 2011. However, 
  the objectives for a shared Revenues and Benefits Service, around efficiencies,
  performance and resilience, fit well with the aims of the overall strategic direction
  being pursued for support services more widely. 

4.5  There are distinct models through which shared services may be delivered. The
administrative model involves the creation of a joint committee, delegation of a

  function to another authority and includes arrangements for managing staff engaged 
  in delivering those functions. 

4.6 Governance: The administrative model should be the most familiar to Members
  and officers at both authorities. It is the easiest and least expensive to set up and 
  run. It is equitable and keeps control of the service close to Members and officers. It 
  has no VAT or tax implications.  

4.7  It is proposed that a Joint Committee is established for a single Revenues and  
  Benefits service, comprising three elected Members from Stevenage Borough
  Council and three from East Herts Council.  Draft terms of reference for the
  Committee are shown at Appendix B. 

4.8  It is also proposed that further details of the service provision, performance
  monitoring, conflict resolution and a disengagement protocol, be developed and
  reported to the Joint Committee for consideration.  With each Councils’ Chief
  Financial Officer being given delegated authority to approve a partnership   
  agreement. 

4.9    Customer interface: Walk-in customer contact for Stevenage customers will be  
  maintained at the Stevenage Borough Council’s Customer Service Centre in  
  Daneshill House. EHC’s walk-in customer service will continue at existing sites in 
  Bishop’s Stortford and Hertford. All customers calling by telephone will be routed to 
  the shared service. The telephony arrangements for Stevenage Borough Council’s 
  customers will be subject to a review within the first year of operation.    

4.10  Accommodation: There were three options considered.  Locate in Stevenage  
  Borough Council’s Daneshill House, locate in East Herts’ Wallfields site in Hertford 
  or seek new accommodation. The third option was discounted as unaffordable. Of 
  the two remaining options, Wallfields is less expensive than Daneshill House. That, 
  combined with the refurbishment of Wallfields, bringing that site into a state of  
  readiness for homeworking and flexible working much sooner than could be  
  achieved at Daneshill House, presents Wallfields at the most suitable site for the
  shared service.    

4.11  Technology: For practical reasons it is more effective to co-locate ICT provision
  with the staff. Having identified Wallfields as the better option for the location of
  office based staff, it follows that ICT should be provided to the shared service from 
  that site.  

4.12 Human resource considerations: From a management perspective, creating a 
single staff group, in a single structure on the same terms and conditions is not only 
fair and equitable, but would strengthen service resilience and provide a sound 
basis for achieving efficiencies. A new organisation structure is proposed, to which 
staff from both Councils will be appointed. To achieve this it is proposed to transfer 

Page 59



- 4 - 

Stevenage Borough Council’s Revenues and Benefits and Anti-Fraud staff to the 
employment of East Herts Council, applying the principles of the Transfer of 
Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations  (TUPE). The proposed date 
of transfer is 1st August 2011, subject to formal consultation with staff and unions. 

4.13 Staff and the recognised trades unions have been consulted. Staff briefings were 
held and written material about the proposals was provided. Whilst staff have sought 
clarification on a range of issues, no counter proposals have been received. Should 
a decision be taken by Executive to proceed with the proposals, further consultation 
with staff and unions will be undertaken. 

4.14 The Council commenced formal discussions with recognised trades unions in March 
2011 and formal consultation with trades unions and staff from April 2011. UNISON 
is the primary negotiating body for staff directly impacted by these proposals. 

4.15 The Council is consulting with stakeholders on the proposals, and specifically those 
to transfer to a shared service, which include:  

  transfer to a new employer  

  the date of transfer  

  the rationalisation and restructuring to take place to operate a shared service  

  the changes to work locations 

  the changes to work arrangements  

4.16  This consultation incorporates some proposed changes to terms and conditions of 
employment.

4.17  The unions have responded positively to the proposals and no objections have 
been made. Regular meetings are in place.

4.18  Staff have been consulted with on an individual basis. Currently staff concerns can 
be summarised as: 

  Change to the place of work, especially with regard to the costs and time of 
the commute, the impact the change of location has on caring responsibilities 
and whether staff will be compensated for the additional costs. 

  The viability for homeworking given the restrictions set out in EHC 
homeworking policy and the impact homeworking may have on staff morale. 

  Concerns about the new structure and selection process. 

4.19  The Joint Management Team, project team and Human Resources staff are 
dealing with these issues arising from staff on an individual basis and taking into 
account the findings from the equalities impact assessment. These concerns will 
be addressed with the staff over the coming weeks and both Human Resources 
departments will be seeking to put solutions into place before the transfer. 

4.20 Finance: A base budget for a shared service has been constructed in order to 
 identify and understand the costs associated with the Revenues and Benefits 
 Services at both Councils. This has formed the basis on which the Chief Financial 
 Officers at both Councils have agreed, in principle, to share costs and savings 
 associated with a joint budget.  As these savings require participation of both 
 Councils a 50:50 apportionment is the most equitable basis. 

4.21  The proposed business case to locate the shared service at Hertford, means that 
SBC retains some residual overheads, for example, costs associated with 

Page 60



- 5 - 

accommodation, Human Resources etc.  These are estimated at £382,000. SBC 
and EHC officers reviewed these costs and some of this relates to capital charges 
and costs that will remain with the Council, regardless of the shared service 
relocating. However £64,500 has been identified as potential savings in ICT, 
Customer Service Centre and Facilities Management and when released (projected 
to be 2013/14), these will be shared 50:50 between the two Councils.  If the sharing 
of back office services is successful, it may be possible to make further savings on 
these residual costs.

4.22 The option to create a shared Revenues and Benefits Service based on the key 
decisions above, will deliver excellent performance, strengthen resilience in the 
service and secure sustainable savings.

5.  IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  Financial Implications 

5.1.1  The shared service is projected to make savings of £133,000 in 2012/13 and 
£173,000 each year thereafter. Savings have already been achieved as part of the 
Interim Joint Management Team arrangements, giving total savings of more than 
£200,000. The future savings have been calculated on a prudent basis, but actual 
savings could exceed the figures stated above. The Chief Financial Officers have 
agreed in principle to share any partnership savings on a 50:50 basis. This would 
mean an additional saving of £66,500 to those already achieved for SBC in 
2012/13, and £86,500 in 2013/14.

5.1.2  The shared service cost to SBC includes current pension costs (16.8%), excluding 
any allowance for funding past pension costs or decisions relating to early 
retirements. Each respective Council will still have to pay to the Hertfordshire 
Pension Fund a fixed sum for past pension costs, (which for SBC is £1.15M). This 
cost will still be borne by SBC regardless of the transfer of staff to EHC and has 
been factored in to the savings estimated above.

5.1.3 In order to deliver the estimated savings there are set up costs for installing data 
links between Hertford and Stevenage and to facilitate home working for staff. The 
total one-off set up costs are projected to be £126,000.  Some of the costs relate 
specifically to SBC staff or ICT improvement for EHC. These costs have been 
borne by the relevant Council, with SBC’s share amounting to £52,480. All other 
costs have been apportioned on a 50:50 basis. The set up costs do not currently 
include any redundancy costs which would be in addition to the costs identified 
above. However, both EHC and SBC have vacant posts which are currently filled 
by temporary appointments, which is hoped will minimise redundancy costs. 

5.1.4  SBC will also gain from the ICT investment made by EHC to create capacity in the 
service and extend customer access through self service and other initiatives. 

5.2 Legal Implications   

5.2.1  Following recent decisions of the European Court of Justice and the UK Supreme 
Court, officers consider that the proposal set out in this report amounts to an 
administrative arrangement between two public bodies, which SBC may enter into 
without advertising and tendering a contract under the European Procurement 
Regime.

5.3 Risk Implications  

Page 61



- 6 - 

5.3.1 Significant risks, together with mitigation are set out in a table on pages 15 and 16 
of the appended business case. Additional risks have been identified, as part of the 
detailed implementation plan. Those risks can be managed through the Council’s 
project management protocols and the corporate risk management framework. 

5.4  Staffing and Accommodation Implications 

5.4.1 The proposed transfer of SBC staff to EHC on 1st August 2011, will follow TUPE 
principles. This means that staff terms and conditions of employment will be 
protected in the transfer. Shortly after the transfer, a proposed single structure will be 
implemented, subject to consultation with staff and unions. A recruitment and 
selection process will be undertaken to appoint to that structure. 

5.4.2 Initial feed back from staff shows that there are some concerns around relocating and 
their suitability for homeworking. These issues are being addressed through ongoing 
discussions with staff, which will include one to one meetings. It is intended to keep 
the risk of potential redundancy to a minimum, firstly through the EHC flexible 
working policy, which may provide opportunities for staff to vary working patterns. In 
addition, there may be some ‘natural’ loss of staff from both Councils during the 
implementation period.  

5.4.3 Approximately 40 members of SBC’s workforce will be subject to the proposed  
transfer, all of whom currently work in Daneshill House.

5.5 Human Resources Implications   

5.5.1 Once the proposed staff transfer takes place, EHC becomes wholly responsible 
towards the transferring staff. The Human Resources team at EHC will have a plan 
of activities designed to welcome and assimilate all new staff into the organisation. 

5.5.2  Stevenage Borough Council will be required to indemnify EHC against any claims 
that may arise from the transferring staff group, where the cause of the claim 
predates the transfer

5.6 Equalities and Diversity Implications 

5.6.1 Officers have considered the proposals set out in the report in the light of the various 
 Public Sector equalities duties imposed on the Council. 

5.6.2 As the proposals currently stand, there may be impacts in terms of caring 
 responsibilities, increased expense and greater time spent travelling to and from 
 work. These potential impacts affect the SBC staff group who are predominantly 
 women, in older age groups and on lower salaries. It is believed that the application 
 of homeworking and flexible working policies at EHC will mitigate the impacts for 
 most transferring staff.  

5.6.3 In the case of customers and residents in Stevenage, the delivery of the Revenues 
 and Benefits Services and the ways in which customers access those service will not 
 be changed in any significant way. At this stage the impact on Stevenage customers 
 and residents is neutral, in that no discernable equalities impacts have been 
 identified. 

5.7  Service Delivery Implications  

Page 62



- 7 - 

5.7.1 As far as the customer experience of receiving services from Revenues and Benefits 
 is concerned, it is intended that customers will encounter no perceptible difference 
 following the creation of a joint service. The shared service will retain local identities 
 for Stevenage and East Herts residents. 

5.7.2 After the proposed shared service is implemented, proposals will be developed to 
bring innovation and improvements to service delivery, such as on-line customer ‘self 
service’.

5.7.3 The proposed changes to Revenues and Benefits are unprecedented at either EHC 
or SBC and will present new challenges for staff and managers through what at times 
will be a difficult experience.  Not least amongst those challenges will be managing 
the risk that workforce issues impact negatively on service performance. Through 
close operational and project management, every effort will be made to protect 
service performance levels during the period of change 

5.8 Information Technology Implications 

5.8.1 The shared services ICT solution will be located in East Herts and managed by the 
East Herts ICT service. The shared service will be using one common ICT 
application provided by Capita (the system currently used by both authorities). 
Customer information will be held on separate databases. 

5.8.2 Stevenage Borough Council will benefit from the investment already made by East 
Herts in procuring additional modules of Capita that assist in delivering improved and 
more efficient business processes. All staff within the shared service will benefit from 
the proven home working solution already used by East Herts staff. 

5.8.3 The ICT solution is business critical for the shared service and it is imperative that 
work to deliver the required ICT solution is complete by December 2011. ICT staff 
from both Councils have worked together to agree an approach to delivering the 
solution which has been validated by the system supplier and which minimises the 
risk that the solution will not be delivered to the required timeframes. Both authorities 
will work together to deliver the solution with the support of an external project 
manager.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

  None 

APPENDICES 

  A - ‘Revenues and Benefits Shared Service for East Herts and Stevenage Business 
Case’

   B - Joint Committee - Draft Terms and Conditions 

   C - Equality Impact Assessment of the proposal for a shared Revenues and 
Benefits Service with East Herts Council (Staff) 

            

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Revenues and Benefits 
Shared Service 

for East Herts and Stevenage

Business Case

Page 65



Revenues and Benefits 

Shared Service for 

East Herts and Stevenage 

Business Case 

19 May 2011 

Author: Su Tarran 

Head of Revenues and Benefits Services

Page 66



-2 -

Contents
Purpose of the Business Case Document 3 
Background 3

Executive Summary 4 

Key Requirements  

Scope 

Exclusions 

5

Current Position 6

Preferred Option - Key decision areas 

Accommodation and Facilities Management 

Technology 

Customer interface 

Change management 

Structure and jobs 

Governance & management arrangements 

6

Anticipated Benefits 11 

Finance 12

Legal Considerations

Procurement 

Governance 

Human resources

14

Equalities 15

Risks 15

Consultation 17

Implementation 17

Conclusion 18

Appendices

Key features of the Revenues and Benefits service 1

Structure chart 2

Draft terms of reference for joint committee 3

Draft budget 4

Draft implementation plan 5

Page 67



-3 -

1. Purpose  

1.1  This document sets out the business case for sharing Housing Benefit and Local Taxation 

services between East Herts Council (EHC) and Stevenage Borough Council (SBC). It 

outlines the key areas considered by the joint project team and sets out a preferred option for 

consideration by the Executives at both Councils. 

1.2  Financial pressures on local Councils will be challenging for the foreseeable future. Both 

Stevenage Borough Council and East Herts Council have commendable track records in 

delivering efficiency savings.  However, the savings challenges ahead, on top of savings 

already achieved, makes further efficiencies of the scale required impossible to deliver, 

without considering an alternative delivery model for the services they provide.  

1.3  Both Councils have already committed to a shared services agenda. Housing Benefits and 

Local Taxation services in the two Councils are now jointly managed. In February 2011 both 

Executives agreed to pursue a business case for sharing support services. Sharing services 

provides an opportunity to drive out efficiencies and achieve greater resilience than would be 

available when delivering smaller scale operations individually in the respective Councils.  

1.4   A successful shared service will create opportunities for future savings by the addition of one 

or more partners and would likely be more attractive to the market, If this option is one which 

the Council’s wish to explore in the future.   

2.  Background 

2.1 The cuts to funding for local government first announced at the end of May 2010 and in the 

budget of June 2010, reinforced the need to reduce costs and improve efficiency across all 

services. SBC changed software systems from Pericles to Capita in November 2009. This 

move makes the shared service proposals possible, as this is the software system used by 

EHC. In addition, EHC has already approved investment in ICT to increase productivity within 

the Revenues and Benefits services, but this will not suffice. There are limits to what can be 

achieved working in isolation and the sharing of services opens opportunities for other 

efficiencies. The coalition government has stressed how partnership working must be used to 

deliver efficiencies. 

2.2 It is consequently imperative that both Councils take a proactive approach in seeking and 

developing this shared service opportunity. 

2.3  In Hertfordshire, examples of outsourcing and large scale multi service mergers have taken 

place. However, this is the first shared service proposal that is specifically about Revenues 

and Benefits.

2.4  The Government’s welfare agenda includes centralising fraud investigation, the launch of the 

Universal Credit, as well as a reform of a local Council Tax benefit. Explicit details of the 

impact of each of these developments are yet to be finalised by central Government, but are 

not considered to negatively impact on the value of the business case. Implementing change 

on one site will be more cost effective than duplicating this on two sites. The Government’s 

proposals do not include local taxation and business rates, and it is considered likely that 

there will be a role for local Councils in the residual Benefits administration. This reinforces the 

need to work in collaboration. 

Page 68



-4 -

3.   Executive Summary 

3.1  This business case proposes that: 

  A single shared service is set up to deliver Housing Benefits, Council Tax, National Non 

Domestic Rates (NNDR) and  Benefit Fraud Investigation services. 

  The shared service is “hosted” by EHC. This means in effect that the service will be 

delivered operationally by officers employed by EHC. Support services, such as, Human 

Resources, Information and Communications Technology and Facilities Management, 

will be provided to the shared service by EHC.  

  The Shared Service will be operationally accountable to a joint officer board, consisting 

of the Chief Financial Officers in the two Councils and to a joint committee of Members 

from each Council. It is envisaged that the joint committee will meet two or three times  

each year. 

  The shared service “hub” (administrative base) will be based in Hertford supported by 

homeworking, flexible working and remote working policies.  

  Local service identity will be retained from the customers’ perspective.   This will include 

the retention of separate SBC and EHC letter headings, with face to face customer 

contact retained through the existing customer services arrangements at each Council in 

Stevenage, Bishop’s Stortford and Hertford. 

  Each Council retains control over discretionary areas of the service, such as 

discretionary rate relief.  

  Staff are managed as part of a single service with harmonised business processes, one 

operational structure and common terms and conditions of service.  

  The savings deliverable through these proposals are summarised below: 

2012/13 £133,000 
2013/14 onwards £173,000 

The financial information relating to the proposal, clearly sets out immediate savings of 

£132,860 in the first year after ‘go live’, followed by ongoing savings of £172,860. These are 

largely achievable from reduced staff costs, with other savings derived from achieving 

economies of scale 

3.2  An indicative implementation timetable, based on the conclusion from this Business Case, is 

summarised below:

 Reports to Executives    June  2011 

! Staff & union consultation  June / July 2011 

! Transfer SBC staff to EHC  August 2011 

! Selection process   September 2011 

! Appointments to new structure October 2011 

! Transition period    Phased 2011 

! ‘Go-live’ with single service  December 2011

Page 69



-5 -

4.  Key Requirements

4.1  Key requirements against which the business case must be tested were developed by the 

Strategic Director (Resources) (SBC) and the Director of Internal Services (EHC), with the 

Head of Service, for the purposes of shaping this Business Case.   

4.2  The requirements reflect both Councils commitment to excellent customer service, whilst 

demonstrating ongoing value for money, and building both flexibility and strength into future 

service delivery. 

4.3  By working together, sharing technology and skills, opportunities arise to place the Councils in 

a strong position for the future.  Key areas of strength are: 

  Robust service, with greater flexibility to meet future demands 

  High and stable performance 

  Efficiencies and cost reductions, with value for money 

  Flexible and adaptable workforce that can meet service demands 

  Motivated workforce that can achieve work life balance by flexible working practices 

  Greater development and career opportunities for staff. 

4.4  Success will create a platform on which to attract additional partners and drive out further 

savings and efficiencies. 

4.5  Economies of scale in the operation of the services will create scope for both excellent 

performance and sustainable efficiencies. 

4.6 Scope 

4.6.1  The scope of this Business Case is summarised in the table below. 

SBC and EHC 

Benefits 

All aspects of the administration of the Benefits scheme. Including assessment, payment and 
the recovery of overpayments.   

Local Taxation 

All aspects of the administration of Council Tax and Business Rates. Including billing, collection 
and recovery of arrears. 

Fraud 

All aspects of the investigation, detection and prevention of benefit fraud. 

4.7 Exclusions 

4.7.1  The Revenues structure at SBC historically includes Cashiers and the Security Team, which 

are excluded from the scope of the Business Case.  Alternative management arrangements 

for both of those services have been put in place.  In making those arrangements, 

opportunities have been taken to consider alternative ways of providing those services, 

which may also deliver savings.  

4.7.2  At EHC the Revenues and Benefits structure includes Sundry Debtors, which falls outside 

the scope of the Business Case.  Alternative management arrangements have been agreed. 

Page 70



-6 -

4.7.3  The scope embraces all activities that are core to the delivery of effective and efficient 

Revenues and Benefits services.  These are the functions upon which the achievement of 

savings, the strengthening of resilience and the stabilising of performance should be 

focused. 

4.7.4  Some activities and processes are conducted in part by Revenues and Benefits and in part 

by separate service areas, examples include financial reconciliation, post opening, post 

dispatch and IT system administration.  As part of the implementation of a shared service, 

these processes will be redesigned to bring clarity and agreement on demarcation between 

service areas.  

4.7.5   Both Councils retain their separate responsibilities for exercising discretions, for example, 

second homes relief and discretionary business rate relief. Receipt of income and payments 

in respect of taxes and benefits, will continue to flow in and from each Council’s bank 

account as now. 

5. Current Position 

5.1  Structurally and in terms of business processes, both EHC and SBC Revenues and Benefits 

services are broadly similar.  The services have several operational features in common, 

significantly being on the same IT system, although there are some differences in the 

geographical size and customer base. 

5.2  Both sites are vulnerable to changes in the demands on their services. The creation of a 

larger single workforce will substantially improve the ability of the services to respond 

effectively to those fluctuations. 

5.3  The comparative similarities create a strong foundation on which to develop a single shared 

service  

5.4  Other features of the two Revenues and Benefits services are set out in Appendix 1.

6. Preferred Option: Key Decision Areas 

6.1  The Revenues and Benefits Joint Working project team identified areas, key to the Business 

Case on which a recommendation to follow a particular direction would need to be agreed by 

the Strategic Director (Resources) (SBC) and the Director of Internal Services (EHC).  

Agreement was facilitated through workshop sessions, supported by working papers which set 

out relevant material for consideration.  Direction on preferred options was given at regular 

Project Sponsor meetings. 

6.2  In order to reach a recommendation for the Executives on each of the key areas, the Directors 

considered timescales for implementation, costs, the readiness of each Council to deliver in 

key areas and the potential impact on both Councils. 

6.3 Customer Interface 

6.3.1  As excellent customer service is core to these functions it is essential to maintain a walk-in 

customer interface in Stevenage, Bishop’s Stortford and Hertford. At the EHC sites, 

Revenues and Benefits customers will be served by dedicated officers from within the 

shared service. At Stevenage the current service provided by the Customer Service Centre 

(CSC) staff will be maintained.    

Page 71



-7 -

6.3.2  For telephone customers, all calls will be resolved by officers working within the shared 

service.   At Stevenage this means that calls will no longer be resolved by the Customer 

Service Centre. 

6.3.3  High priority will be given to the delivery of effective customer interfaces and this will include 

a review of all contact channels. There may be scope to develop the role of the SBC CSC in 

handling Revenues and Benefits calls in the future, but this will be subject to an evaluation 

after the shared service has gone live.  

6.3.4 Initially, customers will experience little or no difference in the ‘look and feel’ of the service 

they receive, whether calling in person, calling by phone or receiving written communication. 

However, after the service has bedded down following go-live, the roll out of customer 

service improvements, such as more self service will be developed. 

6.4     Accommodation and Facilities Management 

6.4.1  The shared service vision features one ‘host’ Council, providing accommodation and 

facilities management, as well as all other support services. The main criteria used to 

consider options for locating a shared service were costs and availability.  

6.4.2  To gain maximum efficiencies from the shared service, it will be necessary to manage the 

shared service from a single location.  The main benefits of doing this over a two site option 

are:

  Management will be reduced 

  Resilience improved 

  Teams become cohesive and more effective 

  Career prospects for staff within the service are improved 

  A more efficient IT solution can be created 

  Office accommodation at one site can be released  

6.4.3 EHC is in the process of refurbishing offices at Wallfields in Hertford, to be completed for 
the relocation of staff from Bishop’s Stortford by July 2011.  This will provide a working 
environment designed around well established working practices such as homeworking and 
flexible working, which will be key to the success of a shared Revenues and Benefits 
Service.  

6.4.4 As the service will comprise a mix of office based staff, homeworkers and outside officers 
(remote workers), the accommodation has been designed specifically to meet the needs of 
the various flexible working patterns followed by those officers. 

6.4.5    In essence, EHC accommodation and working practices associated with use of 
accommodation will be in the best state of readiness to facilitate the implementation of a 
shared service, and is also less expensive.

6.4.6  In the case of SBC staff, these proposals provide the basis to revise current work practices, 
with relevant staff provided with the opportunity, equipment and training, to work from home 
as well as in the office. Individual working arrangements would be agreed between 
management and staff, and so support an efficient cost-effective and productive workforce. 
SBC staff consultation is taking place on applying these policies and practices. 

Page 72



-8 -

6.5 Technology 

6.5.1  A Revenues and Benefits Service cannot be provided without fit for purpose, up-to-date and 
well supported IT systems. If any aspect of the IT is inadequate, it will have a direct impact 
on customer service and business performance levels.  

6.5.2  Currently, both Councils have the same Revenues and Benefits software system, which 
meets the needs of both services. This provides a sound platform on which further IT 
commonality can be built. Having a single IT solution will underpin the ability of the shared 
service to achieve economies of scale, realise efficiencies and deliver future customer 
service improvements. 

6.5.3  Initial timescales and potential costs of moving to a single IT solution have been estimated. 

This has informed the ‘Finance’ section of this document.  

6.5.4  A data link between the EHC and SBC networks will be required wherever the single 

Revenues and Benefits Service is located. This link is needed to exchange data between 

the two sites. Such data will include images of documents that customers have brought into 

the SBC Customer Service Centre, as well as a range of interfaces with the SBC’s financial 

information system.    

6.5.5  In the interest of efficiency and effectiveness, the provision of ICT Services should be co-

located with the shared service ‘hub’. Given that the EHC Wallfields site is in an advanced 

state of readiness to support the preferred option for a shared service ‘hub’, it follows that 

the ICT needs of the shared service should be provided from there.  

6.6    Change Management 

6.6.1  The law is unclear on whether or not the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 

Employment) Regulations, known as TUPE would apply to SBC Revenues and Benefits 

staff in the event that their work is transferred to EHC. However, having due regard to 

statutory guidance relating to this question, a view has been taken by Solicitors and Heads 

of HR at both Councils, that in transferring SBC staff to EHC the principles of TUPE should 

be applied. 

6.6.2  This means that in moving SBC staff to become employees of EHC, protection will be 

afforded to their terms and conditions of employment through the transfer of employment.  

6.6.3  The approach proposed for EHC staff is based around following the EHC procedures for a 

re-structure. 

6.6.4  A recruitment and selection process will be run for both staff groups simultaneously, 

ensuring every member of staff is treated equitably, regardless of their original employer.  

6.6.5  Some staff may become at risk of redundancy through this process. However over the last 

year as vacancies have arisen, these have been filled by a combination of fixed term 

contracts, and other temporary solutions, where possible.  This forward planning will reduce 

the number of staff that may be put at risk. 

 6.6.6 In line with good practice, staff consultation has already started on some elements of this 

Business Case, the feedback from which is included in covering reports to Executives. That 

consultation has included regular project sponsor meetings at Stevenage with ‘Change 

Champions’ from the Revenues, Benefits and Anti-Fraud sections. Staff and unions at both 

Councils have been provided with the same consultation documents, including a proposed 

joint recruitment and selection policy, flexible and home-working policies and an outline staff 

structure chart. In addition, staff briefings have taken place and one–to-one meetings 

Page 73



-9 -

offered. Questions and answers from both staff groups have been published on both 

intranets. 

6.6.7 Arrangements were put in place for staff to feedback on the consultation through a variety of 

means, including face to face with their manager and an HR professional, in writing or by 

email. SBC staff have had the opportunity to complete a questionnaire  in regard to the new 

working patterns proposed as EHC have been flexibly working since 2009.  The 

questionnaire will be used to identify additional concerns and issues the project team have 

to address.

6.6.8  Two periods of consultation on proposals have been scheduled. Firstly, a 30 day period 

ending on the 9th May 2011, for staff and unions to give their initial feedback. A second 30 

day period will be set aside for staff and union consultation, should the Executives agree the 

recommendations in June 2011.   

6.6.9  An evaluation of the feedback from staff has identified concerns in general regarding the 

details of the transfer and selection process. These concerns will be addressed through the 

change management process. 

6.6.10 The summary timetable for staff is as follows: 

• Staff & union consultation  08/04/11 to 08/05/11 

• Reports to Executives   June 2011 

• Staff & union consultation  June / July 2011 

• Transfer SBC staff to EHC  August 2011  

• Selection process    September 2011 

• Appointments to new structure October 2011 

• Transition period   Phased 2011 

• ‘Go-live’ with single service December 2011 

6.6.11  Consultation has started with recognised unions at both EHC and SBC. Individual and joint    

union meetings have been held. Consultation will continue throughout the process. 

6.6.12 Change management is instrumental to the success of a Revenue and Benefits shared 

service, on which an overall implementation plan will be dependent. Given the importance of 

this specialist area, dedicated support from HR Officers at both Councils are regarded as 

essential.  

6.7 Structure & Jobs 

6.7.1  Currently, each Council has a small to medium sized Revenues and Benefits Service, with 

some duplication in management and other functions. A single service allows efficiencies to 

be taken from a streamlined structure and from ancillary costs, such as those for staff 

training and IT licences.   

6.7.2  A new single structure will provide stronger resilience in service delivery at lower cost, than 

either Council could achieve if the services remained separate.   

Page 74



-10 -

6.7.3  The structure supports the core functions of Revenues and Benefits processing and Fraud 

investigation, underpinned by specialist support teams to ensure IT integrity and compliance 

with local and statutory activities. See Appendix 2.

6.7.4  The operational model has been designed to ensure that good quality service is maintained, 

with capacity to improve in areas where it is needed.  The management structure is 

streamlined, enabling significant savings to be delivered. 

6.7.5  An option to operate the shared service from a single ‘hub’, with one ‘host’ Council is 

accompanied by a desire to move staff from both Councils to common terms and conditions 

of employment. This would remove the risk of equal pay claims arising and avoid the 

unsatisfactory possibility of having staff from different organisations doing the same job, but 

on different job grades.  

6.7.6  Whilst it would be possible to introduce common terms and conditions for both staff groups 

without having a single employer, this would create unacceptable anomalies and new risks 

for both organisations. 

6.7.7  New jobs descriptions have been designed so that staff at all levels are transferable across 

that level, if necessary, whilst retaining specific professional areas of expertise for their 

routine key area of activity. This builds in flexibility for moving staff across work areas, in 

response to changing work demands. 

6.7.8  Key specialist functions are: 

 Systems Administration and service support is essential to a Revenues and Benefits 

service, which is entirely dependent on the effective operation of IT systems. 

 Outside Officers (remote workers) roles, which include rating inspections and welfare 

visits, are assimilated in order to give resilience and avoid duplication across a large 

geographical area. 

 Customer Support Officers provide administrative support to the whole service. They 

carry out a range of activities to support the work of the professional officers, as well as 

being the front line customer interface on the phone and face to face at  EHC sites.  

 Fraud staff are specialist, trained officers who focus on anti-fraud work. These posts sit 

in a section alongside officers conducting Control and reconciliation activities necessary 

for the entire service. The recovery of overpaid Housing Benefit is also dealt with in this 

area. Those staff also ensure that statutory returns are sent on time and that audit 

recommendations are complied with. Internal training is co-ordinated by this section.  

6.7.9  The take up of home and flexible working are key characteristics of this model, as 

efficiencies can be achieved through reduced sickness levels, increased staff retention and 

improved productivity.  This is a new opportunity for SBC staff to take advantage of more 

flexible working patterns which may improve work life balance.  

6.8 Governance & Management Arrangements 

6.8.1  Control of the service needs to be kept close to Members and Officers at both Councils, with 

the authority to take policy decisions retained by both Executives. 

6.8.2  Initially, a range of options for governance and management arrangements were 

considered. These include establishing a separate company limited by shares or  limited by 

guarantee, a limited liability partnership or a joint committee and a joint management board. 

Page 75



-11 -

There is a desire shared by both Councils to keep governance arrangements simple to 

maintain, affordable and which fits well with a local government ethos. 

6.8.3  The option which most closely meets the criteria is a joint committee and a joint 

management board. This option provides access to the service and control of the service for 

Officers and Members not offered by other governance options. Draft terms of reference are 

given at Appendix 3.

6.8.4  Whilst the business of a joint committee would be focused on issues such as budgets and 

service plans, responsibilities for operational management would rest with a joint 

management board. This would comprise of the Chief Finance Officers from each Council, 

the Head of the shared service, with specialist support from other Officers as required.  

6.8.5  The option to create a shared Revenues and Benefits service with Stevenage Borough 

Council under a joint governance model has already been approved by EHC Executive on 

12th October 2010, subject to this business case.  

6.8.6  In the event that either Council wishes to disengage from a shared service arrangement, the 

decision may be taken quickly and easily by a decision of either Executive.  The 

implementation of such a decision would need careful planning and resourcing between 

both Councils. 

6.8.7  Subject to the acceptance of this business case, a separate written agreement reflecting all 

the appropriate aspects will be drawn up. 

7. Anticipated Benefits 

7.1   The proposed model for a shared Revenues and Benefits service provides the opportunity 

to realise benefits which link directly to the project objectives around efficiencies, 

performance and resilience. 

7.2   The financial information relating to the proposal, clearly sets out immediate savings of 

£132,860 in the first year after ‘go live’, followed by ongoing savings of £172,860. These are 

largely achievable from reduced staff costs, with other savings derived from achieving 

economies of scale. 

7.3       Savings have already been achieved as part of the Interim Joint Management Team 

arrangements, giving total savings of more than £200,000. 

7.4   As business processes are assimilated, redesigned and streamlined, there is the potential to 

drive out further sustainable savings.  

7.5   Shared staff skills and knowledge, coupled with a robust staff structure, designed around 

core business activities of paying benefits and collecting taxes, will enable the stabilisation 

of performance across the whole business. Once performance has been stabilised, 

challenging targets will be set, to bring all performance measures into the ‘excellent’ 

category.  

7.6   In bringing together the resources and expertise of two services, levels of strength in 

resilience will be achieved, which could not be matched if the two services remain separate. 

The size of the shared service combined with the professional expertise should  strengthen 

confidence for both Councils in the capability of the service to face the vagaries of the 

service  as well as future service challenges, whether they come from legislative changes, 

customer demand or efficiency targets. 

Page 76



-12 -

7.7   Once the shared service has ‘bedded in’ customers from Stevenage and the East Herts 

district will enjoy a reliable level of service delivery at reduced costs. Once the shared 

service has been established, good practices in customer service from each Council will be 

rolled out across both customer groups.  

8. Finance 

8.1 A collaborative approach was taken to the construction of a comparable base budget for 

the Revenues and Benefits services of both Councils, as a foundation for agreeing how 

costs and savings will be shared and accounted for. The agreed form and content of the 

base budgets serves as the platform on which future years budgets for a single Revenues 

and Benefits Service will be managed. 

8.2   The financial assumptions made in creating a base budget have been made using    

information contained in the 2011/12 revenue budgets, for each Council’s Council Tax, 

Business Rates, Benefits and Anti- Fraud services. 

8.3    The base budget was constructed across the headings detailed below. 

8.3.1  Shared service operation 

Indicative operating costs, salaries and ongoing costs associated with the set up of the 

shared service.  

8.3.2  Shared service specific costs 

Costs which are either, paid by one Council but directly recharged to the other Council, or 

are local to one Council and therefore not part of the shared service. 

8.3.3  Set up costs 

Details of one off set up costs, known at the time of producing this report, are included in 

this section. 

8.3.4  Diminishing overheads 

Details of support service costs retained by the non-host Council and the proportions likely 

to be released into the savings model over a three year period. 

8.3.5  Retained costs & income 

Costs retained by each Council that do not form part of the shared service budget. These 

reflect the core payment of Benefits and receipt of subsidy.  Costs for local service delivery 

choices, including the walk in service at each site. Capital recharges, depreciation etc. 

8.4.  It is the shared service operation budget, affected by the diminishing overheads budgets 

release of savings, which produce the indicative savings that could be generated by the 

creation of a shared service. 

8.5 Appendix 4 details the above analysis, and demonstrates savings over a three year period. 

8.6 The model indicates potential savings compared with the indicative base budget as follows:

Year Saving 

2012/13 £132 860 

2013/14 £172 860 

2014/15 £172 860 

Page 77



-13 -

8.7    Following implementation of a joint management team, savings have already been secured by 

each Council (see below).  These are in addition to those forecasted for the shared service.

(SBC)  Head of Service post £50,000 in 2010/11 and 

£37,500 in 2011/12 

(EHC) Interim Joint 

management team income 

£20,000 in 2010/11 and 

£32,900 in 2011/12 

8.8    Costs & savings sharing model

Consideration was given to various models of sharing costs and savings, reflecting differences 

in the size of each Councils tax base, Benefits caseload etc. It became apparent however that 

these models would not adequately reflect the need for an extended period of transition, as 

one Council had retained support costs to discharge. 

8.9  It was also recognised that neither Council could achieve these savings in isolation. 

Accordingly, it is proposed that set up costs and savings are shared 50:50 for the first three 

full years of the shared service.  A subsequent review will be carried out to identify if this is a 

sustainable model beyond that date. 

8.10 During this first three year period, key changes proposed by central Government, such as the 

implementation of universal credit and the creation of a national anti-fraud service will impact 

on the single Benefits and Revenues Service. That impact is not fully understood at this stage, 

but as more information about the Government’s proposal become available, it may be 

necessary to review budget sharing arrangements.   

8.11 Other Finance Decisions 

8.11.1 Ad hoc funding

It is not uncommon for the Department of Work and Pensions and the Department of 

Communities and Local Government to require activities and changes in processes to be 

administered at short notice. The pattern has been for ad hoc funding to be awarded to 

Councils, to reflect the additional costs associated with these tasks. In most cases the 

funding is to reflect charges from software suppliers who carry out system upgrades.  It is 

proposed therefore that all ad hoc funding will be added to the shared service budget to 

enable the required activities to be carried out. 

8.11.2 Contingency fund

It is proposed that each Council commits to the availability of an additional £25,000 to cover 

any unanticipated costs associated with the setting up and bedding down of the shared 

service. 

8.11.3 Pension back funding

It is proposed that only current pension commitments are reflected in the shared service 

budget model. 

8.11.4 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

It is proposed that savings from the shared service will meet existing commitments in the 

Council’s respective medium term financial strategies and will not count as additional 

income streams, unless they exceed those strategy commitments. 

8.11.5 Future savings

Page 78



-14 -

It is anticipated that future savings may be released from the service once processes and 

procedures have been reviewed and redesigned.   

Any Council wishing to join the shared service will be assessed on the potential overall 

impact on the shared service and the ability to release improved savings for all parties. 

8.11.6 Financial management

Both Councils will continue to receive income streams directly from customers and 

Government agencies, ensuring cash flows are maintained. Payments between Councils 

are proposed to be made monthly. 

   Both Councils will retain separate financial records for reporting and audit purposes. 

9. Legal Considerations  

9.1   With a proposal to share a service such as Revenues and Benefits between two Councils, 

without creating a separate legal entity such as a company, there is power available to 

facilitate this. In general, the law permits a local Council, or its Executive, to arrange for 

another Council, or its Executive to discharge a function on its behalf, and for that other 

Council, or its Executive to do it. 

9.2   In pursuing this option, attention will need to be given to matters of administrative detail, 

such as: 

  the application of standing orders 

  financial regulations 

  regulation of investigatory powers 

  the relationship of the Chief Finance Officers 

  complaints and ombudsman issues 

9.3   Details aside, the three main areas of concern to be addressed first, are Procurement, 

Governance and Human Resources.  

9.4 Procurement  

9.4.1 Following recent decisions of the European Court of Justice and the UK Supreme Court 

Officers consider that the proposal set out in this report amounts to an administrative 

arrangement between two public bodies which SBC may enter into without advertising and 

tendering a contract under the European Procurement Regime. 

9.5 Governance  

9.5.1  Legislation allows for the delegation of decision taking powers between district Councils. In 

delegating responsibility to EHC for administering the Benefits scheme and the collection of 

Local Taxes, SBC will retain as Executive decisions, all policy matters relating to those 

services. 

9.6 Human Resources 

9.6.1  The proposed approach to transferring staff follows statutory guidance and provides 

protection to staff terms and conditions of employment, about which the law is otherwise 

unclear. This puts the Councils on a reasonably sure footing in an area that has not been 

tested in the courts. The proposal to move to a new structure fairly quickly after the staff 

transfer should mitigate against any issues associated with equal pay. 

Page 79



-15 -

9.7 Data Protection 

           9.71 With EHC taking the lead and being the main service provider and employer, SBC’s Data 

Protection registration may need updating to reflect transfer of data to EHC.  

9.72      SBC will also need a Data Sharing Agreement between the two participating Councils. 

10. Equalities 
10.1 As service providers, both SBC and EHC are committed to equal opportunities and fair 

access to services for everyone, no matter what their race, ethnic or national origin, religious 
belief, disability, age, sex, sexuality, marital status or income. 

10.2    Equalities impact assessments (EAI) have been conducted for EHC and SBC. The work 
force is predominately female and there are Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) issues that 
will need to be addressed.  There is a possibility of an unequal impact if appropriate policies 
and procedures are not carried through and implemented correctly; for example the 
recruitment and selection procedure and flexible working policy.  These issues will be 
addressed during the consultation and TUPE transfer process. DDA issues will need to be 
addressed under the Equalities Act.    

At this stage, no discernable equalities impact on staff have been identified. 

10.3   Equalities impact assessments have been completed by both EHC and SBC  from the 
customers perspective. Those assessments identified no equalities implications at this 
stage. However a further review will be undertaken as part of the implementation process 
should approval be given. 

10.4  The completion of equality impact assessments help ensure that proposals arising from this 

business case will be developed in a fair, transparent and accountable way.

11. Risks 

11.1  There are risks in implementing a shared service, which are summarised in the table below, 

together with suitable mitigation. An appropriate entry will be made in both Councils 

strategic risk registers, should a decision be taken to proceed with implementation. 

Risk Mitigation 

Failing to gain or maintain 
support from the top. 

Support from Senior Officers and 
/or Members is not as strong as 
required. This presents difficulties 
in securing commitment to the 
vision and for obtaining resources 
needed to implement changes. 

The business case must be 
convincing. Through consultation 
and engagement with those at the 
top, understand their concerns 
and address them  

Availability of appropriate 
resources 

Appropriate resources which are 
essential for implementation, such 
as specialist IT, Accounting or HR 
staff are not available. 

The project sponsor is responsible 
for ensuring that adequate 
resources are made available to 
the project, in a timely manner. 

Lack of experience in 
partnership working 

Poor cross-organisational and 
inter-departmental collaboration, 
with entrenched local interests 
and little commitment to work in 
partnership. 

Develop a comprehensive 
communications plan. Create 
opportunities for Officers to meet 
and explore common ground, 
focusing on areas of mutual 
interests. Make key information 
available about governance and 

Page 80



-16 -

management arrangements.  

Staff turnover increases and/or 
morale reduces in critical areas. 

Staff turnover and/or morale is 
impacted by uncertainties about 
the future. This could lead to 
shortage of knowledge and 
experience needed for managing 
transition to a single service.   

Ensure timely and appropriate 
communication with staff about 
the change. Be clear about how 
jobs will be affected by moving to 
a single service, focusing on 
potential incentives and benefits in 
new working arrangements. 

Redesign of business 
processes is poor or 
incomplete. 

Service delivery will be inefficient 
and unacceptable error levels 
likely to arise. Resources would 
need to be diverted to repair the 
situation. 

Ensure that a prioritised plan for 
process re-design is agreed, 
resourced adequately by systems 
and business analysts. 

Technology is inadequate. Technology requirements are 
poorly or incompletely understood. 
This leads to extra time and 
resource requirements in order to 
achieve satisfactory service 
delivery. 

Involve professional business and 
systems analysts, together with 
staff, users and suppliers, with a 
clear brief on business needs and 
quality standards.  

Negative messages pass into 
circulation about the shared 
service. 

Negative messages may circulate, 
through the grapevine or from 
newspaper reports. 

Create an effective 
communications plan, to help 
ensure that media relations and 
stakeholder relationships are 
professionally managed.  

Time and energy are diverted 
into repairing labour relations. 

Management time is spent 
repairing labour relations, at the 
expense of delivering future 
improvements and efficiencies. 

Lead from the top, supported by 
HR professionals, to engage with 
staff representatives, trades 
unions. Recognise and deal with 
staff concerns in advance of 
change and explain benefits that it 
may bring them. 

Slippage. Unexpected events or poor 
estimates of the anticipated 
duration of activities will delay ‘go-
live’, compromising the 
achievement of savings and 
adding costs.   

Apply rigour to the production and 
review or implementation plans, 
especially the IT implementation 
plan. Take account of the views of 
specialist IT Officers and reach 
agreement on projected 
timescales. 

11.2  Should implementation proceed, risks associated with that phase will be recorded in an 
implementation risk register and regulated either through project management protocols or 
through the shared service management structure, as appropriate.   

11.3  The greatest risk on timescale and cost lies in IT implementation. A robust and realistic 

contingency plan should be developed.  

12. Consultation 

12.1 Details of the approach being taken to staff and union consultation are given in the 
‘Change Management’ section above.  

12.2 At the time of writing this document the main concerns raised by staff are the details of the 
transfer and selection process. These are being addressed through the consultation 
process. A question and answer document has been produced, which lists all the questions 
raised by staff and unions and the responses given.  

12.3    In summary the concerns raised by the EHC unions are; the selection process, generic job 
descriptions/grades, and career paths/opportunities for staff. These again are being 

Page 81



-17 -

addressed throughout the consultation process and consideration is being given to the 
points raised.  There has been no formal feedback from Unions at SBC. 

13. Implementation 

13.1 Key dependencies exist between setting up the technology (core ICT systems configuration, 

document image data migration, telephony and network links), satisfactory movement of staff 

to the new working arrangements and readiness of accommodation for the ‘hub’. In simple 

terms, the staff cannot move until all statutory HR requirements have been satisfied and the 

accommodation is ready, with the ICT in place.  

13.2 Once those three key building blocks have been put in place (technology, staff and 

accommodation) the next major implementation phase can start. This will involve the redesign 

of business processes in order to deliver future savings and customer benefits and to ensure 

that one common set of operational procedures are being followed. 

13.3 Successful implementation will be dependent on dedicated specialist support in four areas: 

13.3.1 Technology 

An ICT specialist with a sound knowledge of the systems, network and interface 

arrangements between both Councils is needed to project manage the implementation of 

new ICT and telephony arrangements. This is an area of key risk around slippage and 

requires dedicated support.   

13.3.2 Change management 

Professional HR support, with specialist skills and knowledge in managing staff through 

unsettling times of change is essential. This support cuts across both Councils in addressing 

concerns and issues both before and after the proposed transfer of employment. It is 

important to address workforce needs in a timely and effective manner, to help maintain 

staff  morale and reduce the impact on service performance 

13.3.3 Business re-design 

Following ‘go-live’, a comprehensive review and re-design of the business processes across 

the whole of the single service will be scoped, planned and undertaken. The ‘back office’ 

processes within the Benefits and Local Taxation services are varied and complex, with 

many inter-dependencies both within and outwith the service.  Specialist business and 

system analyst resources will be needed to complete this work. 

13.3.4 Project management 

Given the scale, variety and complexity of the phases of work that will need to be completed 

in order to achieve the vision, sound project management principles need to be applied to 

the implementation of a single, shared service. A dedicated project manager will co-ordinate 

the delivery of an overall project plan, whilst allowing the new management team to focus on 

operational matters. 

     An outline implementation plan is shown at Appendix 5.

13.4  In addition to a detailed overall project implementation plan, a comprehensive stakeholder 

communication plan will be used to help manage relationships with the various stakeholders 

in the service. 

Page 82



-18 -

14. Conclusion 

14.1 Closer working between the two Councils has already demonstrated the capacity to make 

significant savings. Further savings and efficiencies will be achieved through the creation of 
a shared service which enables streamlining of both structures and processes.

14.2  The shared service option poses risks, but these can be confidently managed. 

14.3  There will be a significant strengthening of service resilience after go-live. The changes to 

business processes will ensure delivery of performance improvement is achieved and 

savings will be released. 

14.4  Overall, the business case must be measured on the extent to which the objectives are 

likely to be met, within acceptable timescales. The levels of anticipated savings, combined 

with early delivery, are such that the business case is regarded as persuasive. 

14.5  Recommendations by way of proposals to create a single shared Revenues and Benefits 

Service are the subject of separate reports to the Executives of EHC and SBC.     

Page 83



Key features of the Revenues and Benefits Services Appendix 1

Customer base EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Population of the district / 
borough 

138,114 81,074 

Geographical size of the 
district/borough 

184 sq miles 10 sq miles 

Local Taxation EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Tax base for 2010/11 57,790.60 28,570.81 

Tax Collectable debit 2010/11 £85.9 million £41.6 million 

NNDR (Business rates) 
properties 2010/11 

4096 2004 

NNDR (Business rates) 
collectable debit 2010/11 

£40 million £44 million 

The combined Revenues and Benefits services collect in excess of £200 million of local taxes and 

pay out more than £70 million of benefits each year.  These services are delivered to every 

household and business in the Councils’ districts. 

Benefit service EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Claimants at  01/02/11 7,514 8,700 

Claims at  01/02/11 12,720 14,988 

Housing & Council Tax Benefit 
paid 2010/11 

 £34.7 million £39.7 million 

The main difference between the nature of benefit caseloads arises from the different decisions 

taken around each Council’s housing stock.  In the case of EHC, the stock was transferred to two 

registered social landlords, and subsequently tenants claim rent allowance.  In the case of SBC, the 

stock remains the property of the Council, with tenants claiming rent rebate.  

Managing this difference is a simply issue of ensuring that cross-training of staff is completed at the 

earliest opportunity. 

Benefits service growth 
in caseload 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2008/09 9.20% 5.81% 

2009/10 9.38% 4.06% 

2010/11 2.42% 4.08% 

Both services have experienced significant caseload growth since mid 2008/09, as a result of 

current economic conditions.  This growth impacts on the performance of processing and assessing 

new claims.  It has also created on-going pressures associated with maintaining larger caseloads.  

Page 84



Maintaining good performance levels in this environment has been challenging.  A need to create 

additional capacity within the EHC service was addressed by investing in new IT solutions, 

including customer self service and mobile working modules.  These innovations are being rolled-

out during 2011/12. 

The economic downturn has meant added difficulties in collecting both Council Tax and Business 

Rates.  Changes to the rules for charging rates on empty business premises has added a further 

challenge, which has impacted negatively on collection rates. 

With an increase in Council Tax and Business Rates arrears, so follows an increase in action to 

recover those arrears.  This inevitably means hearings in the magistrate’s courts with the attendant 

costs of summonses and bailiff action.  This has inevitably increased the overall cost of collecting 

local taxes. 

The tables below set out comparisons of key performance measures between the two Revenues 

and Benefits Services. This clearly shows significant variations, which will be addressed as a 

priority through the shared service.  

Performance

Benefits service 
performance (days) 

New claims

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 21.58 days 30.26 days 

2008/9 22.18 days 23.22 days 

2009/10 27.96 days 28.13 days 

2010/11 27.83 days 21.64 days 

Changes in 
circumstances

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 3.29 days 15.05 days 

2008/9 1.72 days 9.11 days 

2009/10 5.72 days 10.63 days 

2010/11 6.02 days 10.06 days 

 Tax

In-year collection 
rates

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 98.4% 96.8% 

2008/9 98.6% 96.5% 

2009/10 98.6% 97.5% 

2010/11 98.5% 96.2% 

Page 85



NNDR (Business 
rates) in year 

collection rates 
EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 99.4% 99.5% 

2008/9 97.6% 97.9% 

2009/10 97.5% 96.4% 

2010/11 96.64% 95.8% 

EHC Fraud SBC Anti-Fraud 

Fraud /  
Anti- Fraud 

performance 

Sanctions secured Sanctions secured 

2007/8 98 39 

2008/9 101 37 

2009/10 116 36 

2010/11 123 48 

Service operation 

The following tables summarise the current management and operating arrangements at each 

Council. Where differences exist, they will be rationalised to improve efficiency and effectiveness.  

Customer
contact

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Walk-in Walk in customers are seen by specialist, 
generically trained Revenues & Benefits 
staff. 

Walk in customers are predominantly seen 
by the Customer Service Centre staff. 

All Benefits calls are dealt with by Benefit 
Officers within the service. 

Benefit calls are predominantly dealt with by 
Benefits Officers within the service, with a 
small proportion of calls resolved by the 
Customer Service Centre. 

Telephony 

Council Tax calls are predominantly dealt 
with by Council Tax staff, but the customer 
service team/switchboard are trained to 
resolve some low level enquiries. 

Council Tax calls are predominantly dealt 
with by the Revenues service. 

EHC Fraud SBC Anti-Fraud 

Fraud /

Anti-Fraud 

A specialist team within the Benefits service 
carry out all Benefit fraud related activities. 

They comprise one manager, one 
investigator and an admin support officer 

The legal work associated with prosecution 
cases is handled by an external legal 
company 

The Anti-Fraud team are a team within the 
internal Audit service. They comprise a 
manager shared with Hertsmere, and two 
investigators. 

The legal work associated with prosecutions 
is handled by SBC’s legal division. 

Page 86



Other significant areas are compared in the following tables. These will be rationalised or 
assimilated into a single service. 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Software 
solutions 

EHC have been using the current software 
platform for over 10 years. 

The systems administration role for both 
Revenues & Benefits is well developed 
within the service. 

SBC converted to the Capita platform in 
November 2009. 

The systems administration role has yet to be 
clarified at SBC and is partially managed with 
the IT service 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Working 
models

EHC has a flexible, remote, mobile and 
home working model. This means that a 
large number of staff work from home, use 
condensed hours, with flexible working 
patterns. 

SBC does not have policies for home 
working, flexible working or remote working. 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Administrative 
interface 

EHC has a corporate post handling service The post handling functions are partly 
handled within the service. 

Page 87



H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

 &
 B

 
s
h
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

1
F

T
E

 

M
a

n
a
g
e
r-

 
re

v
e
n
u
e

s
 

1
F

T
E

 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

B
e
n
e

fi
ts

 
1
F

T
E

 

M
a
n
a

g
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 &

 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

1
F

T
E

 

M
a
n

a
g
e
r 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
&

 F
ra

u
d

1
F

T
E

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a
n
a
g
e

r 
1

F
T

E
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a
n
a
g
e

r 
1

F
T

E
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a

n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

 

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t

 M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

1
F

T
E

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a

n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a

n
a
g
e
r 

1
F

T
E

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

 M
a
n
a
g
e

r 

1
F

T
E

B
e
n
e

fi
ts

 
8
F

T
E

 
B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
8
F

T
E

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

&
 

s
e
rv

ic
e

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 
1

S
y
s
te

m
s
  

2
 F

T
E

 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

1
1
F

T
E

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p

o
rt

 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t 

1
F

T
E

T
ra

in
in

g
, 

A
p
p
e

a
l,
 s

ta
ts

 
&

 s
u
b
s
id

y
, 

R
e
tu

rn
s
 a

n
d
 

lia
is

o
n
, 

ta
k
e
 

u
p
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
, 

Q
A

 &
 P

M
, 

F
 

a
d
j,
 H

/W
 

lia
is

o
n
  

3
F

T
E

O
v
er

p
ay

m
en

ts
 

2
F

T
E

O
v
er

p
a
y
m

en
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

ss
is

ta
n
t

1
.5

F
T

E
 

In
v

es
ti

g
at

o
rs

 

2
 F

T
E

 

In
te

lli
g
e
n

c
e
 

o
ff

ic
e

r 
1
F

T
E

 

A
d
m

in
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
a
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
1
F

T
E

 

R
e

v
e
n
u

e
s
 

7
 F

T
E

 

R
e
v
e

n
u
e
s
 

7
F

T
E

 

O
u
ts

id
e 

o
ff

ic
er

s 

4
.5

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 

Page 88



             Appendix 3 

JOINT STEVENAGE AND EAST HERTS REVENUES & BENEFITS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Purpose

This is a joint committee of Stevenage Borough and East Hertfordshire District , under the 

provisions of section 10 of the Local Government Act 1972 and all regulations made thereunder. 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: 

1. To approve the annual Service Plan for the Share Revenues and Benefits Service  
2. To receive explanations of variances in service performance against the agreed Service 

Plan 
3. To approve the budget of the Shared Service and where so delegated determine requested  

virements within that budget. 
4. To give initial consideration to future development of the Shared Service and any changes  

in legislation that may effect service delivery and make recommendations thereon to the 
Executive or Officers  

5. Where it is considered appropriate, report to the Executives of the  Constituent Councils. 

The Joint Committee shall comprise three named elected Members from both authorities with full 

voting rights. The Members appointed shall serve on the committee until successors in office are 

appointed. 

The Joint Committee shall at its first meeting each year, elect one of its Members to be Chair and 

one of its Members to be Vice-Chair. With the chair from one Council and the Vice Chair from the 

other.  These positions to be rotated annually. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall unless they resign or 

cease to be Members of the Joint Committee, continue in office until their successors have been 

appointed.  

Quorum

The quorum of a meeting of the Joint Committee will be three elected members, with at least one 

from each Council. If at any part during a meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting will adjourn 

immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chair. 

Voting

Matters will be decided by the Joint Committee by a simple majority of those Members voting and 

present in the room at the time the question was put. The Chair shall take the votes by a show of 

hands.  If there are equal votes for and against, the Chair may exercise a second or casting vote. 

There will be no restriction on how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote, save that if no 

second or casting vote is made, the proposal will automatically fail. 

Administration 

The Access to Information Rules (as set out in the Constitutions of the Constituent Councils) to 
apply to all meetings. 

Each constituent Council act as host to the meetings in alternate years, with the relevant host 
Council convening those meetings, distributing the agenda, clerking the meetings and producing 
the minutes. 

Meetings to be held in January (service planning for coming year) and October for budgets and 
mid year service plan review. Constituent Councils to liaise to confirm mutually suitable 
times/dates. 

Review 

The constituent Councils will review the Joint Committee’s terms of reference annually. 

Page 89



A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 

4

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 S

h
a
re

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e

D
ra

ft
 B

u
d

g
e
t

S
B

C
E

H
C

T
o

ta
l 

b
u

d
g

e
ts

2
0
1
1
/1

2
Y

e
a
r 

0
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
a

s
e

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

1
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
a
s
e
 b

u
d

g
e
t 

Y
e
a
r 

2
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

b
a
s
e

b
u

d
g

e
t

Y
e
a
r 

3
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 &

 
B

e
n

e
fi

ts
R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 &

 
B

e
n

e
fi

ts

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 
T

o
ta

l 
B

a
s
e
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

  
  

  
  

  
 

  
 

 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 d
ir

e
c

t:
 

£
1
,1

4
8
,1

9
4

 
£
1
,2

1
0
,2

9
7

£
2
,3

5
8
,4

9
1

£
2
,3

5
8
,4

9
1

£
2
,2

2
1
,2

5
8

(£
1
3
7
,2

3
3
) 

£
2
,2

2
1
,2

5
8

£
2
,2

2
1
,2

5
8

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

 i
n

d
ir

e
c
t:

 
£
7
,9

4
0
 

£
6
,8

8
0

£
1
4
,8

2
0

£
1
4
,8

2
0

£
1
5
,7

6
0

£
9
4
0

£
1
5
,7

6
0

£
1
5
,7

6
0

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 R
e
la

te
d

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s
: 

£
6
,2

6
0
 

£
3
3
,0

2
0

£
3
9
,2

8
0

£
3
9
,2

8
0

£
3
9
,2

7
0

(£
1

0
)

£
3
9
,2

7
0

£
3
9
,2

7
0

S
u

p
p

li
e
s
 &

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

£
1
6
8
,9

1
8
 

£
4
8
6
,4

5
0

£
6
5
5
,3

6
8

£
6
5
5
,3

6
8

£
6
3
0
,5

1
7

(£
2
4
,8

5
1
)

£
5
9
0
,5

1
7

£
5
9
0
,5

1
7

R
e
c
h

a
rg

e
s
: 

£
2
8
,9

9
1
 

£
5
8
2
,4

3
8

£
6
1
1
,4

2
9

£
6
1
1
,4

2
9

£
5
9
4
,6

8
8

(£
1
6
,7

4
1
)

£
5
9
4
,6

8
8

£
5
9
4
,6

8
8

S
e
t 

u
p

 C
o

s
ts

 O
n

-G
o

in
g

: 
£
0
 

£
0

£
0

£
1
5
,0

1
1

£
4
5
,0

3
4

£
4
5
,0

3
4

£
4
5
,0

3
4

£
4
5
,0

3
4

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
o

ta
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
h

a
ri

n
g

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 
£
1
,3

6
0
,3

0
2

 
£
2
,3

1
9
,0

8
5

£
3
,6

7
9
,3

8
7

£
3
,6

9
4
,3

9
8

£
3
,5

4
6
,5

2
7

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
) 

£
3
,5

0
6
,5

2
7

£
3
,5

0
6
,5

2
7

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

a
v

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 S
h

a
re

d
: 

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
)

(£
1
7
2
,8

6
0
)

(£
1
7
2
,8

6
0
)

E
a

s
t 

H
e

rt
s

. 
(£

6
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

S
te

v
e

n
a

g
e

(£
6
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

(£
8
6
,4

3
0
)

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

: 

T
o

ta
l 

£
2
3
,2

0
0
 

£
6
8
,4

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
0
 

£
9
1
,6

6
0

£
9
1
,6

6
0

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

S
e
t 

u
p

 C
o

s
ts

 -
o

n
e
 o

ff
 

T
o

ta
l 

£
5
2
,4

8
1
 

£
7
3
,6

8
5

£
1
2
6
,1

6
6

£
1
2
6
,1

6
6

£
0

£
0
 

£
0

£
0

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

T
o

ta
l 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
£
1
,4

3
5
,9

8
3

 
£
2
,4

6
1
,2

3
0

£
3
,8

9
7
,2

1
3

£
3
,9

1
2
,2

2
4

£
3
,6

3
8
,1

8
7

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
)

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

S
te

v
e
n

a
g

e
 D

im
in

is
h

in
g

 O
v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 C
o

s
ts

 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

 &
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
a
t 

S
B

C
) 

£
4
4
,5

0
0
 

£
0

£
4
4
,5

0
0

  
  

 
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
P

ri
n
ti
n
g
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
s
 

£
1
2
,2

7
9
 

£
0

£
1
2
,2

7
9

  
  

  
  

I 
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
-e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
£
1
1
4
,9

3
4
 

£
0

£
1
1
4
,9

3
4

  
  

  
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

£
1
0
,6

5
0
 

£
0

£
1
0
,6

5
0

  
  

 
 

M
e
d
ia

 &
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

£
3
,3

8
0
 

£
0

£
3
,3

8
0

  
  

 
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

c
re

d
it
o
rs

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 d

e
b
to

rs
) 

£
1
1
,1

0
0
 

£
0

£
1
1
,1

0
0

  
  

 
 

P
o
s
t 

R
o
o
m

 R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
  

£
2
0
,1

0
8
 

£
0

£
2
0
,1

0
8

  
  

  
  

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

C
S

C
)-

c
a

lls
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
£
8
3
,4

2
4
 

£
0

£
8
3
,4

2
4

  
  

 
 

D
e
s
k
 T

o
p
 P

u
b
lis

h
in

g
 (

G
ra

p
h
ic

 D
e
s
ig

n
) 

£
1
,2

8
0
 

£
0

£
1
,2

8
0

  
  

 
 

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 A

p
p
o
rt

io
n
e
d
 

£
7
4
,5

6
0
 

£
0

£
7
4
,5

6
0

  
  

 
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
7
2
0
 

£
0

£
7
2
0

  
  

 
 

M
is

c
 &

 T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
5
,3

3
0
 

£
0

£
5
,3

3
0

  
  

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
im

in
is

h
in

g
 O

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 
£
3
8
2
,2

6
6
 

£
0

£
3
8
2
,2

6
6

  
  

  
  

  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 90



R
e

ta
in

e
d

 E
x

p
e

n
d

it
u

re
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
ta

in
e
d

 
£
4
1
,0

7
9
,2

4
2
 

£
3
6
,8

6
6
,0

7
7

£
7
7
,9

4
5
,3

1
9

£
0

£
0

£
0
 

£
0

£
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 

£
4
2
,8

9
7
,4

9
1

£
3

9
,3

2
7

,3
0

7
£

8
2

,2
2

4
,7

9
8

£
3
,9

1
2
,2

2
4

£
3
,6

3
8
,1

8
7

(£
1
3
2
,8

6
0
)

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

£
3
,5

9
8
,1

8
7

  
  

  
  

 
 

R
e
ta

in
e
d

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 

(£
4
1
,7

9
8
,6

1
0
)

(£
3
7
,8

5
0
,2

0
0
)

(£
7
9
,6

4
8
,8

1
0
)

  
  

  
  

 
 

R
E

T
A

IN
E

D
 B

U
D

G
E

T
S

 
(£

7
1
9
,3

6
8
)

(£
9
8
4
,1

2
3
)

(£
1
,7

0
3
,4

9
1
)

  
  

  

T
O

T
A

L
 R

E
T

A
IN

E
D

 A
N

D
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 

£
1
,0

9
8
,8

8
1

 
£
1
,4

7
7
,1

0
7

£
2
,5

7
5
,9

8
8

 
 

 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 t
o

 D
a

te
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

2
0
1
1
/1

2

S
a
v
in

g
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 a
n

d
 R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

 
 

 
 

S
a
v
in

g
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

 
£
7
0
,4

0
0
 

£
1
4
6
,2

8
0

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

h
a

n
g

e
s

 t
o

 S
te

v
e
n

a
g

e
 D

im
in

is
h

in
g

 
O

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 C
o

s
ts

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Y

e
a
r 

0
2
0
1
2
/1

3
 Y

e
a
r 

1
2
0
1
2
/1

3
s
a
v
in

g
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 Y

e
a
r 

2
2
0
1
3
/1

4
S

a
v
in

g
2
0
1
4
/1

5
 Y

e
a
r 

3
2
0
1
4
/1

5
S

a
v
in

g

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

 &
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
a
t 

S
B

C
) 

£
4
4
,5

0
0
 

£
4
4
,5

0
0

£
0

£
4
4
,5

0
0

£
0

£
4
4
,5

0
0
 

£
0

In
te

rn
a
l 
P

ri
n
ti
n
g
 o

v
e
rh

e
a
d
s
 

£
1

2
,2

7
9
 

£
1
2
,2

7
9

£
0

£
1
2
,2

7
9

£
0

£
1
2
,2

7
9
 

£
0

 

I 
T

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
-e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 
£
1
1
4
,9

3
4
 

£
1
0
9
,9

3
4

(£
5
,0

0
0
)

£
9
4
,9

3
4

(£
1
5
,0

0
0
)

£
9
4
,9

3
4
 

£
0

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 

£
1
0
,6

5
0

 
£
1
0
,6

5
0

£
0

£
1
0
,6

5
0

£
0

£
1
0
,6

5
0
 

£
0

M
e
d
ia

 &
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

£
3
,3

8
0
 

£
3
,3

8
0

£
0

£
3
,3

8
0

£
0

£
3
,3

8
0
 

£
0

F
in

a
n
c
e
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

c
re

d
it
o
rs

, 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t,
 d

e
b
to

rs
) 

£
1
1
,1

0
0
 

£
1
1
,1

0
0

£
0

£
1
1
,1

0
0

£
0

£
1
1
,1

0
0
 

£
0

P
o
s
t 

R
o
o
m

 R
e
c
h
a
rg

e
  

£
2
0
,1

0
8
 

£
1
7
,6

0
8

(£
2
,5

0
0
)

£
1
5
,6

0
8

(£
2
,0

0
0
)

£
1
5
,6

0
8
 

£
0

 
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

C
S

C
)-

c
a

lls
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
£
8
3
,4

2
4
 

£
8
3
,4

2
4

£
0

£
4
3
,4

2
4

(£
4
0
,0

0
0
)

£
4
3
,4

2
4
 

£
0

D
e
s
k
 T

o
p
 P

u
b
lis

h
in

g
 (

G
ra

p
h
ic

 D
e
s
ig

n
) 

£
1
,2

8
0
 

£
1
,2

8
0

£
0

£
1
,2

8
0

£
0

£
1
,2

8
0
 

£
0

C
e
n
tr

a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 A

p
p
o
rt

io
n
e
d
 

£
7
4
,5

6
0
 

£
7
4
,5

6
0

£
0

£
7
4
,5

6
0

£
0

£
7
4
,5

6
0
 

£
0

E
m

p
lo

y
e
e
 i
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
7
2
0
 

£
7
2
0

£
0

£
7
2
0

£
0

£
7
2
0
 

£
0

M
is

c
 &

 T
h
ir
d
 P

a
rt

y
 I

n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

£
5
,3

3
0
 

£
5
,3

3
0

£
0

£
5
,3

3
0

£
0

£
5
,3

3
0
 

£
0

  
  

 
 

  
 

T
o

ta
l 

D
im

in
is

h
in

g
 O

v
e
rh

e
a
d

s
 &

 R
e
ta

in
e
d

 
£
3
8
2
,2

6
6
 

£
3
7
4
,7

6
5

(£
7
,5

0
0
)

£
3
1
7
,7

6
5

(£
5
7
,0

0
0
)

£
3
1
7
,7

6
5
 

£
0

 

Page 91



�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	



�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�

�

�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
���
��
	


��

��
�
�

�



��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�

�
	
��
�



��
��
�




�
�
�


��
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
���
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
	
�
��
�
�	
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
� 
�
��
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
"
�
�
�
��
��
#
�
�
��

$
�
��
�
�!
�
�
�
�

�
��


�
�

�
	


��


�
�
��
	
��
	
��
��


�

�
��
�
�


�


�

�
��
��
��
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
"
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
��


�	
��
�
��
	


��


�
�


�
�
�
�

�"
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

%
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�


�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
���
�


��
�

�
��
��
�


�


�
�
��


��
�

�
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
"
�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
"

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

�
��
�
�


�


�
��
	
�	
�


�
�

 
	
�


�
���
�


�
�!
�
�
��
"
�
��
�
�

 
	
�


�
���
�
��
��
��
��
�


�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�"
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

&�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
	
�
��

'����������

#(����
���

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
))
)

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

&�

�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

#
(
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�#
�
��
��
$
%
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

!
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
	
��	
�
�



��

!
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
'�
�
�
�
��
�	


�

�
�
	
�
�
��


�
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��

��
�
�
�
�
��
�
"

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�

�


�
�


��
�
�	


�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
�	


�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	


�
�

�
�


�
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
�

�


�
�


��
�
�	


�

*

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

+
�
�
�
�,
�+
�
�"
�

-
.
/
/

 
	


�
�
��
�
��
	



%
�
�
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

�
�
 
��
��
��
��
��


�
��
�

+
�
�
�
�-
.
/
/

(
�
�
	
��
�
��
	
��
�
 
��


�

!
"
 
�!
&
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

0
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

)
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
	
��
���
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

#
�
�
	
�

��
�


��
��
	
�



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
-
.
/
/

�
�
��
�
��
	


��
�	
�
�
�
�
��
	
��



�
�
��
	
�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

'
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�

%
�
�

��
,�
1
�
"

-
.
/
/

*

��
��
��
�
	


�
�
��
�
��
	



�
�
�


	�
��
�
�
��
�

�

��
�
�
�

�
��


�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
	�
	

�
�

�
�
�
	

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
�
"
��
	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
	
�

��
�
�

�	
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

1
�
�
�
�
�
�&
!
*
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�

�
��
�
�



��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��

�
	
�
�
�


��
�
��
	


�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

��
�


�
��
��
��
	
�
�
�
	
��
�



�

�
��
�




�
�
�


��
��
�
	
�
�
�
�


��

�
�


�


�
�
�


��
��


��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�

��
��
	


��


�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
2
�0
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

-
.
/
/

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
��
�	


�

�
	
��

�
�
�
�


�
	�
�
�	


�
�



��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�

%
�
�

��
-
.
/
-
�2

�%
�
�

��
-
.
/
3

+
	
��
��
	
��
�
��
	


��
�
�

�


�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

%
�
�
�
�
�

(
�4

5&6#�

���������
�

Page 92



             Appendix B 

JOINT STEVENAGE AND EAST HERTS REVENUES & BENEFITS EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Purpose

This is a joint committee of Stevenage Borough and East Hertfordshire District , under the 

provisions of section 10 of the Local Government Act 1972 and all regulations made thereunder. 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: 

1. To approve the annual Service Plan for the Share Revenues and Benefits Service  
2. To receive explanations of variances in service performance against the agreed Service 

Plan
3. To approve the budget of the Shared Service and where so delegated determine requested  

virements within that budget. 
4. To give initial consideration to future development of the Shared Service and any changes  

in legislation that may effect service delivery and make recommendations thereon to the 
Executive or Officers

5. Where it is considered appropriate, report to the Executives of the  Constituent Councils. 

The Joint Committee shall comprise three named elected Members from both authorities with full 

voting rights. The Members appointed shall serve on the committee until successors in office are 

appointed.

The Joint Committee shall at its first meeting each year, elect one of its Members to be Chair and 

one of its Members to be Vice-Chair. With the chair from one Council and the Vice Chair from the 

other.  These positions to be rotated annually. The Chair and Vice-Chair shall unless they resign or 

cease to be Members of the Joint Committee, continue in office until their successors have been 

appointed.

Quorum

The quorum of a meeting of the Joint Committee will be three elected members, with at least one 

from each Council. If at any part during a meeting, a quorum is not present, the meeting will adjourn 

immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time and date fixed by the Chair. 

Voting

Matters will be decided by the Joint Committee by a simple majority of those Members voting and 

present in the room at the time the question was put. The Chair shall take the votes by a show of 

hands.  If there are equal votes for and against, the Chair may exercise a second or casting vote. 

There will be no restriction on how the Chair chooses to exercise a casting vote, save that if no 

second or casting vote is made, the proposal will automatically fail. 

Administration

The Access to Information Rules (as set out in the Constitutions of the Constituent Councils) to 
apply to all meetings. 

Each constituent Council act as host to the meetings in alternate years, with the relevant host 
Council convening those meetings, distributing the agenda, clerking the meetings and producing 
the minutes. 

Meetings to be held in January (service planning for coming year) and October for budgets and 
mid year service plan review. Constituent Councils to liaise to confirm mutually suitable 
times/dates. 

Review 

The constituent Councils will review the Joint Committee’s terms of reference annually. 

Page 93



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



           Appendix C  
Equality Impact Assessment of the proposals for a shared Revenues and 
Benefits Service with East Herts Council (staff)

Lead
Assessor 

M Simpson
Assessment 
team  

M Sheriff

Start date  13/05/11 End date 14/06/11
Review 
date

01/08/11

Stevenage Borough Council as a service provider, employer and community leader is committed to 
achieving equal opportunity, being wholly inclusive and ensuring fair access for everyone, no matter what 
their race, ethnic or national origin, religious belief, disability, age, sex, sexuality, marital status or income. 
Equality Impact Assessments (EqIAs) are an important part of the process in ensuring that our intention 
is translated into action. 

Carrying out EqIAs helps to ensure that decisions taken by Stevenage Borough Council are made in a 
fair, transparent and accountable way, considering the needs and the rights of different people in the 
community. An EqIA is essentially a tool for service improvement - to ensure we focus on the needs of 
our customers, the people of Stevenage.  

EqIAs take the user through the process of considering available evidence of the impact of a policy, 
service or function on equality groups with the aim of identifying actions to eliminate any identified 
discrimination and take opportunities to promote equality and diversity. EqIAs will be carried out on 
Stevenage Borough Council services, policies and functions that are relevant to equality and are new or 
under review.  

Based on the ‘protected characteristics’ under the Equality Act 2010, the EqIA considers the impact on the 
following groups when reviewing, developing or making decisions about new or existing policies, services or 
functions: 

  Disability 

  Race 

  Gender  

  Sexual orientation 

  Gender reassignment  

  Age 

  Religion and belief  

  Pregnancy and maternity 

In addition, socio-economic factors are also considered in EqIAs, as directed by the Executive of 
Stevenage Borough Council. Note however that, as this factor is non-statutory, decision makers 
should use their discretion when considering the analysis of socio-economic impact. 

EqIAs are a demonstration of our compliance with the requirements of the Public Sector Equality Duty 
as described below.  

The Public Sector Equality Duty – Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to –  
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 

under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it;  
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 

who do not share it. 

Page 95



2

Step 1: Collecting evidence 

This step involves identifying the aims of the policy, service or function and collects evidence relating 
to the impact on service users and particular groups.  

What is being 
assessed?  

The proposed transfer of employment of Revenues and Benefits and Anti-Fraud 
staff to East Herts Council, following the principles of TUPE. The proposed transfer 
will be followed by a staff re-structure, where some transferring staff may move to 
East Herts terms and conditions of employment, which include homeworking, 
flexible working and remote working policies. It is proposed that the shared service 
be based in Hertford, with no residual service activities in Stevenage. 

In terms of customers and residents in Stevenage, the current proposals will not 
make any change to the way in which the services are provided, or to the ways in 
which service users access the services. In light of that, at this stage, the impact on 
Stevenage customers and residents is neutral, in that no discernable equalities 
impacts have been identified. 

What are the 
aims?   

The aims of the proposals are to produce budget savings, strengthen service 
resilience and to improve service performance. 

Who may be 
impacted?

SBC staff in scope, who work in Local Taxation, Benefits and Anti-Fraud, of which 
there are approximately 40.  

What
measures are 
already in 
place?

Initial staff consultation has taken place in the form of briefings, and with the issuing 
of written material associated with proposed changes. Staff were able to ask 
questions and provide feedback through one to one meetings, email, in writing, 
using a questionnaire, through union representatives and through ‘Change 
Champions’.   

Further staff consultation is planned to take place after a decision is made on 
proceeding with implementation of the proposals. 

Consultation with unions is ongoing. To date, comments from union representatives 
have been positive, but no formal response to the proposals has been received. 

Page 96



3

What is the 
evidence of 
impact?

What do we 
know about 
the people 
who may be 
impacted?

Some basic, general information about the staff group has been provided by SBC 
HR. It does not identify any individual or any particular needs within the staff group. 

The information from HR allowed an initial consideration of some profile 
characteristics of the staff group. This includes age, gender, part-time / full time 
working, ethnicity, disability, pay grade and length of service.  

In addition, most staff have completed consultation questionnaires, from which 
summary findings have been provide by HR. 

It does not appear that there will be any DDA issues that will need to be addressed, 
as the information provided by SBC HR does not indicate whether any of the staff in 
scope are disabled. 

However, there is a possibility of an unequal impact if appropriate policies and 
procedures are not carried through and implemented correctly, such as the 
recruitment and selection procedure and flexible working policies.  This issue will be 
addressed during further consultation and through the proposed staff transfer 
process.    

The transfer creates some potential benefits for staff, including flexible working, 
home working and career development. 

As staff would be transferring on SBC terms and conditions of employment, these 
will not change. However, there may be differences in non-contractual employment 
practices or staff benefits differences between SBC and EHC, which may give rise 
to an impact. 

What do we 
still need to 
find out? 

Specific information needs to be collected about all individual members of staff and 
how they believe the proposals will impact on them. This will be done during a 
second consultation period, which will include a review of the staff questionnaires 
with each member of staff, at one to one meetings. 

Step 2: Assessing the impact 

This step involves using the evidence we have gathered to analyse the impact of a policy, service or 
function on people with protected characteristics. The table below provides details of the potential 
negative and positive impacts as well as information about what can be done to mitigate negative 
impact or further the aims of the equality duty.  

Page 97



4

A
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

T
a
b

le
 

D
o

e
s

 t
h

e
 p

o
li
c

y
/s

e
rv

ic
e

/f
u

n
c

ti
o

n
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
p

o
s

it
iv

e
 o

r 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 
im

p
a
c
t 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
…

  

1
. 
N

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 o
r 

d
is

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
im

p
a

c
t 

 

2
. 
P

o
s

it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

 
3

. 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 
n

e
g

a
ti

v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

(o
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 i
m

p
a

c
t)

 

4
. 
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 t

o
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

ro
m

o
te

 
e

q
u

a
li

ty
 (

o
r 

c
o

m
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 

im
p

a
c

t)
 

B
la

c
k
 o

r 
B

la
c
k
 B

ri
ti
s
h

 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

a
ri
b

b
e

a
n

  
a

n
d

 
A

fr
ic

a
n
) 

M
ix

e
d

 R
a

c
e

  

W
h

it
e

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
B

ri
ti
s
h

/I
ri
s
h

/S
c
o

tt
is

h
/ 

E
a
s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e

a
n
) 

T
ra

v
e

lle
rs

 o
r 

G
y
p

s
ie

s
 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 d

o
n
’t
 s

p
e
a

k
 

E
n
g

lis
h
 

W
o
m

e
n

M
e

n
 

G
e
n

d
e
r

T
ra

n
s
g
e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d

 
T

ra
n
s
s
e
x
u
a
l 
 

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
o

r 
m

o
b

ili
ty

 
im

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

w
h
e
e

lc
h
a
ir
 u

s
e
rs

 

H
e

a
ri
n

g
 i
m

p
a

ir
e

d
/d

e
a

f 
 

V
is

u
a

lly
 i
m

p
a

ir
e

d
/b

lin
d

 

M
e

n
ta

l 
h
e
a

lt
h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

L
e

a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

ili
ti
e

s
 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

P
e

o
p
le

 
w

it
h

…

L
o

n
g

 s
ta

n
d

in
g

 i
lln

e
s
s
 o

r 
n

o
n

-v
is

ib
le

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 e

p
ile

p
s
y
 o

r 
d

ia
b

e
te

s
 

0
-5

6
-1

2
 

1
3
-1

9
 

2
0
-2

9
 

3
0
-4

4
 

4
5
-5

9
 

A
g

e

6
0
-6

4
 

T
h

e
 S

B
C

 s
ta

ff
 i
n

 s
c
o

p
e

 a
re

 p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

tl
y
 f
e

m
a

le
, 
la

rg
e

ly
 f
a

lli
n

g
 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 o

ld
e

r 
a

g
e

 b
a

n
d

s
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 
h

ig
h

 i
n

c
id

e
n
c
e

 o
f 
p

a
rt

-t
im

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
w

it
h

 m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 t
w

o
 t
h

ir
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
d

 o
n
 t
h

e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
fo

u
r 

g
ra

d
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
s
a

la
ry

 s
c
a

le
s
. 

 

A
s
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 s

ta
n

d
, 

th
e

re
 m

a
y
 b

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
c
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

s
e

 a
n

d
 g

re
a

te
r 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

tr
a

v
e

lli
n

g
 t
o

 a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 w
o

rk
. 
It

 i
s
 b

e
lie

v
e

d
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
m

e
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
le

x
ib

le
 w

o
rk

in
g

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

t 
E

H
C

 w
ill

 m
it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 f
o

r 
m

o
s
t 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 s

ta
ff

. 
 

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

a
ra

ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 g

iv
e

 r
is

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 

fr
o

m
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
. 
T

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 i
s
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

o
s
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 b
y
 

o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 f
o

r 
jo

b
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
n

te
rv

ie
w

in
g

 s
k
ill

s
. 
 

S
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 i

n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

b
a
s
is

. 
T

h
e
 f

e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f

ro
m

 s
ta

ff
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a

s
: 

 
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 t
ra

v
e

l 
c
o

s
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

ti
n

g
 t

im
e

 

 
 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
w

o
rk

p
la

c
e

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

 c
a

ri
n

g
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

 
 

W
h

e
th

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
ts

. 

 
 

S
u

it
a
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
 h

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
  

 
 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

h
o

m
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e

 o
n

 s
ta

ff
 m

o
ra

le
 

 
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 n
e

w
 s

tr
u

c
tu

re
 a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 

T
h

e
s
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
b

a
s
is

, 
w

it
h

 e
a

c
h

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 d

u
ri

n
g

 o
n

e
 t
o

 o
n

e
 

m
e
e

ti
n
g
s
, 
s
h
o
u
ld

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 d

e
c
id

e
 t
o

 p
ro

c
e

e
d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 p
ro

p
o
s
a

ls
. 

In
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
 l
is

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
e

ft
, 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
 t
o

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
ts

 
in

 d
e
ta

il,
 a

s
 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 s

c
o
p

e
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
e
n

a
b

le
 t
h
e

m
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

tc
h
e
d

 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 e

n
o
u

g
h

 w
it
h

 m
o
s
t 
o

f 
th

o
s
e

 g
ro

u
p
s
. 

Page 98



5

6
5
-7

4
 

7
5
 o

r 
o
v
e

r 

B
is

e
x
u

a
l 

G
a

y
 

H
e

te
ro

s
e

x
u
a

l 

S
e

x
u

a
li
ty

 

L
e

s
b

ia
n

 

C
h

ri
s
ti
a

n
 

B
u
d

d
h
is

t 

H
in

d
u

J
e
w

is
h
 

M
u

s
lim

 

S
ik

h
 

O
th

e
r 

R
e

li
g

io
n

/ 
b

e
li
e

f 
 

N
o

 r
e

lig
io

n
 o

r 
b

e
lie

f 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 

P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y

 a
n

d
 

m
a

te
rn

it
y
 

M
a

te
rn

it
y
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
re

a
s
t 
fe

e
d
in

g
 m

o
th

e
rs

) 

L
o

w
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 

P
a
rt

 t
im

e
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 d

o
n
’t
 h

a
v
e

 
th

e
 i
n

te
rn

e
t 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
h
o
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 u
s
e

 
p

u
b

lic
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

*S
o

c
io

-
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 

O
th

e
r 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

/c
iv

il 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

P
a
re

n
ts

/s
in

g
le

 p
a

re
n
t 

C
a
re

rs
  

*O
th

e
r 

In
s
e
rt

 
re

le
v
a
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h

  
s
ta

ff
 (

s
e

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 p
o

lic
y
) 

* 
C

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
s
 n

o
n
-s

ta
tu

to
ry

 s
o

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e

rs
 s

h
o

u
ld

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
ir

 d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 
im

p
a

c
t.
 N

o
te

 
th

a
t 

s
o

c
io

-e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 f
a

c
to

rs
 m

u
s
t 
b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
th

e
 d

ir
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 o
f 
S

te
v
e

n
a

g
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

Page 99



6

S
te

p
 3

: 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

t 

W
it
h

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

th
is

 s
te

p
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
u

t 
w

h
a

t 
w

e
 w

ill
 d

o
 t
o

 m
it
ig

a
te

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
. 

 

G
o

a
l

A
c

ti
o

n
s

P
e

rs
o

n
 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 a
n

d
 

s
o

u
rc

e

T
im

e
 f

ra
m

e
 

to im
p

le
m

e
n

t 

H
o

w
 a

c
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

  

R
e

v
ie

w
 E

IA
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

ft
e

r 
e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
n

 J
u

n
e

. 

C
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 t

o
 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e

 J
u

n
e

 E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

S
 T

a
rr

a
n

 
S

ta
ff
 t
im

e
 

A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
1

 
P

a
rt

 o
f 
p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 s
ta

ff
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

. 
C

 H
o

rs
n

a
il 

M
 S

im
p

s
o

n
 

S
 T

a
rr

a
n
 

S
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

N
o

w
 t
o

 
A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0

1
1

 

P
a

rt
 o

f 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

E
n

s
u
re

 t
h
a

t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
e

x
p

re
s
s
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
a

n
y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
m

a
y
 g

iv
e

 r
is

e
 t

o
 a

n
 

e
q
u
a

lit
ie

s
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

H
o
ld

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 o
n

e
 t
o

 o
n
e
, 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 
a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 i
n

 s
c
o

p
e

. 
T

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
o

 f
in

d
 o

u
t 

m
o

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

 t
h

e
m

, 
w

h
e

re
v
e
r 

it
 i
s
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a

b
le

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o
. 

C
 H

o
rs

n
a

il 
S

 T
a
rr

a
n
 

S
ta

ff
 t
im

e
 

J
u

ly
/ 
A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
1

 
P

a
rt

 o
f 
p

ro
je

c
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

Page 100



 7

Step 4: Outcome of assessment 

In this step the outcome of the EqIA is identified. An EqIA has four possible outcomes; more than one 
may apply to a single policy, service or function

Outcome Tick

1. No major change 
needed (unlikely 
outcome). 

The EIA demonstrates the policy, service or function is robust and there 
is no potential for discrimination or adverse impact. All opportunities to 
promote equality have been taken. 

Tick

 

2. The Policy has 
been adjusted. 

The EIA identified potential problems or missed opportunities and 
adjustments were made to remove barriers or better promote equality. 
Details of the actions taken and planned are in the Action Plan table 
above.

3. Continue the 
policy without 
adjustment. 

The EIA has identified the potential for adverse impact or missed 
opportunities to promote equality but the policy, service or function will 
be continued without change. See the box below for the reason for this 
outcome.  

4.  Discrimination 
identified – stop 
and rethink.  

The EqIA has shown actual or potential unlawful discrimination under the 
Equality Act 2010 and will be removed

Reasons for continuing with service, policy or function un-amended despite identifying the potential for 
adverse impact or missed opportunities to promote equality: 

The potential equalities impacts will be monitored throughout the planned consultation period – this 
document will be reviewed and finalised following an review of the outcomes from that consultation. 

SIGN OFF BY LEAD ASSESSOR 

Name: 
Position:
Date approved: 

SIGN OFF BY HEAD OF SERVICE 

Name: 
Position:
Date approved: 

Completing the EqIA 

The EqIA will be published on the Council’s website; therefore as the author of the document, it is your 
responsibility to ensure that it is written in an understandable way, free from jargon.  

Page 101



 8

In order for the EqIA form to be published it must be reviewed by Michelle Sheriff (Programme Co-
ordinator, Equality and Diversity, Michelle.Sheriff@stevenage.gov.uk, extension 2363) and approved 
by the relevant Head of Service. It is the service manager’s responsibility to ensure that this is done.  

Once this form has been completed, the approved EqIA should be sent to Michelle for placement on 
the intranet and internet.   

Completion Checklist 

Action Check

EqIA Actions integrated into service/team/individual 
work plans. 

Completed EqIA checked by Michelle Sheriff. 

Sign off from Head of Service sought and achieved. 

EqIA summarised in ‘equality implications’ section of 
Executive and/or SMB reports. 

EqIA appended to Executive and/or SMB reports to 
inform decision making. 

Final approved EqIA sent to Michelle Sheriff to upload 
to intranet/internet. 

When you have completed this form, ensure you have deleted all green guidance text. 

Page 102



 
  

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL AND EAST HERTS COUNCIL   
 
EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT 
REVENUES AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE - 19 OCTOBER 2011  
 
REPORT BY HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS SHARED SERVICE  
 

6. SHARED SERVICE IMPLEMENTATION 
 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  All. 

     
 
Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

• To advise Members of the progress and future plans for the 
implementation of the Revenues and Benefits shared service and 
associated risks. 

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR DECISION: that 

 

(A) The arrangements and timescales for implementing the 
Revenues and Benefits shared service be noted. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 At the meetings of the Stevenage Borough Council (SBC) and East 

Herts Council (EHC) Executives on 14th June and 15th June 201 
respectively, decisions were taken to create a single, shared 
Revenues and Benefits Service for the two Councils.  

 
1.2 During the subsequent months, a project team, including officers 

from both councils has worked to complete tasks and phases set out 
in a single overall project plan. A high level plan is shown at 
Essential Reference Paper B. The most important milestone in this 
project is having the new single service in a state of readiness to ‘go-
live’. 

 
2.0 Report 
 
2.1 A project board, chaired by the SBC Strategic Director Resources 

and the EHC Director of Internal Services, meets each week to 
oversee the delivery of key phases in the plan. A summary of 
progress in these key phases is given below. 

 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 103



 
  

2.2 Key phase – Change Management 
 

2.2.1 This phase incorporates all issues, statutory and policy obligations 
relating to the staff employed on the Revenues and Benefits offices 
of both councils.  

 
2.2.2 A transfer of all SBC Revenues and Benefits staff to EHC was 

affected on the first of August 2011. Those staff, together with 
existing EHC Revenues and Benefits staff will be treated equally 
through a recruitment and selection process which will appoint to the 
new single service staff structure based in EHC Wallfields offices in 
Hertford. This phase is due to complete by the end of October 2011. 
Meantime, former SBC staff continue to work in Daneshill House 
under the management of the shared Head of Revenues and 
Benefits Services. 

 
2.2.3 Current indications are that compulsory redundancies are unlikely. A 

small number of staff have outstanding personal issues regarding 
the transfer which are being addressed by Human Resources 
officers. 

 

2.3 Key phase – Technology 
 
2.3.1 This phase includes all matters relating to IT, telephony and staff 

homeworking. 
 
2.3.2 Although both councils have the same core business system for 

Revenues and Benefits, those systems are run in different operating 
environments, have different types and numbers of modules, 
dissimilar interfaces and are linked to two different document 
management systems. The complex job of harmonising the 
technology is being managed by a full time external consultant, 
whose costs are being met from external funding secured by the 
council last year. 

 
2.3.3 The technology implementation plan is currently on target, with no 

slippage. Key risks have been identified and a contingency plan 
approved by the project board.  

 
2.4 Key phase – Business processes 
 
2.4.1 Revenues and Benefits is a statutory service based on legislation 

and central government guidance, which allows little scope for local 
discretion. Underpinning the administration of that legislation are 
hundreds of business processes and procedures, which have been 

Page 104



 
  

developed differently within the corporate administrative 
arrangements in each council. So, whilst both Revenues and 
Benefits services have procedures for example to refund overpaid 
council tax, to set up a direct debit and to print letters, those 
processes will need to be standardised if efficiencies are to be 
found. 

 
2.4.2 With around 950 separate processes in operation, the task of 

harmonising them into one standard set will take several months. 
The approach being taken is to prioritise processes so that the 
harmonisation is focused on those processes which help support the 
new staff structure and the roll out of the single IT solution. 

 
2.5 Key phase – Governance 
 
2.5.1 There are three elements which make up the governance 

arrangements for the shared service. First the joint committee, the 
terms of reference for which are considered elsewhere on the 
agenda of today’s meeting. 

 
2.5.2 Secondly, a joint management board, terms of reference and 

membership will be agreed before its first meeting which is 
scheduled to follow ‘go-live’ in December 2011. ‘Thirdly, a formal 
partnership agreement was approved by the councils’ solicitors and 
signed by the Chief Financial officers on 1st August 2011.  

 

2.6 Key phase – Finance 
 

2.6.1 A shared service budget management arrangement has been 
established for the interim period leading up to ‘go-live’ in December 
2011. This interim arrangement addresses the operational needs 
around staff temporarily remaining in Daneshill House whilst 
recruitment and selection takes place and the single IT solution is 
rolled out. 

 
2.6.2 Further interim budget management arrangements will be put in 

place for the period from ‘go-live’ to the end of the current financial 
year.  These will reflect the fact that Revenues and Benefits staff will 
have vacated Daneshill House and the shared service will be 
operated entirely from Hertford. 

 
2.6.3 With effect from April 2012, a standard agreed budget management 

protocol will take effect and run on for each year thereafter for the 
life of the shared service. Proposals for the first full year budget will 
be based on the shared budget shown in the Business Case 

Page 105



 
  

document, adjusted by indexation set out in the ‘Shared Services 
Partnership’ agreement.    

 
2.6.4 The agreement also details how the shared service costs and 

savings will be identified and split between the councils.  
 

2.7 ‘Go-Live’ 
 
‘2.7.1 Go-live’ is characterised by having the following key service features 

in place: 
 

• All posts filled in the new staff structure. 

• Homeworking rolled out for all appropriate staff 

• A single IT solution tested and operational  

• Seamless telephony for staff and customers 

• Critical business processes standardised     
 
2.7.2 A date for ‘go-live’ has been set as the 5th December 2011. This 

date was fixed, because the operational demands on the service 
increase significantly from then, through to the end of the financial 
year. Those demands arise from the annual uprating of benefits, 
annual billing process, year end, subsidy claim etc. 

 
2.7.3 When the Revenues and Benefits Service is operating with staff in a 

stable environment, the extra demands at this time of year are 
normally manageable. However, if the implementation project 
experiences slippage beyond 5th December 2011, then risks arise 
around final completion of implementation, the quality and timely 
completion of year end and subsidy tasks, and overall operational 
performance. There are currently no additional resources available 
to address those risks should they materialise. 

 
2.8 Risks 
 
2.8.1 There are several risks with the implementation plan, associated 

with the key phases of Change Management, Technology and 
Business Processes. This is complicated by strong dependencies 
between the Change Management, Technology and Business 
Process phases. Three example scenarios are described below. 

 
2.8.2 If the appointment process is delayed by staff appeals or 

resignations, this will impact on staff availability to test the new IT 
solution and create a shortage of staff knowledge needed for 
business process redesign. 

 

Page 106



 
  

2.8.3 If the IT implementation is delayed by availability of externally 
provided goods and services this would delay the roll out of 
homeworking and the testing of new business processes which are 
IT reliant. 

 
2.8.4 If the amount of time needed to standardise business processes is 

underestimated this may result in additional costs to back fill more 
staff whilst they work on process re-design or may delay the date of  
‘go-live’  

 
2.8.5 The impact of those risks fall largely into two categories. Slippage 

resulting in delay in reaching ‘go-live’ and financial, resulting in 
potential erosion of the predicted savings.    

 
2.8.6 Responsibility for monitoring those risks and developing mitigation 

has been assigned to individual members of the implementation 
project team. The status of those risks is reported at weekly project 
management boards meetings, chaired by the SBC Strategic 
Director Resources and the EHC Director of Internal Services. 

 
2.9 Beyond ‘Go–live’ 
 
2.9.1 It is likely that there will be a number of post ‘go-live’ issues, given 

the complexity of the new IT arrangements and the scale of the 
business process harmonisation. These will continue to be 
managed using project management principles, in the short term, 
with progress and issues being reported to the joint management 
board. In due course, responsibilities for residual issues will be 
absorbed by the shared service managers. 

 
2.9.2 As excellent customer service is at the core of the Revenues and 

Benefits Service, a walk-in customer interface will be maintained at 
Bishop’s Stortford, Hertford and at the Stevenage Customer Service 
Centre (CSC). There may be scope to develop the role of the CSC 
in handling Revenues and Benefits customer telephone calls in the 
future and this will be subject to review within the first year of 
operation.  

 
2.9.3 Meantime, the shared Head of Revenues and Benefits Services will 

focus on continuing to deliver savings, strengthening resilience and 
improving performance. 

 
3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 None. 

Page 107



 
  

 
3.2 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated 

with this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper ‘A’.   
 
3.3 Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ high level implementation plan.   
 
Background Papers 
None. 
 
Contact Member: Councillor M Tindale, Executive Member for   

  Finance. 
 
Contact Officer: Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits Services, 

Extn: 2075.  
 
Report Author: Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits Services, 

Extn: 2075.  

Page 108



 
  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

Promoting prosperity and well-being; providing 
access and opportunities 
Enhance the quality of life, health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities, particularly those 
who are vulnerable. 
 
Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 
 

Consultation: None 

Legal: None 

Financial: As specified in Business Case 

Human 
Resource: 

None 

Risk 
Management: 

As detailed above. 

 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Revenues and Benefits Shared Service

Top-Level Implementation Plan

w/c 3 w/c 10 w/c 17 w/c 24
w/c 31 

Oct
w/c 7 w/c 14 w/c 21 w/c 28 w/c 5 w/c 12 w/c 19 w/c 26

Key Events:

First Joint Committee �

Shared Service Go Live �

First Joint Management Board �

Implementation workstreams

Business Process Re-engineering 

Stage 1

25% 

complete

50% 

complete

75% 

complete

100% 

complete

October November December

Human Resources

ICT

Staff Induction and team building

Staff objectives agreed and 

training needs identified

Data link installed, tested and signed off

Establish new (Windows) operating platform

Bulk migration of 

document images

Selection and 

appointment of staff 

to new structure

Roll out of Homeworking

P
age 111



P
age 112

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
  

STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL AND EAST HERTS COUNCIL   
 
EAST HERTS COUNCIL AND STEVENAGE BOROUGH COUNCIL JOINT 
REVENUES AND BENEFITS COMMITTEE - 19 OCTOBER 2011  
 
REPORT BY HEAD OF REVENUES AND BENEFITS SHARED SERVICE  
 

7. PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED:  All. 

     
 
Purpose/Summary of Report 
 

• To explain service performance for the Revenues and Benefits 
shared service. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DECISION: that 

 

(A) The performance of the Revenues and Benefits shared service 
be noted. 

  

(B) The future format and content of performance information for the 
Revenues and Benefits shared service be approved. 

 
1.0 Background  
 
1.1 At the meetings of the Stevenage Borough Council (SBC) and East 

Herts Council (EHC) Executives on 14th June and 15th June 201 
respectively, decisions were taken to create a single, shared 
Revenues and Benefits Service for the two Councils and to establish 
a joint committee for that shared service.  

 
1.2 Term of reference number four for the joint committee is: 
 

‘To receive explanations of variances in service performance against 
the agreed Service Plan’ 

 
1.3 A Service Plan for the shared service will be drafted for the first year 

of operation, 2012/13. In the absence of such a plan, this report 
includes information about the performance of the separate 
Revenues and Benefits Service 

 
2.0 Report 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 113



 
  

2.1 What good performance means for Revenues and Benefits 
 
2.1.1 Good performance means ensuring that the right outputs are 

delivered for customers, using the available resources in the most 
efficient way. 

 
2.1.2 The right amount of benefit needs to be paid to the right person at 

the right time, and the maximum amount of local taxes collected by 
the due dates. All of which should be done with an affordable level of 
resources, without waste or delay in procedures. 

 
2.1.3 Performance is measured across the following indicators: 
 

• The time, in days, taken to process housing benefits /council tax 
benefit new claims and change events. 

 

• The percentage of non-domestic rates due for the financial year 
which were received by the authority in that year. 

 

• The percentage of council tax due for the financial year which 
were received by the authority in that year. 

 

• The number of sanctions (Prosecutions, Cautions and 
Administration penalties) secured on Benefit fraud cases. 

 
 2.2 Context 
 
2.2.1 Performance management arrangements must take account of 

external factors which will place uncontrollable demands on any 
service. In the case of Revenues and Benefits this includes the 
number of claims and changes in circumstances which is linked to 
changes in the national and local economies, the socio-economic 
profile of the customer base and the ever changing requirements of 
the Department of  Works and Pensions. 

 
2.2.2 Key features of the Revenues and Benefits Services were provided 

in the Business Case document and are reproduced at appendix A. 
 
2.3 Historic performance 
 
2.3.1 Performance in Benefits and Local Taxation has varied significantly 

between the two council’s and year on year since 2007/08. The 
correction of this will be addressed as a priority in the year following 
‘go-live’ of the shared service. 

 

Page 114



 
  

2.3.2 In recent years, EHC has taken steps to address performance 
variation by investing in new IT solutions, from which the single 
shared service will benefit. This has to some extent been countered 
by the worsening economic downturn which has generated 
increased claims for and activity on benefit claims, as well as 
increased action to recover increasing occurrences of unpaid 
council tax and business rates.  

 
2.4 Current performance 
 
2.4.1 Performance during implementation will be impacted by changes to 

the staff structure and essential staff training, the roll out of new IT 
and the standardisation of working practices and business 
processes.  

 
2.4.2 These changes, combined with increased customer demands 

arising from the economic downturn, have already led to temporary 
deteriorations in performance. This has been addressed so far, by 
short term employment of agency staff at SBC. 

 
2.4.3 The current position is: 
 
 EHC SBC 

Benefit processing times   

Target for 2011/12 10 days 12 days 

Cumulative position at 30.9.11 12.34 days 18.38 days 

Most recent performance 
month 

9.2 days 12.62 days 

Performance 2010/11 9.95 days 11.89 days 

NNDR   

Target for 2011/12 97% 98% 

Collection rate at 30.9.11 57.14 (57.72 2010/11) 64.04 (2010/11 61.2) 

Performance 2010/11 96.94% 95.8% 

Council Tax   

Target for 2011/12 99% 97% 

Collection rate at 30.9.11 56.8 (2010/11 56.8) 61.60 (2010/11 58.9) 

Performance 2010/11 98.5% 96.2% 

Fraud Sanctions   

Target for 2011/12 92 None set 

Secured at 30.9.11 58 Verbal update at meeting 

Performance 2010/11 123 48 

 
 
 Collection of Council Tax and NNDR vary at this point in the year 

due to differences in the collection profiles that each council 
facilitates. 

 

Page 115



 
  

 Both Benefits Services continue to experience increasing 
caseloads.  

 
2.5 Future performance 
 
2.5.1 The objectives of the shared service focus on bringing stability and 

ensuring resilience against future changes in service demand. This 
will be achieved by ‘honing’ performance improvement year on year.   

 
 
2.6 Conclusion 
 
2.6.1 The amalgamation of skills and knowledge in a single large staff 

group, combined with the sharing of sound investment in IT will 
deliver service resilience which will underpin the capability to quickly 
deliver performance stability as a strong basis for performance 
improvement. 

 
2.6.2 The Service Plan for 2012/13 will include intent to deliver and 

secure excellent service delivery across both councils in future 
years.     

 
 
3.0 Implications/Consultations 
 
3.1 None. 
 
3.2 Information on any corporate issues and consultation associated with 

this report can be found within Essential Reference Paper ‘A’.   
 
3.3 Essential Reference Paper ‘B’ Key features of the service.    
 
Background Papers 
‘Revenues and Benefits Shared Service for East Herts and Stevenage 
Business Case’. 
 
Contact Member: Councillor M Tindale, Executive Member for   

  Finance. 
 
Contact Officer: Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits Services, 

Extn: 2075.  
 
Report Author: Su Tarran – Head of Revenues and Benefits Services, 

  Extn: 2075.  

Page 116



 
  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘A’ 
 

Contribution to 
the Council’s 
Corporate 
Priorities/ 
Objectives 
(delete as 
appropriate): 

Promoting prosperity and well-being; providing 
access and opportunities 
Enhance the quality of life, health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families and communities, particularly those 
who are vulnerable. 
 
Fit for purpose, services fit for you 
Deliver customer focused services by maintaining and 
developing a well managed and publicly accountable 
organisation. 
 
 

Consultation: None 

Legal: None 

Financial: As detailed in the Business case 

Human 
Resource: 

None 

Risk 
Management: 

As detailed at 2.4 above 

 

Page 117



 
  

ESSENTIAL REFERENCE PAPER ‘B’ 
 
Key features of the Revenues and Benefits Services               

Customer base EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Population of the district / 
borough 

138,114 81,074 

Geographical size of the 
district/borough 

184 sq miles 10 sq miles 

 

Local Taxation EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Tax base for 2010/11 

 

57,790.60 28,570.81 

Tax Collectable debit 2010/11 £85.9 million £41.6 million 

NNDR (Business rates) 
properties 2010/11 

4096 2004 

NNDR (Business rates) 
collectable debit 2010/11 

£40 million £44 million 

 

The combined Revenues and Benefits services collect in excess of £200 million of local taxes 

and pay out more than £70 million of benefits each year.  These services are delivered to every 

household and business in the Councils’ districts. 

Benefit service EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Claimants at  01/02/11 7,514 8,700 

Claims at  01/02/11 12,720 14,988 

Housing & Council Tax Benefit 
paid 2010/11 

 £34.7 million £39.7 million 

The main difference between the nature of benefit caseloads arises from the different decisions 

taken around each Council’s housing stock.  In the case of EHC, the stock was transferred to two 

registered social landlords, and subsequently tenants claim rent allowance.  In the case of SBC, 

the stock remains the property of the Council, with tenants claiming rent rebate.  

Managing this difference is a simply issue of ensuring that cross-training of staff is completed at 

the earliest opportunity. 

Benefits service growth 
in caseload 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2008/09 9.20% 5.81% 

2009/10 9.38% 4.06% 

2010/11 2.42% 4.08% 

Both services have experienced significant caseload growth since mid 2008/09, as a result of 

current economic conditions.  This growth impacts on the performance of processing and 

Page 118



 
  

assessing new claims.  It has also created on-going pressures associated with maintaining larger 

caseloads.  

Maintaining good performance levels in this environment has been challenging.  A need to create 

additional capacity within the EHC service was addressed by investing in new IT solutions, 

including customer self service and mobile working modules.  These innovations are being 

rolled-out during 2011/12. 

The economic downturn has meant added difficulties in collecting both Council Tax and Business 

Rates.  Changes to the rules for charging rates on empty business premises has added a further 

challenge, which has impacted negatively on collection rates. 

With an increase in Council Tax and Business Rates arrears, so follows an increase in action to 

recover those arrears.  This inevitably means hearings in the magistrate’s courts with the 

attendant costs of summonses and bailiff action.  This has inevitably increased the overall cost of 

collecting local taxes. 

The tables below set out comparisons of key performance measures between the two Revenues 

and Benefits Services. This clearly shows significant variations, which will be addressed as a 

priority through the shared service.  

Performance 

Benefits service 
performance (days) 

New claims 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 21.58 days 30.26 days 

2008/9 22.18 days 23.22 days 

2009/10 27.96 days 28.13 days 

2010/11 27.83 days 21.64 days 

 

Changes in 
circumstances 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 3.29 days 15.05 days 

2008/9 1.72 days 9.11 days 

2009/10 5.72 days 10.63 days 

2010/11 6.02 days 10.06 days 

 

 Tax  

In-year collection 
rates 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 98.4% 96.8% 

2008/9 98.6% 96.5% 

2009/10 98.6% 97.5% 

2010/11 98.5% 96.2% 

 

Page 119



 
  

NNDR (Business 
rates) in year 
collection rates 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 99.4% 99.5% 

2008/9 97.6% 97.9% 

2009/10 97.5% 96.4% 

2010/11 96.64% 95.8% 

 

 EHC Fraud SBC Anti-Fraud 

Fraud /  
Anti- Fraud 
performance 

Sanctions secured Sanctions secured 

2007/8 98 39 

2008/9 101 37 

2009/10 116 36 

2010/11 123 48 

 

 
 

 

Page 120



Key features of the Revenues and Benefits Services               

Customer base EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Population of the district / 
borough 

138,114 81,074 

Geographical size of the 
district/borough 

184 sq miles 10 sq miles 

 

Local Taxation EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Tax base for 2010/11 

 

57,790.60 28,570.81 

Tax Collectable debit 2010/11 £85.9 million £41.6 million 

NNDR (Business rates) 
properties 2010/11 

4096 2004 

NNDR (Business rates) 
collectable debit 2010/11 

£40 million £44 million 

 

The combined Revenues and Benefits services collect in excess of £200 
million of local taxes and pay out more than £70 million of benefits each 
year.  These services are delivered to every household and business in the 
Councils’ districts. 

Benefit service EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

Claimants at  01/02/11 7,514 8,700 

Claims at  01/02/11 12,720 14,988 

Housing & Council Tax Benefit 
paid 2010/11 

 £34.7 million £39.7 million 

The main difference between the nature of benefit caseloads arises from 
the different decisions taken around each Council’s housing stock.  In the 
case of EHC, the stock was transferred to two registered social landlords, 
and subsequently tenants claim rent allowance.  In the case of SBC, the 
stock remains the property of the Council, with tenants claiming rent rebate.  

Managing this difference is a simply issue of ensuring that cross-training of 
staff is completed at the earliest opportunity. 

Benefits service growth 
in caseload 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2008/09 9.20% 5.81% 

2009/10 9.38% 4.06% 

2010/11 2.42% 4.08% 

Page 121



Both services have experienced significant caseload growth since mid 
2008/09, as a result of current economic conditions.  This growth impacts 
on the performance of processing and assessing new claims.  It has also 
created on-going pressures associated with maintaining larger caseloads.  

Maintaining good performance levels in this environment has been 
challenging.  A need to create additional capacity within the EHC service 
was addressed by investing in new IT solutions, including customer self 
service and mobile working modules.  These innovations are being rolled-
out during 2011/12. 

The economic downturn has meant added difficulties in collecting both 
Council Tax and Business Rates.  Changes to the rules for charging rates 
on empty business premises has added a further challenge, which has 
impacted negatively on collection rates. 

With an increase in Council Tax and Business Rates arrears, so follows an 
increase in action to recover those arrears.  This inevitably means hearings 
in the magistrate’s courts with the attendant costs of summonses and bailiff 
action.  This has inevitably increased the overall cost of collecting local 
taxes. 

The tables below set out comparisons of key performance measures 
between the two Revenues and Benefits Services. This clearly shows 
significant variations, which will be addressed as a priority through the 
shared service.  

Performance 

Benefits service 
performance (days) 

New claims 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 21.58 days 30.26 days 

2008/9 22.18 days 23.22 days 

2009/10 27.96 days 28.13 days 

2010/11 27.83 days 21.64 days 

 

Changes in 
circumstances 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 3.29 days 15.05 days 

2008/9 1.72 days 9.11 days 

2009/10 5.72 days 10.63 days 

2010/11 6.02 days 10.06 days 

 
 
 

Page 122



 Tax  

In-year collection 
rates 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 98.4% 96.8% 

2008/9 98.6% 96.5% 

2009/10 98.6% 97.5% 

2010/11 98.5% 96.2% 

 

NNDR (Business 
rates) in year 
collection rates 

EHC Revenues and Benefits SBC Revenues and Benefits 

2007/8 99.4% 99.5% 

2008/9 97.6% 97.9% 

2009/10 97.5% 96.4% 

2010/11 96.64% 95.8% 

 

 EHC Fraud SBC Anti-Fraud 

Fraud /  
Anti- Fraud 
performance 

Sanctions secured Sanctions secured 

2007/8 98 39 

2008/9 101 37 

2009/10 116 36 

2010/11 123 48 

 

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Terms of Reference
	revs bfts shared
	Revs bfts shared - ERP A business case
	revs bfts shared - ERP B
	revs bfts shared - ERP C
	Revs bfts shared - ERP D unison response
	Revs bfts shared - ERP E response to unison
	Stevenage Executive-14June2011-Item4[1]
	Stevenage Executive-14June2011-Item4AppendixA[1]
	Stevenage Executive-14June2011-Item4AppendixB[1]
	Stevenage Executive-14June2011-Item4AppendixC[1]

	6 Shared Service Implementation
	Copy of PLAN_Implementation_Top_Level

	7 Performance Reporting
	Key features of the Revenues and Benefits Services


